‘\ 60 YEARS OF
S DC | ENTERTAINING

INDIA

August 22, 2025

To,

Listing Department, Corporate Relationship Department,
National Stock Exchange of India Limited BSE Limited

Exchange Plaza, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Bandra-Kurla Complex Dalal Street,

Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 051. Mumbai-400 001.

NSE Symbol: SHEMAROO Scrip Code : 538685

Dear Sir / Madam,

Re: SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED - ISIN: INE363M01019

Sub: Submission of Annual Report for FY 2024-25 under Regulation 34 of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company hereby submits Annual Report of the Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25.

This is for your information and records.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

For Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Digitally signed by
HIREN UDAY Hiren UDAY GADA

GADA Date: 2025.08.22

16:03:24 +05'30"

Hiren Gada
WTD & CEO
DIN: 01108194

Encl: as above

SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co - Op. Industrial Estate, Off Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059.
Tel.: +91 - 22 4031 9911 | Fax: +91 - 22 2851 9770 | Email: shemaroo@shemaroo.com
shemarooent.com | CIN: L67190MH2005PLC 158288



INDIA KHUSH HUA

PROGRESSING WITH PURPOSE

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Raman Maroo
DIN: 00169152
Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Atul Maru
DIN: 00169264
Jt. Managing Director

Mr. Hiren Gada
DIN: 01108194
WTD & CEO

Mr. Jai Maroo
DIN: 00169399
Executive Director

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal
DIN: 00713868
Independent Director

Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia
DIN: 00914691
Independent Director

Mr. Rajen Gada
DIN: 01642360
Independent Director

Mr. Abbas Contractor
DIN: 00637326
Independent Director

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Amit Haria

COMPANY SECRETARY &

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. Pooja Sutradhar

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Mukund M Chitale & Co.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s.VVMP & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates

BANKERS

State Bank of India

Bank of India

N.K.G.S.B. Co-op. Bank Limited
Deutsche Bank A.G.

HDFC Bank Limited

REGISTRAR & SHARE
TRANSFER AGENTS
MUFG Intime India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Link Intime India
Private Limited),

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, L B S Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083.

Tel.: +91-22-4918 6000

Fax: +91-22-4918 6060

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com
Email: rnt.helpdesk@in.mpms.mufg.com

REGISTERED OFFICE

Shemaroo House, Plot No.18,
Marol Co-op. Indl. Estate,

Off. Andheri Kurla Road,

Andheri (East),

Mumbai -400 059

Tel.: +91-22-40319911

Website: www.shemarooent.com
Email: shemaroo@shemaroo.com

CORPORATE IDENTITY
NUMBER
L67190MH2005PLC158288




04-16

Company Overview

About Us
Key Performance Indicators

Strategy and Business Model
Digital - Charting the Next Chapter

Traditional - Growing Our
Footprint in the Television Ecosystem

Chairman and Managing
Director’s Speech

CEQ’s Speech

Board of Directors

Statutory Reports

Management Discussion and
Analysis

Board’s Report

Corporate Governance Report

59-161 LB

Financial Reports

Standalone Financial
Statements

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Forward Looking statements

Someinformationin this report may contain forwardlooking statements which include statements regarding Company’s expected financial position and results
of operations, business plans and prospects, and are generally identified by forward-looking words such as ‘believe, ‘plan,, ‘anticipate, ‘continue, ‘estimate,
‘expect,’ ‘may, ‘will* or other similar words. Forward looking statements are dependent on assumptions or basis underlying such statements. We have chosen
these assumptions or basisin good faith, and we believe that they are reasonable in all material respects. However, we caution that actual results, performances
or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise
any forward-looking statement, whether as aresult of new information, future events, or otherwise
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Palbhar me ho jaayeqi har mushkil aasan
fausta na harenge humTo baazi maarenqe

PROGRESSING

among the most

in recent times for

2rtainment industry.

s such as a subdued

_ ironment due to softness in

demand, evolving consumer behaviour,

ensified competition and sector-wide

consolidation posed significant challenges.

These conditions tested not only the strength

of businesses but also their clarity of purpose
and consistency in execution.

Shemaroo responded to these challenges not
with caution, but with conviction. For us at
Shemaroo, resilience meant staying focused,
acting decisively and standing firm on our
core principles. By remaining aligned with our
long-term strategy, prioritizing key growth
areas and exercising discipline in our
investments, we were able to maintain stable

revenues despite the turbulent environment.
We remained prudent across every facet of

our operations, balancing ambition with
discipline. While continuing to invest in
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stay relevant, reimagining

connects with people anc

engagement with a b er ]
enduring commitment to making 'India
Khush' remains at the heart of everything we
do.

Though the year presented undeniable
challenges, it also underscored our inherent
strengths. As we continue to progress, we
remain optimistic and confident that our
resilient mindset, focused strategy and
prudent approach will continue to deliver
sustainable value for all stakeholders.
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Shemaroo Entertai

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited is one of
India's leading entertainment companies, with a
robust presence across broadcasting, OTT, digital
video platforms and content syndication. Backed
by a rich 60-year legacy, the Company has
consistently delivered high-quality
entertainment experiences, earning the trust of
audiences and partners alike.

Rooted in the vision to make 'India Khush',
Shemaroo celebrates stories that span diverse
genres, languages and cultures, pushing creative
boundaries while staying anchored in audience
relevance. Through continuous innovation and a
deep understanding of evolving consumer
preferences, the Company has demonstrated
remarkable resilience and adaptability in a fast-
changing medialandscape.
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Language presence
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Monthly views garnered
across YouTube and Facebook

Broadcasting
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With a sharp strategic focus, Shemaroo offers a
comprehensive portfolio of content across multiple
genres, including films, television shows, web
series, play, devotional and Bollywood music,
regional entertainment and children's content. Its
offerings are tailored to serve audiences of all ages
across various Indian languages, reinforcing its
commitmenttoinclusivity andreach.

The Company has also made significant strides in
strengthening its television and digital footprint,
prudently investing in platforms and partnerships
that align with long-term value creation. By
seamlessly integrating traditional strengths with
digital agility, Shemaroo continues to evolve as a
forward-looking, future-ready media powerhouse,
one that delivers enduring value to its audiences,
partners and stakeholders.
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Company Overview

EVOLUTION OF SHEMAROO
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KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATOR

Revenue (INR Mn)
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Note: In Q4 FY24, the Company undertook a strategic initiative to accelerate inventory charge-offs to strengthen the balance sheet. While this has kept
margins under pressure, these are purely accounting adjustments with no impact on content monetization or free cash flow generation
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STRATEGY AND
BUSINESS MODEL

STRATEGY

Build a strong O Build ShemarooMe
network of with a focus on
broadcasting regional and
channels targeted segments
Our goal is to %
deliver value to all our 5 9
stakeholders by creating Ei () Scale-up
supeltior consumgr-focused 3 :' advertising-led
offerings across linear and o . .
digital through product Q?IE digital business
and content §
innovation P
Strengthen

partnerships
with broadcast Strengthen content
networks and partnerships across

distribution mainstream digital

platforms platforms

Invest in Strengthen consumer Create synergies Continuous effort Create long-term
strengthening mindshare and across content and to de-risk the value through
digital capabilities brand connect revenue platforms revenue model while strategic investments
maintaining an ROI- in scalable
focused approach opportunities
(" Content Library )
Sr. Content Cat Number of Number of | Total Number
no. |-ontentlategory Period Titles Perpetual Titles of Titles
1 Hindi Films (including Dubbed) 474 645 1,119
2 Regional Films and Plays (including Dubbed) 542 1,309 1,851
Total 1,016 1,954 2,970
Sr. Number of Number of | Total Duration
no. Content Category ‘ Titles Episodes (Hours)
1 Episodic + Special Interest 103 1,625 823
2 TV Originals + Web Series 49 3,756 1,699
Total 152 5,381 2,522

. J
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Brand

Built over 60 years

AATS

[an)an (an)

People

Strong management team
with experienced industry
professionals

]

Relationships

Strong relationships in
the content creation and
distribution ecosystem

Library/ IP
+3,000 titles
Across languages such as
Hindi, Marathi, Gujarati,
Punjabi

Across genres and formats

e - 1o : 7.1 - o

»

KEY MONETIZATION AVENUES

Broadcasting Channels

ShemarooTV | Shemaroo Shemaroo | Chumbak TV
Umang MarathiBana

Digital SVOD Platform (OTT)

L med

ShemarooME

Digital AVOD Channels (Youtube & Facebook)

Shemaroo operates more than 50 channels on
YouTube garnering more than 100 mn views a day

S oviE FILM "KIDS
MOVIES Gaapgl n
4_" '."" 3

' "*'.—:oj;?zlcn

Linear Subscription Services

Subscription services across Tata Sky, Airtel TV, Dish
TV,D2h

Syndication

To all leading broadcasters such as Zee, Sony,
JioStar

To renowned digital platforms such as Netflix,
Amazon Prime Video, JioHotStar amongst others

To international broadcasters and platforms such as
STARZPLAY, IVI Russia, ANTV, Red Media
and Etisalat amongst others

In-Flight
Presence across all leading airlines including
Emirates, Qatar, Singapore Airlines, Etihad etc.

S ® ..
: Contentino
Bringing ife to L'ife®

AVOD - Advertising video-on-demand
SVOD - Subscription video-on-demand
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Charting the Next Chapter

A quiet revolution has been unfolding in the media
and entertainment industry and at the heart of this
transformation is digital. From the ubiquitous
smartphone in every hand to personalized content
delivered across screens, digital has not just
disrupted the status quo, it has rewritten the
playbook.

Over the past few years, India's digital media
landscape has grown at an extraordinary pace. Some
of the reasons behind the sector's rapid expansion -
22% CAGR since 2019 - include affordable data,
widespread broadband access, and a content-
hungry, mobile-first audience. In 2024, digital not
only maintained its momentum but reached a
significant inflection point: it surpassed television to
become the largest revenue contributor in the M&E
industry. Subscription growth rebounded, driven by
stricter platform-sharing policies and sustained
investments by leading platforms. Simultaneously, a
structural shift in advertising saw a larger share of
brand budgets migrate permanently to digital,
following the audiences that are increasingly online.
Furthermore, during the year, digital content
consumption via television screens saw notable
growth, driven by the rising adoption of Connected
TVs (CTVs). With over 50 million CTVs, this segment
is rapidly becoming a key bridge between traditional
television and digital streaming.

While 2023 marked a brief phase of
recalibration, 2024 reaffirmed the
strength and resilience of the digital
medium. And in this evolving landscape,
Shemaroo stood strong, adapting with
focus, responding with agqility and
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continuing to build for the future. With a clear focus
and a prudent investment strategy, Shemaroo not
only weathered the shift, but it also grew. The
Company's digital revenue grew by more than 10%
year-on-year, its YouTube business continued to
thrive,andits OTT platform, ShemarooMe, expanded
itsreachandrelevance.

Over a decade ago,
Shemaroo recognized
digital not as a side avenue,
but as the road ahead. The
Company was among the
first Indian mediacompanies
to harness the power of
YouTube, building an
expansive network that now
spansover100 channels and
350 million subscribers, with
100 million+ daily views.

IDNIGHT

RUNNERE
dagi
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With more than 70 million subscribers, the
Company's flagship channel, Shemaroo Filmi Gaane,
ranks amongst the most subscribed globally, a
testamenttoits stayingpower anddigital foresight.

Meanwhile, ShemarooMe continued its steady
growth, especially in the Gujarati-speaking market,
with more than 45 new titles released during the
year. From digital world
premieres of Gujaratifilms like
Jhamkudi, Raado, BachuBhai,
Vash and The Great Gujarati
Matrimony to original series
like Goti Soda 5, Arranged
With Love, Maatli Chirani and
Santakukdi, ShemarooMe has
become a destination of
choice for regional
entertainment, at home and
with the diaspora, particularly
inthe USA.
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Beyond content, the Company's strength lies in
connection,powered by strategic partnerships. From
telecom operators to global streaming platforms like
Amazon Prime, Netflix, JioHotstar, Sony LIV,
Shemaroo's library reaches millions across borders
and platforms.

As the Company looks forward, the signals are clear.
While over 900 million broadband users and over
560 million smartphone users have brought India
online, millions still remain to be connected.
Furthermore, the Company believes that with its
engaged, high-value audience base, CTV also opens
new opportunities for targeted advertising and
innovative content formats. The next wave of growth
isinevitable and Shemarooisready.

Shemaroo's digital journey continues to be guided
by the values that have shaped the Company over
the past six decades, which are resilience, focus and
thoughtful growth. As the digital landscape evolves,
the Company is carefully strengthening its
capabilities in data-driven content strategies,
exploring balanced monetization models and
deepening its understanding of audience
preferences. The digital narrative is still unfolding,
and for Shemaroo, it holds the promise of continued
innovation and meaningful opportunities in the
years ahead.
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Growing Our Footprint in the Television Ecosystem

Television media is a INR 68,000 crore industry,
reaching over 170 million households and 750+
million viewers, making it the cornerstone of India's
media ecosystem.With an average daily reach of 600
million viewers and consumption of over 3 hours per
person, TV remains unmatched in scale, cultural
influence, and advertiser relevance. Its dominanceiis
particularly strong in rural India, where it continues
to drive both reach and impact. With nearly 30% of
households—mostly in Hindi-speaking regions—still
withoutaTV,the headroom for growthisimmense.

That said, the segment is undergoing a period of
transition. In 2024, television advertising revenues
declined for the second consecutive year, due to
multiple factors—brand spends and marquee events,
amongst others, increasingly migrating to digital. In
this slowed-down environment, resilience and
discipline became essential.

Shemaroo responded to these headwinds by
expanding thoughtfully and realigning its
investment strateqgy. Today, the Company operates

four television channels—two Hindi general
entertainment channels (Shemaroo TV and
Shemaroo Umang), a youth-oriented entertainment
channel (Chumbak TV) and a Marathi channel
(Shemaroo MarathiBana), collectively reaching more
than 300 million viewers. Despite escalating
competition and slower

advertisement markets, all

channels delivered steady
viewership and revenue, a
testament to prudent content
planning and unwavering
audiencefocus.
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By the end of FY25, Shemaroo's Hindi GEC
viewership stood at approximately 8.2% of the
genre's total audience, an outcome driven by a
curated content strategy spanning mythology,
fiction, animation, devotional and licensed formats.
Four new original shows were launched during the
year, further deepening audience engagement. As
the ecosystem continues to evolve, Shemaroo is
committed to staying nimble, adapting its content
and distribution strategies to meet the changing
expectations of viewers and advertisers alike.

On the syndication front, Shemaroo leverages one of
India's most extensive content libraries spanning
Hindi, Malayalam, Telugu,
Gujarati, Punjabi, Marathi,

Bengali, and more. Through
syndication deals with major
domestic satellite, cable and
terrestrial platforms and strong
partnerships built over the last

Annual Report 2024-25

three decades with broadcast networks in the USA,
UAE and Southeast Asia, the Company reaches
viewers bothinIndiaand globally.

Shemaroo has partnered with all leading DTH service
providers for their subscription-based, ad-free
content services across various genres such as
movies, TV shows and music in categories ranging
from devotion, thriller, comedy, Bollywood to
regional content. The Company holds a leading
position in the in-flight entertainment space and
syndicates contentto more than100 airlines.

The traditional television segment is undergoing a
period of transition, marked by shifting audience
behaviours, evolving advertiser preferences and the
growing influence of digital platforms. While
challenges persist, this evolution also presents
meaningful opportunities for agile and content-
driven players like Shemaroo. The Company
continues to believe that linear television will remain
a vital medium, particularly for mass audiences
across India where habits, access and trust are
deeply rooted. As television continues to transform,
Shemaroo will remain agile, data-informed and
audience-centricinits approach to value creation.
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Chairman and
Managing Director’s
Speech

14

Dear Shareholders,

India's economy grew by 6.5% in FY24-25, its slowest pace
since the pandemic and a notable drop from 9.2% in the
previous year. The slowdown was driven by subdued exports,
soft rural demand and tight global financial conditions.
Geopolitical tensions including the Russia-Ukraine war and
unrest in West Asia disrupted global trade and added volatility
to energy and commodity prices, weighing on India's external
sector. Despite these challenges, India remained among the
fastest-growing major economies. A stronger-than-expected
7.4% GDP growth in Q4 FY25 signalled resilience, supported
by robust government capex, improving private investment
and steady urban consumption. Inflation remained within
control,and services continued to lead growth. Looking ahead
to FY25-26, the outlook is cautiously optimistic. Growth is
projected to improve moderately next year supported by
easing global headwinds, improving rural sentiment, and
continued infrastructure push. However, risks from global
uncertainties, monsoon variability and the looming tariffs will
need close monitoring.

This year, we proudly marked the fifth anniversary of our
broadcasting business, which began in 2020. It has been a
rewarding journey of steady growth and learning. Over the
years, we have built a strong portfolio of four channels, put
together a capable and committed team and established a
solid distribution network. Most importantly, we've built a
loyal viewer base and created content that resonates with
both audiences and advertisers. Our channels have found a
meaningful place in the market, and we're excited to continue
building on this foundationinthe years ahead.

On ShemarooMe, we continued to deepen our connect with
the Gujarati community by curating a compelling mix of
blockbuster movies, original web series and popular plays.
This strong content offering further reinforced our brand
recall and affinity among Gujarati audiences.

Throughout the year, Shemaroo was honoured with over 80
awards and accolades, both nationally and internationally,

from leading platforms such as Promax, IndianTelevision.com
and many others.

We owe our sincere thanks to our shareholders, banking
partners, board members and employees, each of whom has
played a crucial role in our growth story. Your confidence,
commitment and insights have helped us navigate
uncertainties and turn aspirations into achievements. The
progress we've made is a reflection of the collective belief in
our purpose. Your continued trust energizes us to keep
pushing boundaries and pursuing our long-term vision. We're
grateful for your partnership and the impact you've made on
thisjourney.

Aswe navigated achallenging external environment, this year
was marked by prudent decisions and a strong focus on
operational discipline. With all our core pillars firmly in place,
we are well-positioned to unlock future opportunities. Our
commitment to long-term value creation for all stakeholders
remains unwavering. As we turn the page to a new chapter, we
do so with clarity of purpose, strategic focus and a deep belief
intheresilience and potential of our business.

Regards,
Raman Maroo
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CEO’s Speech

Dear Shareholders,

The Indian media and entertainment sector continued its
growth trajectory in 2024. The sector grew 3.3% in 2024,
adding INR 81 billion to reach INR 2.5 trillion. For the first time,
digital revenue surpassed TV revenues, contributing 32% of
revenues. Digital advertising grew by 17% to INR 700 billion
(55% of ad spends) and digital subscription revenue grew by
15%, with paid video subscriptions reaching 111 million
subscriptions across 47 million households. In contrast, TV
advertising revenues fell 6% and subscriptions 3%, marking
its second consecutive decline. This year also witnessed the
completion of the merger of the media assets of Viacom18
(Reliance) and Disney Star, a milestone that marked a
significant shiftintheindustry landscape

For the financial year 2024-25, your company's revenue was
INR 6,851 million, a decline of 3.1% YoY, while the EBITDA loss
was INR 798 million and the net loss was INR 850 million.
Digital media revenue for the financial year 2024-25 stood at
INR 2,520 million, a growth of 10.7% over previous year,
contributing to 37% of the topline, while traditional media
revenue stood at INR 4,331 million, a degrowth of 9.7% over
previousyear.

Our broadcasting business delivered a solid performance in
terms of both revenue and margins, despite operating in a
challenging advertising environment. The digital segment
saw strong growth, driven by increased viewership and
licensing to digital platforms. Our margins remained under
pressure due to ongoing accelerated inventory charge-offs,
part of a strategic initiative launched in the previous fiscal.
Excluding the impact of these charge-offs, the Company
reported healthy operating metrics, underscoring the
strength of its core fundamentals.

In our broadcasting business, we have embraced the FTA
model with a sharp focus on audience preferences and
consistent, creative content. Shemaroo TV has carved a niche
in mythological and historical storytelling, while Chumbak TV
appeals to multi-generational families with its mix of kids'
shows and family movies. This genre-led approach has helped

us build loyal audiences who return not just for content, but for
the context we uniquely offer.

In our digital business, ShemarooMe premiered a strong
lineup of successful theatrical releases, including titles such
as Vash, Lagan Special, BachuBhai, Kamthaan, Jhamkudi,
Raado, Udan Chhoo, Kale Lagan Chhe!?! and Ittaa Kittaa,
among others. Our original web series—including Goti Soda 5,
Santakukdi, Arranged With Love and Maatli
Chirani—continued to engage and resonate with audiences.
Throughout the year, we maintained a sharp focus on
profitability by rationalising both content investments and
customer acquisition costs. This year represented a phase of
consolidation, with a clear emphasis on sustainable growth
and value creation within our core markets.

We strengthened our standing as a key YouTube partner in
India, amassing a combined subscriber base of over 200
million across our network of channels. With daily views
consistently crossing the 100 million mark, our content
continues to resonate strongly with audiences, reflecting
sustained momentum and engagement. Our expansive
portfolio of genre-spanning premium content underscores
our leadership in the digital video space. Notably, 'Shemaroo
Filmi Gaane' secured the 33rd spot among the world's most
subscribed YouTube channels, reinforcing our global reach
anddigital influence.

The year posed challenges, especially in advertising and
industry consolidation led to further disruption. Yet, we
navigatedthe turbulence with prudence and discipline. Today,
we are strategically aligned with our long-term vision and
advancing with clarity. Our foundation comprising of right
talent, diversified revenue streams, trusted partnerships,
strong assets and robustinfrastructureis firmlyin place. As we
look ahead, we remain committed to sustainable value
creation for all stakeholders, with purpose at the heart of our
journey.

Yourssincerely,
Hiren Gada
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Raman Maroo
Chairman & Managing Director

He has an experience of approximately 51 years, out of which
he has spentaround 42 yearsin the Media and Entertainment
Industry. He has been instrumental in the Group's expansion
into television rights syndication as well as transformation of
Shemaroo into an established filmed entertainment content
house. He has always remained the driving force in the
Company, takingitinto new directions.

Atul Maru

Joint Managing Director

He has around 45 years of experience in the Media and
Entertainment industry. He has managed the transition of the
Company from VHS days to today's multi-platform
operations. He has been actively involved in the operations of
the Company and has spearheaded various initiatives
includingthe home video division of our Company.

Hiren Gada

WTD & CEO

He has been at the helm of driving the corporate & financial
growth, digital direction, strategy, and the transformation of
the company from a family run business to a professional
corporate firm. He has approximately 29 years of work
experience, out of which, he has around 22 years of
experience in the Media and Entertainment Industry. He is an
industry thought leader and brings a fresh perspective to the
M&E spacein India.

Jai Maroo
Executive Director

He has experience in the technology industry in USA and
Singapore and approximately 21 years of experience in the
Media and Entertainment industry. Given his strong technical
background, he has catalyzed Shemaroo's expansion on
digital distribution platforms such as Mobile, Internet, OTT etc.

A4

—— ‘ ’,

Rajen Gada
Independent Director

He is a Chartered Accountant and Insolvency Professional
having experience of 21 years. He has vast experience in
Compliance domain pertaining to Securities Law, Corporate
Law. He specializes in Restructuring, Acquisitions and
Mergers, Due Diligence, Takeovers, SEBI Exemption and
Consent applications, LODR & ICDR Compliance, Listing
matters, FEMA, Insolvency, NBFC Registrations and
Takeovers.

Abbas Contractor
Independent Director

He has more than 31 years experience in Home and Office
Interior.

Sunil Kumar Bansal

Independent Director

He is a Chartered Accountant and a Certified Associate of the
Indian Institute of Bankers. He has a rich experience of about
22 years in banking sector handling numerous restructuring
and syndication advisory cases as aninvestment banker. He is
also a Registered Insolvency Professional and is also an
advisory underInsolvency and Bankruptcy Code.

Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia

Independent Director

She is an accomplished Chartered Accountant with over 20
years of extensive experience in corporate finance,
governance, and risk management. She has a proven track
record of enhancing organizational performance through
strategic oversight and effective decision-making.
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DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global Economy

In 2024, the global economy expanded at a steady yet
subdued pace, with real GDP growth estimated at 3.2%,
mirroring the previous year. This marks the weakest five-
year stretch since the 1990s, as persistent structural
challenges and geopolitical uncertainties weighed on
momentum. Advanced economies grew modestly,
averaging 1.7%, with Germany slipping into a mild
recession (-0.2%). In contrast, the U.S. economy
outperformed expectations, growing by approximately
2.6%, supported by resilient consumer demand. Emerging
markets and developing economies continued to be the
engine of global growth, posting gains around 4.2-4.4%.
South Asia led regional performance with growth nearing
6%, driven by India and Southeast Asia. China's growth,
however, moderated to around 4.8%, reflecting domestic
imbalances and weaker external demand. Trade
disruptions, including renewed tariff tensions, volatile
energy prices, and ongoing geopolitical flashpoints,
notably in Eastern Europe and the Middle East, added
uncertainty to the global outlook.

Based on the current international economic and political
landscape and the world economic situation, the world
economy in 2025 will stay on the track of low-to-medium
growth, with an estimated growth rate of about 3.0%.
Emerging markets and developing economies will
continue to grow significantly faster than developed
economies. Structural reforms, investment in green
infrastructure, and productivity-enhancing initiatives will
be essential for unlocking long-term potential. The
possibility of a significant fall in world economic growth
due to geopolitical turmoil or escalatory trade frictions
cannotberuledout.

Indian Economy

India's economy grew by 6.5% in FY2024-25, its slowest
pace since the pandemic and a sharp moderation from
9.2% in the previous year. The deceleration stemmed from
weak export demand, tepid rural consumption, and tight
global financial conditions. Elevated geopolitical
tensions—including the Red Sea disruptions, the prolonged
Russia-Ukraine conflict, and instability in West
Asia—added pressure on trade routes and energy prices,

weighing onthe external sector.

Despite global headwinds, India maintained its position
among the fastest-growing major economies, supported
by robust government capital spending, a stable services
sector, and resilient domestic consumption. Agricultural
growth accelerated, aided by improved yields and
favourable weather, while manufacturing output
moderated due tosubdued global demand.

Inflation remained largely contained, helped by easing
food prices and prudent monetary policy. In a notable
policy shift, the Reserve Bank of India initiated rate cuts in
early 2025, supporting growth without jeopardizing
macroeconomic stability. Private investment, however,
remained cautious amid global uncertainties.

Looking ahead to FY2025-26, India's growth outlook
remains cautiously optimistic, with a projected GDP
expansion of 6.5%, supported by an improving global
backdrop, better rural sentiment, and continued
infrastructure investments. The inflation rate is expected
tomoderate further to 4.3%, assuming a normal monsoon.
However, risks persist with geopolitical uncertainties,
tariff-related tensions and volatile commodity prices, that
may impact growthin next fiscal.

Media and Entertainment Industry

The Indian Media & Entertainment (M&E) sector
maintained its growth momentum in 2024, albeit at a
slower pace, expanding by 3.3% or INR 81 billion to reach
INR 2.5 trillion. This growth, while moderate compared to
previous years, reflects the sector's continued resilience
and evolution. The M&E sector contributed 0.73% to
India's GDP and stood 30% above its pre-pandemic 2019
levels. However, key traditional segments—television,
print, and radio—continued to trail their 2019 revenue
benchmarks, underscoring ongoing structural shifts
within the industry.

For the first time, digital media overtook television to
become the largest contributor to M&E revenues,
accounting for 32% of the total revenue. New media, which
includes digital media and online gaming—grew by INR 113
billion (12%) and now represents 41% of the industry. In
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in INR Bn 2019 2022 2023
Digital Media 308 57 686
Television 788 726 m
Print 296 250 259
Online Gaming 64 222 236
Filmed Entertainment 191 172 197
Animation and VFX 95 107 14
Live Events 83 73 88
Out of Home Media 51 48 54
Music 15 46 54
Radio 31 21 23
Total 1,922 2,237 | 2,422

2024

802
679
260
232
187
103
101
59
53
25
2,502

20256 2027E L0, ST (2024- 2027)
903 1,104 16.9% 1N1.2%
676 667 -4.5% -0.6%
262 267 0.4% 0.9%
260 316 -17% 10.8%
196 213 -51% 4.3%

13 147 -9.6% 12.5%
19 167 14.8% 18.2%
66 79 9.3% 10.2%
60 78 -1.9% 13.4%
27 30 87% 6.6%
2,682 3,067 3.3% 7.0%

Source: FICCI-EY

contrast, core traditional media segments (television,
print, radio, and music) saw revenues decline by 3% or INR
30 billion, reducing their collective share to 41%. Outside-
the-home media (filmed entertainment, live events, and
out-of-home advertising) posted a modest 3% growth and
now contribute 14% to the sector.

Advertising revenues increased by 8.1%, led by strong
growth in digital performance marketing, increased brand
spending on e-commerce platforms, rising demand for
premium and digital out-of-home inventory, and the
continued resilience of print and radio advertising in local
markets. However, subscription revenues fell due to
multiple factors: a loss of six million Pay TV homes,
declining theatrical admissions, underperformance at the
box office (with film revenues down 5.6%), and a drop in
real-money gaming revenues following the
implementation of higher GST rates.

Content production volumes were also affected. Animation
and VFX revenues declined by 9.4% due to a slowdown in
global and domestic demand, ongoing supply chain issues,
and industry disruptions such as the writers' strike in the
U.S. Premium OTT content volumes shrank by 12% as
platforms prioritized fewer, higher-quality releases.
Looking ahead, the M&E sector is projected to grow by
7.2% in 2025 to reach INR 2.68 trillion and is expected to
continue growing at a CAGR of 7% to reach INR 3.07 trillion
by 2027.

Source:

https://www.ndtv.com/india-news/rbi-raises-indias-gdp-growth-projection-to-7-2-for-2024-25-5838902
https://www.livemint.com/market/stock-market-news/rbi-monetary-policy-mpc-keeps-fy25-inflation-forecast-unchanged-at-45-11717734981629.html|

Television Segment

The television segment continued to face headwinds in
2024, with revenues declining by 4.5%—marking the
second consecutive year of contraction following a 2%
decline in 2023. This downturn was driven by weakness
across both advertising and distribution revenue streams.
Television advertising revenues fell by 6%, primarily due to
a similar reduction in ad volumes and a 12% drop in the
number of brands advertising on the medium. Distribution
revenues declined by 3%, reflecting a 6% reduction in Pay
TV households, a net loss of 6 million subscribers, bringing
the total down to 111 million. This was only partially offset
by a marginal increase in average revenue per user
(ARPU).

Television Industry Revenue (in INR Bn)

2022 2023 2024 2025E

2027E

W Advertising Distribution

Source: FICCI-EY
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Despite these declines, connected TV adoption continued
toexpand.The number of active connected TV sets grew to
50 million, with approximately 30 million connecting to
the internet on a weekly basis. Free television also saw
growth, largely driven by Prasar Bharati's FreeDish
platform, which expanded its reach to approximately 49
million homes.

From a viewership perspective, overall television
impressions remained flat year-over-year. The cumulative
weekly reach of television stood at 753 million viewers,
compared to 758 million in 2023. Notably, average daily
time spent increased slightly to three hours and forty-two
minutes. General entertainment channels (GECs) and
movies accounted for 75% of total viewership—a trend that
has remained stable over the past seven years. News
channels recorded a 13% increase in viewership,
supported by general and state elections. Conversely,
sports viewership declined by 27%, despite marquee
eventssuchasthelPLandT20 Cricket World Cup.

Looking ahead, structural shifts in viewing habits are
expected to continue. Pay TV households are projected to
decline further, reaching 95 million by 2027, as large-
screenviewershipincreasingly migrates toconnected TVs.
Free TV is expected to expand to 53 million homes, while
connected TV households are projected to grow to 48
million by 2027 from 30 million today, driven by rising
broadband penetration.

Given the ongoing challenges, linear TV advertising
revenues are expected to remain under pressure, with a
projected CAGR of just 1.2%, reaching INR 305 billion by
2027. Subscription revenues are also expected to decline
ata CAGR of 2%, fallingto INR 362 billion by 2027.

Digital Media Segment

Digital media was the fastest growing and largest segment
oftheIndian Media & Entertainment (M&E) sectorin 2024,
growing 17% to reach INR 802 billion and overtaking
television for the first time. With a 32% share of the total
sector, digital media now sits at the heart of India's media
landscape.

Advertising continues to dominate, contributing 87% of
total digital revenues. Digital advertising grew 17% to INR
700 billion, led by increased performance-led spending
across search, social, and e-commerce platforms. Search

Annual Report 2024-25

and social media (including YouTube premium) accounted
for INR 488 billion or 61% of total digital revenues. E-
commerce platforms, drawing spends from trade and
promotion budgets, contributed 18%, surpassing
entertainment and sports streaming platforms, which
garnered 17%, led by JioHotStar, Prime Video, Sony LIV,
Netflix,among others.

Digital subscription revenues grew 15%, reaching
approximately INR 107 billion. Video continued to
dominate with a 90% share, rising 1% to INR 92 billion.
Around 47 million households held 111 million video OTT
subscriptions including bundled subscriptions, averaging
2.3 subscriptions per household.

Digital Media Industry Revenue (in INR Bn)

957
700 784
597

2022 2023 2024 2025E 2027E

m Advertising Subscription

Source: FICCI-EY

India's digital infrastructure remains strong. The country
had 945 million broadband subscribers, the second-
largest base globally—and 562 million smartphone users,
representing 39% of the population. Wired broadband
homes stood at 46 million, enabling large-screen digital
consumption comparable to DTH and cable. Monthly
active connected TV sets reached 50 million, while video
viewership grew 3% to 551 million, covering 98% of
smartphone users. Telecom subscriptions remained
steady at1.19 billion.
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Digital media is projected to be the first M&E segment in
India to cross INR 1trillion by 2026, reaching INR 1.1 trillion
by 2027ata11% CAGR. By then,itis expectedto contribute
36% of the M&E sector. Digital advertising will grow at a

Key Financial Ratios

Standalone

Ratios

FY24-25 FY23-24
Debtors Turnover Ratio 5.34 5.10
Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.05 0.96
Interest Coverage Ratio -2.48 -0.25
Current Ratio 1.99 2.09
Debt Equity Ratio 0.64 0.61
Operating Profit Margin (%) -14.0% -1.3%
Net Profit Margin (%) -13.5% -6.4%
Return on Net Worth -19.4% -1.6%

Annual Report 2024-25

CAGR of 11% to INR 957 billion by 2027, while digital
subscription revenues are expected to rise at a13% CAGR
to INR 147 billion, driven by wider adoption of SVOD and
continued expansion of connected devices.

Consolidated

FY22-23  FY24-25  FY23-24  FY22-23
5.98 5.45 5.20 6.07

074 110 1.00 077

1.32 -2.32 -0.16 1.37

2.30 2.01 2.09 2.29
0.54 0.64 0.62 0.55
73% -12.5% -0.8% 7.6%
1.2% 12.4% -5.9% 1.5%
6.6% -18.3% 11% 72%

Source: FICCI-EY

The decrease in debtors turnover ratio is attributable to
increaseinaverage debtors. Theinventory turnoverratiois
increased due to increase in sales and better market
conditions. The interest coverage ratio decreased due to
loss incurred in current year. The decrease in current ratio
is attributable to increase in trade payables and current

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

borrowings. The debt equity ratio increased due to loss
incurred in current year. The operating profit margin
decreased due to operating loss incurred in current year.
The net profit margin decreased due to loss incurred in
currentyear.Thereturnon net worth decreased due to loss
incurredin currentyear.

This report comprises the facts and figures along with assumptions, strategy, goal, and intentions of the Company which may
be “forward-looking”. The Company's actual results and performance may differ considerably from those presented herein. The
Company's performance is dependent upon global and national economic conditions, the price of commodities, business risk,

changes in the Government's rules and requlations and so on.
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Board’s Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors’ take pleasure in submitting 20™" Annual
Report on the business and operations of your Company
together with the Audited Financial Accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025.

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(% in Lakhs)
. Current year | Previous year
Particulars | 2024-25 2023-24 |
Total Income 65,985 68,189
Total expenditure 77,849 72,224
Profit /Loss Before Taxation (11,864) (4,035)
Tax Expenses (3,115) 227
Profit After Taxation (8,750) (4,263)
Other Comprehensive Income (27) (78)
Total comprehensive income/ (8,777) (4,341)
(loss) for the year
2. OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
During the year under review, Standalone Revenue from
Operations & Other Income has decreased to ¥ 65,985
Lakhs as against ¥ 68,189 Lakhs in the previous year
and Consolidated Revenue from Operations & Other
Income has decreased to ¥ 69,354 Lakhs as compared
to¥ 71,208 Lakhs in the previous year.
Your Company had a standalone Net loss of ¥ 8,750
Lakhs as compared to Net loss of ¥ 4,263 in the
previous financial year and a consolidated net loss
T 8,496 Lakhs as compared to Net loss of ¥ 4067 Lakhs
in the previous financial year.
There have been no materialchanges and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statements relate
and up-to the date of this Report.
3. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, the Company has 4
subsidiaries.

Under the year of review, Shemaroo Think Tank
Entertainment LLP (‘the LLP’), wherein the Company
was in possession of 99.999% share of partnership,
has applied for closure of LLP and strike off the name
of the LLP under Rule 37 (1) (b) of the Limited Liability
Partnership Rule, 2009 on the basis of de-functioning
of the said LLP.

Further,the application was made vide LLP Form 24 vide
SRN M29448177 dated 27/11/2024 for striking off the
name of ‘SHEMAROO THINK TANK ENTERTAINMENT
LLP’ (‘the LLP’) and the same was approved by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its email dated
March 07, 2025.

Financial Statements

Also, ShemarooVerse Digital Limited, a Wholly Owned
Foreign Subsidiary, was incorporated as a Private
Company under the Companies Law, DIFC Law No. 5
of 2018 and Companies Requlations 2018 on February
04,2025 with registered number 9893 in Dubai.

The said Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary was
incorporated with the following objects:

1. To innovate and staying ahead in the evolving
digital entertainment landscape.

2. Focus on creating immersive engagements and
leveraging blockchain technology to redefine
ownership and interaction in the entertainment
ecosystem.

3. Establishadedicatedentityin Dubai,as Dubaioffers
a Web3 friendly requlatory environment, which is
critical for seamless token-based transactions and
blockchain integration. The region also provides
access to world-class partnerships, a robust talent
pool, and cutting-edge infrastructure to support
the development of a globally competitive product.

4. To position Shemaroo as a leader in the Web3 and
Metaverse space, ensuring scalability, innovation,
and long-term growth. It aligns with Shemaroo’s
vision of creating transformative consumer
experiences and strengthening Shemaroo’s
position in the next era of entertainment.

Hence, the number of subsidiaries of the company at
the end of March 31,2025 is 4 (Four).

There has been no change in nature of business of the
subsidiaries / associate.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement in
Form AOC-1 containing salient features of financial
positions of the subsidiaries / associate company is
provided as ‘Annexure A’ in this Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136
of the Act, financial statements of the Company,
consolidated financial statements along with relevant
documents, and separate audited accounts in respect
of subsidiaries, are available at Company’s website
www.shemarooent.com under Investors section.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company
does not have any material subsidiary companies
as defined in the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Policy
for determining Material Subsidiaries of the Company
is available on the Company’s website at
www.shemarooent.com under Investors section.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is
presented in a separate section, which forms part of this
Report.
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10.

1.

12.

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve the resources, your Directors
have not recommended any dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount
to General Reserve.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year under review, your Company
has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Act read with Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to provisions of Section 92 of the Act read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return in Form
MGT 7 will be available on the website of the Company
at General Meeting Corner https://www.shemarooent.
com/investors/

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION

The Company had launched UDAAN - an Employees
Stock Option Scheme in 2021 to reward employees
based on their long-term association, performance and
to further motivate them to contribute towards growth
and profitability of the Company.

A Certificate from Secretarial Auditor onimplementation
of the scheme in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Requlations, 2021 (including
any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s)
thereof) is given as ‘Annexure B’ to this report.

No employees were issued stock options during the
year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the time of grant.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,
INVESTMENTS

GUARANTEES OR

Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments
made during the year as required under Section 186 and
any other provisions of the Act and Schedule V of the
SEBI Listing Regulations are provided in Notes 5a and
8d of the Standalone Financial Statements.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, CARE Ratings revised
their rating as below:

(1) “CARE BB; Stable” revised from “CARE BB+; Stable”
for Long Term Bank Facilities of ¥ 215 Crores.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS / COURTS

During the year under review, Order from Office of the
Principal Commissioner of CGST & CX, Mumbai - East,
dated February 05, 2025, received on February 05,

13.
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2025 passed on reply to Show Cause Notice dated
August 02, 2024.

The said Order was in respect of demand and order
recovery of inadmissible Input Tax Credit (ITC) allegedly
amounting to ¥ 70.26 crores, along with the alleged
interest at the applicable rate and penalty equal to
aforementioned tax amount under Section 74 (1) of
CGST Act, 2017 read with Section 20 of the IGST Act,
2017.

Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 63.35 crores under
Section 122(1)(ii) & (x) & Section 122 (2) (b) of CGST Act,
2017 read with Section 20 of the IGST Act, 2017.

The above has been taken as contingent liability in
Notes 33.4 and 34.4 of Standalone and consolidated
Financial Statements respectively.

Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 133.61 crores each on
Joint Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company under Section
122(1A) of the CGST Act, 2017 and MGST Act, 2017.

Based on the Company’s assessment, the alleged
demand set out under the said Order is not maintainable
in law. Further, the Company has adopted the necessary
legal remedies to challenge the said Order including
filing necessary appeal proceedings against the same.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5)
of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of their
knowledge and ability confirm that:

1. in preparation of Annual Accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2025, applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

2. have selected such Accounting Policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the financial year ended March
31,2025 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

3. proper and sufficient care for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safequarding assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irreqularities;

4. Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31,
2025 have been prepared on a going concern
basis;

5. proper internal financial controls to be followed
by the Company has been laid down and that such
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internal controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws has been devised
and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

14. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

a.

Directors

The second tenure of Mr. Vasanji Mamania (DIN:
00013071) and Mr. Gnanesh Gala (DIN: 00093008)
as the Independent Directors of the Company was
completed on May 25, 2024.

Mr. Rajen Gada (DIN: 01642360) was appointed as
an Additional Independent Director by the Board of
Directors on May 24, 2024 which was regularized
by the Shareholders via Postal Ballot in July 2024.

Mr. Abbas Contractor (DIN: 00637326) was
appointed as an Additional Independent Director
by the Board of Directors on May 24, 2024 which
was reqularized by the Shareholders via Postal
Ballot in July 2024.

Mr. Jai Buddhichand Maroo (DIN: 00169399) was
re-appointed as the Executive Director of the
Company with effect from May 13, 2024 which was
approved by the Shareholders via Postal Ballot in
July 2024.

The second tenure of Dr. CA Reeta Shah (DIN:
07141304) as the Independent Directors of the
Company was completed on March 27, 2025.

Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia (DIN: 00914691) has
been appointed as an Additional Independent
Director by the Board of Directors on March 24,
2025 subject to approval of the Shareholders.

Mr. Jai Buddhichand Maroo (DIN: 00169399),
Executive Director is liable to retire by rotation at
the 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The Company has received declarations from all
Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet the criteria of independence as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Requlations. Further, in opinion of the
Board, all Independent Directors possess integrity,
expertise and experience including the proficiency
required to be Independent Directors of the
Company, fulfil all the conditions of independence
asspecifiedinthe Actand SEBI Listing Reqgulations.

Key Managerial Personnel

During this financial year there were no change in
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013; Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
as on March 31,2025 are:

i. Mr. Raman Maroo - Chairman & Managing
Director

ii.  Mr. Atul Maru - Jt. Managing Director

iii.  Mr.Hiren Gada - Chief Executive Officer &
Whole Time Director

iv.  Mr. Amit Haria - Chief Financial Officer

v.  Ms. Pooja Sutradhar - Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Meetings of Board of Directors:

During the year under review, the Board met
6 (Six) times. Details of the Board meetings and
attendance of the Directors is provided in the
Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of
this report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of four members.
The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director. The Committee met 4 (four) times during
the year. Details pertaining to composition of Audit
Committee and terms of reference are included in
the Corporate Governance Report, which forms
part of this Report.

Performance Evaluation of the Board

As per provision of the Act and Requlation 17 of
SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried
out an annual performance evaluation of its own
performance and that of its Committees as well as
performance of all the Directors individually, was
carried out internally. The performance evaluation
of Chairman was carried out by the Independent
Directors in their separate meeting without the
attendance of the Executive Directors.

Feedback was sought by way of a structured
guestionnaire, based on the criteria approved by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, for
evaluation of performance of Board, Committees
of Board and Individual Directors. The outcome of
evaluation was shared with the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Board and the Directors
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

Familiarisation Programme of Independent
Directors

The Company undertook  familiarization
programme for familiarizing Director’s with
the Company’s operations and other relevant
information, which would enable them to take well
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informed decisions todischarge theresponsibilities
and functions conferred on them. Details of
familiarization programme imparted are placed
on Company’s website at www.shemarooent.com
under Investors section.

Policy on Appointment and Remuneration

In accordance with provisions of the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Nomination & Remuneration of
Directors and Senior Management Employees
on recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee. The main objective
of the said policy is to identify individuals
for appointment on the Board and at senior
management level of the Company, designation
and composition of remuneration is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate.
Details of the said Policy is given in the Corporate
Governance Report.

15. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

a.

Statutory Auditors

M/s Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered
Accountants, (ICAl Firm Registration Number
106655W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a period of five consecutive years
from conclusion of 16" Annual General Meeting
held in the year 2021, till conclusion of 21t Annual
General Meeting to be held in the calendar year
2026.

The Report given by the Auditors on the
financial statements of the Company is part of
Annual Report. There has been no qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given
by Auditors in their Report. Further, Statutory
Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud
to the Audit Committee of the Company during the
year under review.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board of Directors of the Company in their
meeting dated February 07, 2024 has appointed
M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Company
Secretaries in Practice (Membership no. FCS
7956 and Certificate of Practice no. 6740) as
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

In terms of Reqgulation 24A read with other
applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing
Requlations and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required
to appoint Secretarial Auditors for a period of
5 years commencing FY2025-26, to conduct
the secretarial audit of the Company in terms of
Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the

16.
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Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A
and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The Audit Committee considered the findings
of the Management and recommended to the
Board, the appointment of M/s Dilip Bharadiya
& Associates as the secretarial auditors of the
Company for a period of five years commencing
from the conclusion of the this 20" Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 25" Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2030, for conducting secretarial audit of the
Company for the period beginning from FY2025-
26 through the FY2029-30.

The Board considered the recommendation
of the Audit Committee with respect to the
appointment of M/s Dilip Bharadiya & Associates
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. Based
on due consideration, the Board approved the
appointment of M/s Dilip Bharadiya & Associates
for a period of 5 years commencing from the
conclusion of the ensuing 20™ Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 25" Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year
2030, for conducting secretarial audit of the
Company for the period beginning from FY2025-
26 through the FY2029-30 in it’s meeting held on
May 13, 2025, subject to approval of shareholders
in this 20" AGM.

The above proposal and related information forms
part of the Notice of the AGM and is placed for your
approval.

The Secretarial Audit Report is given as an
‘Annexure C’ to this report.

The Secretarial Compliance Report for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, in relation
to compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations/
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, pursuant
to requirement of Regulation 24A of Listing
Regulations, was submitted to Stock Exchange(s).

There are no qualifications, reservations, or
adverse remarks in the Secretarial Audit and
Secretarial Compliance Report issued by them for
the financial year 2024-25.

RELATED PARTY CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS

All Related Party Transactions executed in financial
year 2024-25 were on arms’ length basis and in
the ordinary course of business. All related party
transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
for their prior approval and details of the related party
transactions undertaken during a particular quarter are
placed at the meeting of the Audit Committee held in
the succeeding quarter.
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Duringtheyear,there were norelated party transactions
which were materially significant and that could have a
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large. Accordingly, there are no transactions that are
required to be reported in Form AOC 2. All related party
transactions are mentioned in notes to the accounts.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved
by the Board is placed on the Company’s website at
www.shemarooent.com under Investors section.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND COMPLIANCE
FRAMEWORK

The Company’s Internal Control Systems are
commensurate with nature of its business, size, scale
and complexity of its operations. Internal auditing,
of the Company, involves utilisation of a systematic
methodology for analysing business processes or
organisational problems and recommending solutions
to add value and improve the processes. The audit
approach verifies compliance with regulatory,
operational and system related procedures and
controls. It includes control processes both on manual
and IT applications including application wherein the
transactions are approved and recorded. Such controls
have been assessed during the year under review taking
into consideration the essential components of internal
controls.

The Company has appointed M/s. VVMP & Co,,
Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of
the Company. Internal Auditors formulates the audit
plan, scope, functioning and methodology, which are
reviewed every year, in a manner that they cover all
areas of operations. The Audit Committee periodically
deliberates on operations of the Company with the
Members of the Management. Reports of the internal
auditors are reqularly reviewed by the management and
corrective action is initiated to strengthen the controls
and enhance the effectiveness of the existing systems.
Significant audit observations and follow up actions
thereon are reported to the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy,
pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Act and
Requlation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Company
has a robust organisational structure for managing and
reporting on risks.

The Senior Management periodically reviews the
risk management framework to keep updated and
address emerging challenges. Risk assessment and
management procedures and status are discussed at
the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

In terms of Requlation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Constitution of Risk Management Committee was
not applicable during the financial year 2024-2025.

19.

20.
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WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the Act and
SEBI Listing Requlations is implemented through the
Company’s Whistle Blower Policy. This policy provides
formal vigil mechanism to the Directors and employees
to report their concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual / suspected fraud or wrongful conduct within the
Company. The Policy provides for adequate safequards
against victimization of employees who avail of the
mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no
personnel of the Company has been denied access to
the Audit Committee.

Your Company hereby confirms that no complaints
were received during the year under review.

The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are available on
the website of the Company at www.shemarooent.com
under Investors section.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND / UNPAID
SHARES/ SHARE APPLICATION MONEY DUE FOR
REFUND TO IEPF

Pursuant to applicable provisions of Section 124 and 125
of the Act read with Investor Education and Protection
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016, all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are
required to be transferred by the Company to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by
the Central Government, after completion of seven
years. Further, according to the Rules, the shares in
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed
by the Members for seven consecutive years or more
shall also be transferred to the demat account created
by IEPF Authority.

Shareholders who have not claimed their dividend
warrants or share application money due for refund are
requested to immediately send their request for issue of
duplicate warrants.

The details of unclaimed dividend as on March 31,2025
are as follows:

Sr. Date of DU
N(; Particular declaration for transfer
: to IEPF
1. Unclaimed Final 24.09.2019 29.10.2026

Dividend for
FY 2018-2019
2. Unclaimed Final 11.09.2018 1710.2025
Dividend for
FY 2017-2018

Pursuant to section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 as amended, (‘the Rules’), the Company has
remitted unclaimed Dividend of ¥ 10,/70/- being
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21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

amount remaining unpaid relating to the financial year
2016-17 to ‘Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) Authority established by the Central Government.

The Company has placed on its website
www.shemarooent.com, information on dividends and

application money which remain unclaimed with the
Company. The information is also available on website
of Ministry of Corporate Affairs i.e. www.mca.gov.in.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL
RIGHTS

During the year under review, the Company has not
issued equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2025, authorized share capital of the
Company was ¥ 60,00,00,000/- (Sixty Crores) and
issued and paid-up equity share capital as on March 31,
2025, was ¥ 27,32,02,990/- comprising of 2,73,20,299
equity shares of T 10 each.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with corporate governance
requirements as stipulated under SEBI Listing
Requlations. The Report on Corporate Governance,
alongwith Certificate from Auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate
Governance, as stipulated wunder SEBI Listing
Regulations is annexed as ‘Annexure D’ and forms part
of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with all
Secretarial Standards issued by the
Company Secretaries of India.

applicable
Institute of

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The information relating to Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption required under Rule 8(3)(A)
and 8(3)(B) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to the Company due to the very nature of the
industry in which it operates. However, we endeavour
to support the environment by adopting environment
friendly practices in our office premises.

In view of the nature of activities which are being carried
on by the Company, information in connection with
technology absorption is Nil.

Particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings
and outgo during the year are given in Note 28.2 of
Standalone Financial Statements forming part of this
Report.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

At Shemaroo, we believe that our employees are
valuable resources working to drive the organization’s
growth. The strategic alignment of Human Resource
department to our business priorities is therefore
critical. The Company takes pride in commitment,
competence, and dedication of its employeesin all areas
of the business. Attracting, developing, and retaining
the right talent will continue to be a key strategic
imperative, and the organization continues to maintain
a steady focus towards that.

Your Company has well laid down, objective and
transparent processes for Recruitment, Selection,
Performance Management and Talent Management.
To maintain its competitive edge in a highly dynamic
industry, it recognizes the importance of having a
workforce which is consumer-focused, performance-
driven, and future-capable. The Company is committed
to nurturing, enhancing, and retaining its top talent
through  superior learning and organizational
development, and by shaping a performance culture
that brings out the best in our people.

The total employee strength at the end of financial year
2024-25is 620.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS
OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure with respect to remuneration as required
under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended as
‘Annexure E’ to the Board’s Report.

The information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part of this Report.
However, as per Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual
Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the
shareholders of the Company excluding the aforesaid
information. The said information is available for
inspection by shareholders at the Registered Office
of the Company during working hours for a period of
21 days before the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
shall be made available to any shareholder on request.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has in place, policy for prevention of
sexual harassment at workplaces in line with the
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and conducted
sessions for employees across the organization to
sensitise employees and build awareness on Prevention
of Sexual Harassment at workplace. Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment.
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During the year under review, there were no complaints
received regarding sexual harassment which was
referred to the ICC.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the
Committee is to review CSR Policy, indicate activities
to be undertaken by the Company towards CSR and
formulate a transparent monitoring mechanism to
ensure implementation of projects and activities
undertaken by the Company towards CSR.

A brief outline of the CSR Policy of the Company, CSR
initiatives undertaken during the financial year 2024-
25 together with progress thereon and report on CSR
activities as required by the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, are set out in
‘Annexure F’ to this Report.

The CSR policy is available on our website at
www.shemarooent.com under Investors section.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those
which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward
looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Although expectations are based
on reasonable assumptions, actual results might differ
substantially or materially from those expressed or
implied. Important developments that could affect
the Company’s operations including but not limited
to changes in exchange rate fluctuations, tax laws,
litigation, labour relations, interest costs, political and
economic environment.

31.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

AsShemaroostepsintoanewera,the Companyisgeared
towards tapping into endless possibilities, business
opportunities and new avenues; thereby continuing
to create the magic of entertainment. In the process,
the Company strongly believes it will contribute to the
progress of all its stakeholders by delivering long term
and sustainable business growth that creates value for
one and all.

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their
sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation
extended by shareholders, customers, bankers, financial
institutions, government authorities and other business
associates.

The Board also gratefully acknowledges for the
exemplary contribution made by the employees of the
Company at all levels for achieving business goals.
Their dedicated efforts and enthusiasm have been
pivotal to enable the Company to navigate this period
with confidence. The Board of Directors would also like
to thank all stakeholders for their continued confidence
and trust placed by them with the Company. We look
forward to continued support of all these partners in
progress.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Raman Maroo
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN:

Sd/-
Atul Maru
Jt. Managing Director

00169152 DIN: 00169264

Mumbai
May 13,2025
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Annexure B

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Certificate by the Secretarial Auditor for the Financial year ended March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Regulation 13 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 (as amended)]

The Board of Directors,

SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative Ind. Estate,
Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our service with Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (hereinafter the
“Company”).

1.

We have examined the Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021 of the Company (hereinafter referred as the “Scheme”)
which was approved by the shareholders by way of a Special Resolution passed on January 16, 2022, to determine
whether the Scheme is in compliance with the relevant provisions of Chapter Il and Part A of Chapter Il of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Reqgulations, 2021 (“SEBI Regulations”).
We understand that this certificate is required to be placed by the Company at its ensuing Annual General Meeting for the
Financial Year 2024-25.

Management’s Responsibility

2.

Management is responsible for:

l. Maintaining the information and documents, which are required to be kept and maintained under the relevant laws
and reqgulations;

Il.  Preparing and implementing the Scheme in accordance with the SEBI Requlations and the special resolution passed
by the shareholders of the Company; and

[ll.  Establishing and maintaining effective internal control for properly recording the information related to the Scheme
in the records maintained by the Company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Pursuant to this, our responsibility is to express reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has
complied with the relevant provisions of the SEBI Requlations in respect of the Scheme during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025.

A reasonable assurance engagement includes performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
on the reporting criteria. In this connection, we have obtained necessary representations from management and on
test check basis, we have verified the signed exercise letters with respect to the exercise of Stock Options by eligible
grantees, the Circular Resolutions passed by the Security Committee of the Board of Directors, from time to time, thereby
approving the allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the exercise of Stock Options and sighted in-principle and listing &
trading approvals obtained from the Stock Exchanges, as may be necessary from time to time along with its filings with
the Stock Exchanges as and when the Stock Options were exercised as per the Statement specified by SEBI in this regard,
in accordance with Clause 10(c) of the SEBI Regulations.

Our examination was limited to procedures adopted by the Company for complying with the conditions of the
SEBI Regulations. Further, our scope of work did not involve us performing audit test for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken
as a whole. We have not performed an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion of the financial
statements, specific elements, accounts or items thereof, for the purpose of the certificate. Accordingly, we do not express
such opinion.

We have noresponsibility to update this certificate for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this certificate.

Based on the representation from the management, we understand that there have been no changes in the Scheme post
approval which are not in compliance with the SEBI requlations and there is no other employee share based scheme
covered under SEBI Reqgulations.
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Opinion

8. Based on the procedures performed by us, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm
that the Company has complied with the relevant provisions of the SEBI Requlations in respect of the Scheme during the
financial year ended on March 31, 2025.

Restriction on Use

9. This Certificate has been prepared at the request of the management for the purpose mentioned above. It should not to
be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of
care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

Sd/-

DILIP BHARADIYA

Partner

FCS No.7956 C P No. 6740
UDIN: FO07956G000329706

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13,2025
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Annexure C
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

To,

The Members,

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (each, as amended)]

SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative Ind. Estate,
Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate
governance practices by Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

We have verified the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit. We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31t March, 2025 (“the audit period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

1.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
as given in Annexure |, during the financial year ended on 31t March, 2025, according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Requlations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Requlations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - to the extent applicable;

The following Reqgulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(“SEBI Act”) and circulars issued thereunder:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Requlations, 2015;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2018;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Requlations, 2021,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
(Not applicable as the Company has not issued any non-convertible debt securities during the financial
year under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client (Not applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year under review);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Requlations, 2021 (Not applicable
as the Company has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial year
under review);
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable as the
Company has not bought back any of its equity shares during the financial year under review);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”);

(j)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 and bye-laws
framed thereunder - to the extent applicable.

We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Requlations to the Company and report of the Statutory
Auditor, Internal Auditor and other designated professionals. The List of other Laws / Rules/ Regulations applicable to the
Company is given in Annexure Il.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’ with respect to Meetings of
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2); and

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“NSE”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Stock Exchanges”), read with the Listing Requlations.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Requlations,
Guidelines, Circulars, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and
Committees during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing
Requlations.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors w.r.t. the Board/Committee Meetings held during the year. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Secretarial Standard - 1. A system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All resolutions/decisions, including resolutions passed by way of circulation of the Board of Directors/ its Committees are
approved with requisite majority and the dissenting members’ views, if any are duly recorded in the respective minutes.

We further report that

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

We further report during the year under review, the following specific events/actions which took place in the Company:
A. Allotment of Equity shares pursuant to Employee Stock Option Plan(s)

The Company has allotted 93,950 equity shares to the eligible employees of the Company under the Shemaroo
Entertainment Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme 2021.

B. Closure of Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP

Since Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP has been inactive and has no intention of undertaking any business
or commercial activities in the future, the Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on May 24, 2024,
approved the dissolution of the LLP. The Company’s investment in the LLP amounts to ¥1,00,000 in fixed capital,
representing approximately 99.99% of the total capital contribution.

C. Grant of Employee Stock Options under ESOP Scheme

The Company has approved the grant of 3,20,146 and 1500 Employee Stock Options convertible into equal number
of Equity Shares of the Company of face value of%10/- each to its eligible employees under Shemaroo Entertainment
Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021 on July 30, 2024 and October 17, 2024, respectively.
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D. Update on GST Proceedings:

The Company received an intimation dated June 12, 2024, under Section 74(5) of the Central Goods and Services
Tax (CGST) Act, 2017, advising payment of ¥70.26 crores, along with applicable interest and penalties, in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 of the said Act.

Subsequently, on August 2, 2024, a Show Cause Notice was issued to Mr. Atul Hirji Maru (Joint Managing Director),
Mr. Hiren Uday Gada (Whole-Time Director & CEQ), and Mr. Amit Haria (Chief Financial Officer) under Sections 74(1)
and 122 of the CGST Act, 2017, read with the Maharashtra Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and Section 20 of the
Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017. The notice was issued by the Office of the Principal Commissioner of
CGST & Central Excise, Mumbai - East.

Further, on February 5, 2025, the Company received an order from the Office of the Principal Commissioner of CGST
& Central Excise, which included:

1. Ademand for recovery of inadmissible Input Tax Credit (ITC) amounting to¥ 70.26 crores.

2. A penalty of ¥ 63.35 crores imposed under Sections 122(1)(ii), 122(1)(x), and 122(2)(b) of the CGST Act, 2017,
read with Section 20 of the IGST Act, 2017.

3. Penalties of¥ 133.61 crores each imposed on the Joint Managing Director, CEO, and CFO of the Company under
Section 122(1A) of the CGST Act, 2017 and the Maharashtra GST Act, 2017.

The Company has initiated appropriate legal recourse, including filing of appeals, to contest the aforementioned
order.

E. Resolution passed through Postal Ballot
The Company sought and obtained approval of its shareholders through Postal Ballot for the following resolutions:

»  Appointment of Mr. Rajen Gada (DIN: 01642360) as the Non - Executive Independent Director of the Company
for consecutive period of five years with effect from May 24, 2024 to May 23, 2029.

»  Appointment of Mr. Abbas Contractor (DIN: 00637326) as the Non - Executive Independent Director of the
Company for consecutive period of five years with effect from May 24, 2024 to May 23, 2029.

»  Re-appointment of Mr. Jai Buddhichand Maroo (DIN: 00169399) as the Executive Director of the Company for
consecutive period of five years with effect from May 13, 2024 to May 12, 2029.

F.  Incorporation of Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary in Dubai

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 27, 2024 approved the incorporation of a
wholly-owned foreign subsidiary in Dubai, under the proposed name Shemaroo Verse Digital, Dubai.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

Sd/-

DILIP BHARADIYA

Partner

FCS No.7956 C P No. 6740
UDIN: FO07956G000329563

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May 2025

NOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure Ill and forms an integral part of this
report.
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ANNEXURE |

List of documents verified:

10.

1.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
Annual Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

Minutes and Attendance Registers of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees held during the period
under review.

Circular Resolutions approved by the Board of Directors and its Committees from time to time.

Minutes of General Body Meeting held during the period under review.

Statutory Registers viz.

- Register of Members;

- Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding;

- Register of Employee Stock Options and Employees Stock Appreciation Rights;

- Register of loans, guarantee, security and acquisition made by the Company;

- Register of Charges and

- Register of Contracts with Related Party and contracts and bodies, etc. in which directors are interested.
Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors/ Members for the Board and Committee Meetings.

Declarations received from the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company pursuant to
the provisions of the applicable Acts, Regulations and circulars.

Structured Digital Database in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

E-Forms filed by the Company, from time-to-time, under applicable provisions of the Act, alongwith the attachments
thereof, during the period under review.

Intimations / documents / reports / returns filed with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the provisions of the Listing
Regulations.

ANNEXURE - 11

List of applicable Laws/ Rules/ Regulations of the company:

1.

2.

3.

Cinematograph Act, 1952
Copyright Act, 1957

Information Technology Act, 2000
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To,

ANNEXURE 11l

The Members,

SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative Ind. Estate,
Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

Our Secretarial Audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

We request you to note that :

)

2)

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in Secretarial Records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records/ Statements and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the representation from the Management about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, requlations, standards is the responsibility
of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

Sd/-

DILIP BHARADIYA
Partner

FCS No.7956 C P No. 6740

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May 2025
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Annexure D

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Requlation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015) (as
amended))

To,

The Members,

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative Ind. Estate,
Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance procedures implemented by
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) having CIN: L67190MH2005PLC158288 for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C, D and E of
Schedule V of the SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations,
2015 (as amended) (“SEBI LODR Regulations”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and representations made by
the management, we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in the SEBI LODR Regulations, to the extent applicable.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It was neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DILIP BHARADIYA & ASSOCIATES

Sd/-

For DILIP BHARADIYA
Partner

FCS No.7956, CP No. 6740
UDIN: FO07956G000329662

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2025
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Annexure E

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014.

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of all the employees and Details of percentage
increase in the remuneration of each Director and CFO & Company Secretary for the financial year 2024-25 is as follows:

(R in lakhs)
Sr. Total % increase in Ratio of remuneration of
No. Name Remuneration for Remuneration each Director to median
FY 2024-25 in FY 2023-24 remuneration of employees
1. Raman Maroo 90.00 - 1115
Chairman & Managing Director
2. Atul Maru 90.00 - 11.15
Joint Managing Director
3. Hiren Gada 220.00 - 2126
Chief Executive Officer
4. Jai Maroo 90.00 - 1115
Executive Director
5. Gnanesh Gala™ - - .
Independent Director
6. Vasanji Mamania™ - - -
Independent Director
T Reeta Shah™ - - .
Independent Director
8. Sunil Kumar Bansal” - - -
Independent Director
9. Mr. Rajen Gada™ - - -
10. Mr. Abbas Contractor™ - - -
1. Mrs. Kashmira Dedhia™" = - -
12. Amit Haria 110.60 NA -
Chief Financial Officer
13. Pooja Sutradhar 32.00 NA

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

* The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled to sitting fee and commission as per the statutory provisions and
within the limits approved by the shareholders. The details of remuneration of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report.

# Ceased to be directors w.e.f. May 25, 2024.
S Appointed w.e.f. May 24, 2024
" Ceased to be director w.e.f. March 27, 2025.

AN Appointed w.e.f. March 24,2025
(figures rounded off wherever required)

B. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was ¥ 8,07,000/-
C. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of Employees for the financial year was 7.17%.
D. There were 620 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2025.

E. Averagepercentileincreaseinthesalaries of employeesotherthan Managerial Personnelwas13.31% whereas the increase
in the Managerial Remuneration was 7.36%. Average Remuneration increase/decrease is dependent on the Company’s
performance as a whole, individual performance level aligning with market benchmarks and economy scenario.

F.  Itis affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management is as per the
Remuneration Policy of your Company.
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Annexure F

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-2025

1

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy.

The Company has a CSR policy in place which endorses the idea
of improving quality of lives of people in the communities in which
it operates, as it believes that to succeed, an organization must
maintain highest standards of corporate behavior towards its
employees, consumers and societies.

The thrust areas of the Company’s CSR activities are as under:
1. Livelihood security and enhancement

2. Education

3. Healthcare and Social welfare

4, Arts/Sports and culture

The above areas are mapped with the activities as prescribed in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 in the Annexure.

The policy elucidates the responsibilities of the Board & CSR
Committee and implementation & monitoring process towards
achieving the Company’s CSR goals. The CSR Policy of the
Company has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.shemarooent.com

2

The Composition of the CSR Committee/Meetings held and
Attendance

1. Mr. Atul Maru (Chairman and Jt. Managing Director)

2. Mr.Hiren Gada (Member & CEO)

3. Mr. Vasanji Mamania (Member and Independent Director)”

4., Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal (Member and Independent Director)™

During the FY 2024-2025, CSR Committee meeting was held one
time i.e. on May 24, 2024,

During the FY 2024-2025, All the members of CSR committee
attended the aforesaid meeting.

*Ceased to be the member w.e.f May 25, 2024

**Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal was appointed in his place w.e.f May 25,
2024

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee,
CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company.

www.shemarooent.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report).

NOT APPLICABLE

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any

NOT APPLICABLE

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years

%(669.20) Lakhs

A.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount
asinitem 3 above)

NIL

B.  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Programmes
or activities of previous financial years

% 21 Lakhs

C.  Amountrequired to be set off for the financial year, if any

NIL

D.  Total CSR obligation for the financial year

NIL

8a.

CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Refer Annexure 1

8b.

Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the
financial year

Nil
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8c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing Nil
projects for the financial year.

8d. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

8e. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NOT APPLICABLE

8f.  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) NIL (hence no Annexure attached)
8g. Excess amount for set off, if any Refer Annexure 2

9a. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three NOTAPPLICABLE
financial years

9b. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing NOT APPLICABLE
projects of the preceding financial year(s):

10 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the NOT APPLICABLE
details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spent in the financial year

" Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two NOT APPLICABLE
per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

Sd/- Sd/-

Raman Maroo Atul Maru

Chairman & Managing Director Chairman, CSR Committee & Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 00169152 DIN:00169264

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2025

8a. CSR AMOUNT SPENT OR UNSPENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR Annexure 1

Amount Unspent (inX)

E?r:::\ﬁ;:lo::atrsg:% e Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
CSR Account as per section 135(6). VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
NIL - - -
8g. Excess amount for set off, if any Annexure 2
| Sr. No. | Particular Amount in Lakhs
i Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) -
ii Total amount spent for the Financial Year -
iii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
iv Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any 21.00
v Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 21.00
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Company’s philosophy on code of governance

Effective Corporate Governance practice is about
commitment to values, ethical business conduct and
constitutes strong fundamentals on which a successful
commercial enterprise is built to last.

The Corporate philosophy of Shemaroo is to promote
corporate fairness, transparency and accountability
with the objective of maximizing long term value for all
stakeholders.

Shemaroo has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and
ethical governance practices and we adhere to the fact
that the Corporate Governance norms are dynamic in
nature and that the Company constantly endeavors to
improve on these aspects.

At Shemaroo, we consider stakeholders as partners in
our success, and we remain committed to maximizing
stakeholder value, be it shareholders, employees,
suppliers, customers, investors, communities or policy
makers.

The Principles of Corporate Governance at Shemaroo
are grounded on the following:

Ensuringthe constitution of Board of Directors at all
times represents an appropriate mix of executive,
non-executive and independent directors, and of
optimum size, with diversified experience.

. Constitution of Committees of the Board of
Directors, like, Audit Committee, Stakeholders’

Relationship  Committee, Nomination  and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee, Executive

Committee, in compliance with the provisions of
the applicable laws, as amended, to enable the
Board of Directors to discharge their functions
effectively.

Adoption and adherence to the adopted code of
conducts by all related parties for agood Corporate
Governance.

Proactive compliance with all applicable Rules and
Regulations, as amended.

Dissemination of all material information
concerning the Company to the stakeholders of
the Company in a timely manner.

A comprehensive and robust system of risk
management and internal control.

Your Company is in compliance with the
requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated
in the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regqulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’).

2.

Annual Report 2024-25

Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has a balanced
Board of Director’s, which primarily takes care of
the business needs and stakeholder’s interest. The
Executive and Non-Executive Directors including
Independent Directors on the Board are competent
and experienced from various fields. They actively
participate at the Board and Committee meetings
and provide valuable guidance to the management on
various aspects relating to business decisions.

The Composition of the Board complies with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and
Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Requlations. The total
Board strength comprises of 8 (Eight) Directors, out of
which 4 (Four) are Executive Directors (50% of the Board
strength) and 4 (Four) are Independent Non-Executive
Directors (50% of the Board strength) including 1 (One)
Women Independent Director.

Except, Mr. Raman Maroo, Mr. Atul Maru being brothers,
none of the other Directors are related to any other
Director on the Board.

During the Financial year, the Board of the Company
met 6 (six) times i.e. on May 24, 2024; July 30, 2024,
October 17, 2024, December 27, 2024, January 16,
2025 and March 24, 2025. The necessary quorum was
present for all the meetings. The maximum interval
between any two meetings was within the maximum
allowed gap pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations.

During the Financial year, tenure of Mr. Gnanesh D Gala,
Mr. Vasanji Mamania and Dr CA Reeta Bharat Shah,
Independent Directors of the Company were completed
on May 25, 2024, May 25, 2024 and March 27, 2025
respectively.

Further, Mr. Rajen Gada and Mr. Abbas Contractor were
appointed as an Independent Directors of the Company
w.e.f. May 24, 2024 in the place of Mr. Gnanesh D Gala
and Mr. Vasanji Mamania retiring Independent Directors
of the Company. Also, Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
w.e.f. March 24,2025 in the place of Dr CA Reeta Bharat
Shah.

None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more
than 10 (ten) Committees and Chairman of more than
5 (five) Committees, across Companies in which he/
she is a Director. The necessary disclosures regarding
Committee positions have been made by all the
Directors.

The Board’s composition, attendance and their
directorship / committee membership, chairmanship in
other Companies as on March 31,2025 is given below:
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Attendance | No. of other Directorships and Committee memberships/
Sr Attendance | atlast AGM Chairmanships held
no. Name, DIN Category at Board held on .
meeting August 29, ' Other. Chairmanships® Membe(shlps of
2024 Directorships* Committees®
1. Mr. Raman Maroo, Promoter, Executive 6/6 YES NIL NIL NIL
Chairman & Managing Director
Director
(DIN:00169152)
2. Mr. Atul Maru, Promoter, Executive 4/6 YES NIL NIL 1
Jt. Managing Director Director
(DIN:00169264)
3. Mr. Hiren Gada, Promoter, Executive 6/6 YES 1 NIL 1
WTD & CEO Director
(DIN:01108194)
4, Mr. Jai Maroo, Promoter, Executive 6/6 YES NIL NIL NIL
Executive Director Director
(DIN:00169399)
5. Mr. Gnanesh Gala*, Non-Executive 11 NA 1 1 1
Independent Director Director
(DIN: 00093008)
6. Mr. Vasanji Mamania*, Non-Executive 11 NA NIL NIL 1
Independent Director Director
(DIN:00013071)
1 Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal, Non-Executive 5/6 YES 3 NIL 1
Independent Director Director
(DIN: 00713868)
8. Dr. CA Reeta Shah**, Non-Executive 4/6 YES NIL 1 1
Independent Director Director
(DIN:07141304)
9. Mr. Rajen Hemchand Non-Executive 5/5 YES NIL 1 NIL
Gada”, Director
Independent Director
(DIN: 01642360)
10.  Mr. Abbas Ismail Non-Executive 5/5 YES NIL NIL 1
Contractor?, Director
Independent Director
(DIN: 00637326)
1. Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Non-Executive 0/6 NA NIL 1 1
Dedhia”*, Director

Independent Director
(DIN: 00914691)

#Excludes directorship in Shemaroo Entertainment Limited and also excludes Alternate directorships, directorship in Private Limited Companies, Foreign
Companies and Companies registered under Sec.8 of the Act.

@As per Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations, Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees in all
public limited companies have been considered.

* Retired w.e.f. May 25, 2024;

** Retired w.e.f. March 27,2025;

~Appointed w.e.f. May 24, 2024,

A~ Appointed w.e.f. March 24,2025

a. Name of other Listed Entities in which the Directors are the Directors and the Category of Directorship:

Name of the Director Other Listed Entity in which he/she is a Director Category of Directorship:

No.

1. Mr. Gnanesh Gala* Navneet Education Limited Managing Director

* Retired w.e.f. May 25, 2024;
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b.

Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2025:

Name of the Director(s) Shares Held (Nos.)

Requirement of Core Skills/Expertise/Competence for the Board of Directors as Identified for Entertainment
Business:

The following is the list of core skills/ expertise/ competencies identified by the Board members as required in
the perspective of the growth of business and that the said skills are available with the Board of Directors as on
March 31,2025:

| Sr. No. | Area of Core skills/Expertise/Competence

1. Business Strategic Expertise, Administration and Decision making

Marketing and Advertisement

Information Technology

Financial and Management skills, Accountancy and Audit

Legal

Human Resource Management

Nloos v

Risk Management

In the table below, the core areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted:

Business Financial &
. . Strateglc Marketing and | Information Manaqement T Risk

Name, Designation Expertise, Advertisement | Technolo skills, Legal Resource Management

Administration & 9y Accountancy Management 9

Decision making and Audit
Mr. Raman Maroo, Chairman & v v - - R - v
Managing Director
Mr. Atul Maru, Jt. Managing v v - . R ) v
Director
Mr. Hiren Gada, v v - v - . v
WTD & CEO
Mr. Jai Maroo, Executive v - v - - v v
Director - Transformation &
Excellence
Mr. Gnanesh Gala*, v - - v R _ v
Independent Director
Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal, v - - v v . v
Independent Director
Mr. Vasanji Mamania*, v - - v R . v
Independent Director
Dr. CA Reeta Shah**, v - - v v . v
Independent Director
Mr. Rajen Hemchand Gada”, v - - v v - v
Independent Director
Mr. Abbas Ismail Contractor”, v - - v - - v
Independent Director
Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh v - - v - . v
Dedhia””,

Independent Director

* Retired w.e.f. May 25, 2024,

** Retired w.e.f. March 27, 2025;
~Appointed w.e.f. May 24, 2024,

A~ Appointed w.e.f. March 24,2025
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In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fulfillthe conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations
and are independent of the management.

Board Independence:

All Independent Directors of the Company have been
appointed as perthe provisions of the Act. The maximum
tenure of independent directors is in compliance with
the Act. Formal letters of appointment have been issued
to the Independent Directors.

Independent Directors of the Company provide
appropriate annual certifications to the Board
confirming satisfaction of the conditions of their being
independent as laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Act
and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations.
The Code for Independent Directors is available on
Company’s website at www.shemarooent.com

Board Procedure:

The Board Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative
annual calendar of the Board Meetings is circulated to
the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan
their schedule. The Board Meetings of the Company
are conducted as per well designed and structured
agenda. All the agenda items, are backed by necessary
supporting information and documents (except for the
critical price sensitive information, which is circulated
separately or placed at the meeting), are sent well in
advance of the date of the Board meeting(s) to enable
the Board members to take informed decision. Agenda
also includes minutes of the meetings of all the Board
Committees and Subsidiaries for the information of
the Board. During the financial year, the minimum
information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule Il
of SEBI Listing Regulations were placed before the
Board for its consideration. Any Board Member may, in
consultation with the Chairman and with the consent
of all Independent Directors present at the meeting,
bring up any matter at the meeting for consideration by
the Board. In addition, for any business exigencies, the
resolutions are passed by circulation and later placed
at the subsequent Board/Committee Meeting for
ratification / approval.

The Board periodically reviews Compliance Reports in
respect of various laws and requlations applicable to the
Company.

After the Board meeting, Company has a formal system
of follow up, review and reporting on actions taken by
the management on the decisions of the Board and
subcommittees of the Board. Action-taken report on
decisions taken in a meeting is placed at the succeeding
meeting of the Board / Committee for noting.

Separate Independent Directors’ Meetings:

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the
Company, without the attendance of Non-Independent

Financial Statements

Directors and members of management, was held
2 (two) times, i.e. on May 24, 2024 and March 24,
2025, as required under Schedule IV of the Act (Code
for Independent Directors) and Requlation 25 (3) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and Schedule I, in Part
E, Paragraph F of the SEBI Listing Requlations as per
SEBI (LODR) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024. At
the Meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed and
evaluated the performance of the Chairman, Managing
Director and other Non-Independent Directors, the
Board and flow of information between the management
and the Board.

Familiarization programmes:

The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities
in the Company, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates,business model of the Company, etc.,
through various programmes. These include orientation
programme upon induction of new Directors, as well as
other initiatives to update the Directors on a continuing
basis.

The Company’s Policy of conducting the Familiarisation
Programme and the details of Familiarisation
Programmes imparted to Independent Directors
are disclosed on the Company’s website at
www.shemarooent.com

Board Evaluation

Details of methodology adopted for Board evaluation
have been provided in the Board’s Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient
resolution of diverse matters, the Board has constituted
a set of Committees with specific terms of reference/
scope. The Committees operate as empowered agents
of the Board as per their Charter/terms of reference.
The minutes of the meetings of all Committees of the
Board are placed before the Board for discussions/
noting. The Board/ Committees can request special
invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate. The
composition of various Committees of the Board of
Directors is available on the website of the Company at
www.shemarooent.com

The Board has currently established the following
statutory and non-statutory Committees:

A.  Audit Committee;
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

D. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee;
and

E. Executive Committee
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A. Audit Committee:

Composition and Attendance at the Meeting

The Committee is governed by a Charter which is
in line with the requlatory requirements mandated
by the Section 177 of the Act read with Regulation
18 of the SEBI Listing Requlations. The members
of the Audit Committee possess financial /
accounting expertise / exposure.

The Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times
during the year under review. The Committee
Meetings were held on the following dates
May 24, 2024; July 30, 2024; October 17, 2024
and January 16, 2025.

The Composition and attendance at the Meetings
was as under:

No. of meetings
b hEIEE Designation | Categor He'Id
No. Member 9 gory during Attended
their
tenure
1. Mr. Gnanesh Gala* Chairman Independent 1 1
Director
2. Mr. Hiren Gada Member Executive 4 4
Director
3. Mr. Vasanji Member Independent 1 1
Mamania* Director
4. Dr.CAReeta Member Independent 4 2
Shah** Director
5. Mr.Rajen Chairman Independent 3 3
Hemchand Gada” Director
6. Mr. Abbas Ismail ~ Member Independent 3 3
Contractor” Director
IA Mrs. Kashmira Member Independent 0 0
Nilesh Dedhia”* Director

* cessation w.e.f. May 25, 2024;

** cessation w.e.f. March 24, 2025;
~appointment w.e.f. May 25, 2024;

AN appointment w.e.f. March 24,2025

Mr. Rajen Hemchand Gada, Chairman of the Audit
Committee attended the last Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on August 29, 2024.

General

The representatives of the Statutory Auditors
and Internal Auditors are permanent invitees to
the Audit Committee Meetings. Executives of
Accounts Department, Finance Department, and
representatives of internal auditors attend Audit
Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary of
the Company acts as the secretary to the Audit
Committee.

Powers of Audit Committee

- To investigate any activity within its term of
reference.

-  Toseek information from any employee.

Annual Report 2024-25

—  To obtain outside legal or other professional
advice.

- To secure attendance of outsiders with
relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted
with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s
internal controls and financial reporting process
and inter alia performs the following functions:

—  Overseeing listed entity’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

- Recommendingthe appointmentandremoval
of statutory auditors, fixation of audit fee and
approval for payment of any other services;

- Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon before submission to the board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the
Director’'s  Responsibility  Statement
to be included in the Board’s report in
terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of
section 134 of the Act;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies
and practices and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the
financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other
legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

f. Disclosure of any related

transactions;

party

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report;

- Reviewing, with the management, the
quarterly  financial statements before
submission to the board for approval.

- Reviewing, with the management, the
statement of uses / application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement
of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document / prospectus
/ notice and the report submitted by the
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monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and
making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter.

Review and monitor the auditor’s
independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process.

Calling for comments of the auditors about
internal control systems, scope of audit
including observations of the auditors and
review of financial statement before their
submission to the Board and discuss any
related issues with the internal and/or
statutory auditors and management of the
company.

Approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions of the company with related
parties.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
company, wherever it is necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and
risk management systems.

Reviewing, with the management,
performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function, if any, including the structure
of the internal audit department, staffing
and seniority of the official heading the
department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors of any
significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irreqularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before
the audit commences, about the nature and
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion
to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial
defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case
of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.
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To review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower mechanism / Vigil Mechanism.

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the
Whole Time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background,
etc. of the candidate.

Carrying out any other function as is
mentioned in the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee.

To grant omnibus approval for related party
transactions which are in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm’s length
pricing basis and to review and approve such
transactions subject to the approval of the
Board.

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the
listed entity and its shareholders.

Reviewing the following information:

1. The Management, Discussion and
Analysis of financial condition and
results of operations;

2. Statement of significant  related
party transactions (as defined by the
audit committee) submitted by the
management;

3.  Management Letters/Letters of internal
control weaknesses issued by statutory
auditors;

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms
of remuneration of the Chief internal
auditor shall be subject to the review by
the Audit Committee.

6. Statement of deviations:

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s)
including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of SEBI
Listing Regulation 32(1).

b.  Annual statement of funds utilized
for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice in terms of SEBI
Listing Requlation 32(7).
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7. reviewing the utilization of loans and/
or advances from/investment by the
holding company in the subsidiary
exceedingrupees100 crore or10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is
lowerincluding existing loans / advances
/ investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision.

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Composition and Attendance at the Meeting

The Committee’s constitution and terms of
reference are in compliance with the provision of
Section 178 of the Act, read with Regulation 19 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee
comprises of the members as stated below. The
Committee met 4 (Four) times i.e. on May 24,
2024; July 30, 2024; October 17, 2024 and March
24, 2025 during the year under review. The
attendance of the members was as under:-

No. of meetings
b WEIRC Designation Categor He.Id
No. Member 9 gory during Attended
their
tenure
1. Mr. Vasanji Chairman Independent 1 1
Mamania* Director
2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Member Independent 4 3
Bansal Director
3. Dr. CAReeta Member Independent 4 2
Shah** Director
4. Mr.Rajen Chairman Independent 3 3
Hemchand Gada” Director
5. Mrs. Kashmira Member Independent 0 0
Nilesh Dedhia”* Director

* cessation w.e.f. May 25, 2024;

** cessation w.e.f. March 24, 2025;
~appointment w.e.f. May 25, 2024;
~Mappointment w.e.f. March 24,2025

Mr. Rajen Hemchand Gada, Chairman of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee attended
the last Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on August 29, 2024. The Company Secretary
of the Company acts as the Secretary of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Terms of Reference of the Committee

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive  attributes and
independence of a director and recommend
to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees. The
Committee, while formulating such policy
shall ensure that:
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a. the level and composition  of
remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run
the company successfully;

b. relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

c. remuneration to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior
managementinvolvesabalance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short
and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

d. to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the
Board during every appointment of
an independent director and on the
basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities
required of an Independent Director. The
person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an Independent Director
shall have the capabilities identified in
such description.

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of
Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identifying persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with
the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal. The
Company shall disclose the remuneration
policy and the evaluation criteriain its Annual
Report.

To carry out any other function as is
mandated by the Board from time to time and
/ or enforced by any statutory notification,
amendment or modification, as may be
applicable.

Whether to extend or continue the term of
appointment of the Independent Director,
on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation of Independent Directors.

Recommend to the board, all remuneration,
in  whatever form, payable to senior
management.

To establish and from time to time review the
policy for ESOP as well as issuance of equity
shares and recommend the grants to be made
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under ESOP, to perform all powers and duties
as mentioned in the ESOP scheme, all kind of
administration and superintendence of the
Scheme & related all kind of activities; and

Such other matters as may from time to time
required by any statutory, contractual or
other requlatory requirements to be attended
to by such committee.

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Act, read with
Regulation 19(4) - Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Board Membership Criteria

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee
has laid down criteria for identifying persons
who are qualified to become directors on
the Board. The Board has delegated the
screening and selection process involved in
selecting new directors to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in turn makes
recommendations to the Board on the
induction of any new directors.

The criteria for appointment to the Board
include:

a. size of the Board with optimal balance
of skills and experience and balance of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors
consistent with the requirements of law;

b. professional qualifications, expertise
and experience in specific area of
business;

c. desired age and diversity on the Board.

The Board has also adopted a policy on Board
Diversity pursuant to the provisions of SEBI
Listing Requlations.

Performance Evaluation

The Committee makes recommendations to
the Board onappropriate performancecriteria
for the directors. Formulate the criteria and
framework for evaluation of performance of
every director on the Board of the Company.

Remuneration framework

The Committee is responsible for reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board
on remuneration to Managing Director
/ Whole time Director / Non - Executive
Director / Independent Director and Senior

Financial Statements

Management Personnel. It is designed to
create a high performance culture which
enables to attract, retain and encourage
employees to achieve results.

The Company pays remuneration by way
of salary, perquisites and allowances (fixed
component) and commission (variable
component) to its Executive Directors and
Senior Management Personnel. Annual
increments are decided by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee within the
salary limit approved by the Company or the
members, as may be required. The Committee
decides on the commission payable to
Executive Director/ Non-Executive Director
/ Independent Director out of the profits
for the financial year and within the ceilings
prescribed under the Act based.

iii. Details of Remuneration

The details of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and to Non-Executive Directors for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is provided
hereinafter:

Details of Remuneration of Executive Directors for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025:

(Z in lakhs)
Sittin Benefits
Name Salary 9 Commission | Perquisites TOTAL
Fees
andallowances

Mr. Raman 89.61 - - 0.39 90
Maroo
Mr. Atul Maru 89.61 - - 0.39 90
Mr.Hiren Gada  219.61 - - 0.39 220
Mr. Jai Maroo 89.61 - - 0.39 90

Details of Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025:

Name of Director

(X in lakhs)

Sitting Fees for attending
Board Meeting

Mr. Vasanji Mamania* 1,25,000/-
Mr. Gnanesh Gala™ NIL

Dr. CA Reeta Shah** 3,25,000/-
Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal 3,25,000/-
Mr. Rajen Gada” 4,00,000/-
Mr. Abbas Ismile Contractor” 3,25,000/-
Mrs. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia”” NIL

TOTAL 15,00,000/-

* Retired w.e.f. May 25, 2024,

** Retired w.e.f. March 27,2025;

~Appointed w.e.f. May 24, 2024,

AN Appointed w.e.f. March 24,2025
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Notes:

1.

Sr.

No.

No commission was paid to the Non-Executive Directors
during the financial year ended on March 31, 2025.

#No sitting fees was paid to Mr. Gnanesh Gala,
Independent Director, who has decided not to accept
any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board.

Other than sitting fees, there is no other pecuniary
relationship or transactions with any of the Non-
executive Directors.

No Service contracts executed and No Severance Fee,
Notice period is payable and no stock option has been
given.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is primarily
responsible to review all matters connected with the
Company'’s transfer of securities, satisfactory redressal
of shareholders’ / investors’ / security holders’
complaints and recommends measures for overall
improvement in the quality of investor services. The
Committee also monitors the implementation and
compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for
prohibition of Insider Trading.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee composition
and the terms of reference meet with the requirements
of Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
provisions Section 178 (5) of the Act.

i.  Composition and Attendance at the Meeting

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee
comprises of the members as stated below.
The Committee met 1 (one) time during the year
under review. The Committee Meeting was held on
May 24,2024,

The attendance at the Meeting was as under:

No. of meetings

Nameofthe | o . . Cat Held
Member esignation | Category | guring

their
tenure

Attended

Dr. CA Reeta
Shah”

Chairperson  Independent 1 1

Director

Mr. Atul Maru Executive 1 1

Director

Member

Mr. Sunil Kumar Member

Bansal

Independent 1 0
Director

Mrs. Kashmira
Nilesh Dedhia”*

Chairperson  Independent 0 0

Director

A cessation w.e.f. March 24, 2025;

AN appointment w.e.f. March 24,2025

The Chairperson of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on August 29, 2024.
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Compliance Officer

Ms. Pooja Sutradhar, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer,isappointedasthe Compliance
Officer to resolve the complaints of Shareholders/
Investors.

The role of Stakeholders’
Committee is as follows

Relationship

a. Resolving the grievances of the security
holders of the listed entity including
complaints related to transfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-
receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

b. Review of measures taken for effective
exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

c. Review of adherence to the service standards
adopted by the listed entity in respect of
various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

d. Review of the various measures and initiatives
taken by the listed entity for reducing
the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/
annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company.

e. Carry out any other function as is referred by
the Board from time to time or enforced by
any statutory notification / amendment.

Investor Grievance Redressal

As per the below mentioned table, the detailed
particulars of investors’ complaints handled by the
Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
during the year are as under:

. Number of
Type of Complaints Complaints
Non - receipt of Annual Reports 0
Non- receipt of Dividend Warrants 0
Non-Receipt of Shares lodged for 0
Transfer
Non - receipt of IPO application 0
money
TOTAL 0

As on March 31, 2025, no complaints were
outstanding.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR):

Composition and Attendance at the Meeting

The Company has constituted a CSR Committee
as required under Section 135 of the Act. The CSR
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Committee comprises of the members as stated
below. The Committee during the year under
review met 1 (one) time on May 24, 2024.

No. of meetings
S hETRE Designation Categor He-ld
No. Member 9 9ory | during | 4o ded
their
tenure
1. Mr. Atul Maru Chairman Executive 1 1
Director
2. Mr. Hiren Gada Member Executive 1 1
Director
3. Mr. Vasanji Member Independent 1 1
Mamania* Director
4. Mr. Sunil Kumar Member Independent 0 0
Bansal** Director

* cessetion w.e.f. May 25, 2024;

**appointment w.e.f. May 25,2024

ii. The Terms of Reference of the Committee are as
follows:-

. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy
indicating activities to be undertaken by the
Company in compliance with provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under;

. To recommend the amount of expenditure to
be incurred on the CSR activities;

. Tocarry out any other function asis mandated
bytheBoardfromtimetotimeand/orenforced
by any statutory notification, amendment or
modification as may be applicable or as may
be necessary or appropriate for performance
of its duties;

. To ensure effective implementation and
monitoring of the CSR activities as per the
approved policy, plans and budget; and

. Ensure compliance with the laws, rules
& reqgulations governing the CSR and to
periodically report to the Board of Directors.

Executive Committee

Apart from the above statutory committees, the Board
of Directors has constituted the following Functional
Committees to raise the level of governance as also to
meet the specific business needs.

The Executive Committee comprises of 3 (Three)
Directors of the Board and has been set up inter
alia to oversee routine operations that arise in the
normal course of business, such as decision on
banking relations, delegation of operational powers,
appointment of nominees, etc. The Committee reports

Financial Statements

tothe Board and the minutes of the meetings are placed
before the Board for confirmation.

< N EmO IR Designation Categor

No. Member 9 gory

1. Mr. Raman Maroo Chairman Executive
Director

2. Mr. Atul Maru Member Executive
Director

3. Mr. Hiren Gada Member Executive
Director

Terms of reference

The Executive Committee exercises powers in relation
to the matters listed below:

. To open and operate Bank Accounts.
. To authorize change in signatories.

. To give instructions relating to the transactions of
the Company with the Banks.

. To give necessary instructions for closure of Bank
Accounts.

. To issue / revalidate / cancel Powers of Attorney.

. To authorize persons to act on behalf of the
Company in relation to legal proceedings,
appearing before any government authorities/
agencies, dealing with the outside parties or
in relation to any other matter where such
authorization is required.

. Toinvest the funds of the Company within the limits
approved by the Board in Shares, Debentures,
Mutual Funds, FDRs and Bonds of Bodies Corporate
and Government or Semi Government agencies.

. To avail loans, credit facilities, lease arrangements,
inter corporate borrowings and other borrowing
from Banks / Financial Institutions within the
limits approved by the Board.

. To accept the terms and conditions for availing the
said financial assistance.

. To authorize execution of documents and affix
the Common Seal of the Company, wherever
necessary.

. To request Banks or Financial Institutions for
disbursement of funds.

. To create security on the assets of the Company
for availing of the above-mentioned facilities.

. To do all acts, deeds and things, as may be required
or considered necessary or incidental thereto.

. Any other related matters.
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4. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS unlisted material subsidiary, incorporated in India. It
AND SENIOR MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE also does not have a listed subsidiary.
COMPANY

6. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The Company has instituted a Code of Conduct for
Members of the Board and Senior Management of the
Company. The Code gives gquidance and support needed
for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law.
The Code is intended to serve as a basis for ethical
decision-making in conduct of professional work.

a) Annual General Meetings

During the FY 2021-2022 to FY 2023-2024, the
Company’s Annual General Meeting was held
through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-
Visual Means(“OAVM”) on the following dates and
times, wherein the following special resolution
were passed.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of
the Company at www.shemarooent.com. All Board
members and senior management personnel affirm

compliances with the Code of Conduct annually. A Brief Description

Financial Year Day, Date Time of Special
declaration signed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Resolution
Financial Officer (CEO& CFO) to this effect is placed at 2023202 Thursday, August 29, 2024 0400 PM L
the end of this report as Annexure ‘A’. ' ' :

2022-2023 Monday, August 28,2023 04:00 PM NIL

5. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 2021-2022  Tuesday, August 09, 2022 04:00 PM NIL
The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial b) Postal Ballot:
statements of the Company. The minutes of the Board
meetings of the subsidiary companies are placed at During the financial year 2024-2025, the
the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company Company has successfully completed the process
on periodical basis. The Company has framed a policy of obtaining approval of its shareholders through
for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ which is placed postal ballot/ e-voting. The details of these special
on the website of the Company at the following link: resolutions alongwith the voting pattern are as
www.shemarooent.com. Shemaroo does not have any follows:
2Ol . Total No. of | No-ofVotes | o tvotes rl‘)(:s::r\llt‘::s;s G0
passing of Business X Assenting the R Votes cast
Resolution LAIERLLS Resolution St ey L . against
Resolution
July 29,2024 1. Appointment of Mr. Rajen 1,82,27,103 1,82,05,360 99.88 21,743 0.12
Gada (DIN: 01642360) as an
Independent Director of the
Company.
July 29,2024 2.  Appointment of Mr. Abbas 1,82,27,103 1,81,95,930 99.83 31,173 017
Contractor (DIN: 00637326) as
an Independent Director of the
Company.
July 29,2024 3. Re-appointment of Mr. Jai 1,69,92,903 1,69,63,160 99.82 297743 0.18

Buddhichand  Maroo  (DIN:
00169399) as the Executive
Director of the Company

M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice (Membership no. FCS 7956 and Certificate of Practice no.
6740), was appointed as the Scrutinizer for carrying out the postal ballot process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Company emailed postal ballot notices to its shareholders whose names appear on the register of members/list of
beneficiaries as on cut-off date i.e. Monday, June 17, 2024. The Company also publishes a notice in the newspapers declaring
the details of completion of dispatch and other requirements as mandated under the Act and applicable Rules.

The scrutinizer submits his report to the Chairman of the Company, after the completion of scrutiny of the postal ballots
(including remote e-voting) and the results of the postal ballot were announced by the Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer on July 29, 2024. The results were intimated to NSDL and to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are
listed and also displayed along with the Scrutinizer’s Report on the Company’s website at www.shemarooent.com.
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Means of Communication with Shareholders

The Companyreqgularly interacts with shareholders
through various mediums of communication such
as Results Announcement, Annual Report, Press
releases and Company’s website etc.

- Results: The Company’s quarterly/half
yearly/annual financial results are sent to
the Stock Exchanges and also published
in Financial Express (English) and Mumbai
Lakshadeep (Marathi) respectively and are
also simultaneously displayed on its website
at www.shemarooent.com.

- News Releases/Presentations: Official
Press Releases, presentations made to media,
analysts, institutional investors etc. are
sent to the Stock Exchanges and are
displayed on the Company’s website at
www.shemarooent.com.

- Website: The Company’s website
(www.shemarooent.com) contains a
separate section “Investor Centre” where
shareholders’ information is available. The
Company’s quarterly, half yearly and annual
financial results, official news releases
and presentations made to institutional
investors and to the Analysts are promptly
displayed on the website. Annual Reports,
Quarterly Corporate Governance Report,
Shareholding Pattern, Unclaimed Dividends,
Share price tools includes, inter-alia, share
graphs, historical share price data and other
Corporate Communications madetothe Stock
Exchanges are also available on the website.
Annual Report of Subsidiary Companies are
also posted on the website.

- Communication to shareholders on Email:
As mandated by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) documents like Notices, Annual
Report, ECS advices for dividends, etc. were
sent to the shareholders at their email
address, as registered with their Depository
Participants/ Company/ Registrar and
Transfer Agents (RTA), which helped in
prompt delivery of document, reduce paper
consumption, save trees and avoid loss of
documents in transit.

— Annual Report: The Annual Report
containing, inter-alia, Audited Standalone
Financial Statement, Consolidated Financial
Statement, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report
and other important information is circulated
to shareholders and others entitled thereto.
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) Report forms part of the Board’s
Report in the Annual Report. The Annual
Reportis displayed on the Company’s website
at www.shemarooent.com.

Financial Statements

- NSE Electronic Application Processing
System (NEAPS)/ Digital Exchange:NEAPS/
Digital Exchange is a web-based application
designed by NSE for listed entities. All
periodicalcompliancefilings likeshareholding
pattern, corporate governance report, media
releases statement of investor complaints
among others, are filed electronically on
NEAPS.

- BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing
Centre: BSE'’s Listing Centre is a web-based
application designed for Corporates. All
periodicalcompliancefilingslikeshareholding
pattern, corporate governance report, media
releases, statement of investor complaints
among others, are also filed electronically on
the Listing Centre.

-  SEBIComplaints Redress System (SCORES):
The investor complaints are processed in a
Centralised web-based complaints redress
system. The salient features of this system
are: Centralised database of all complaints,
online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs)
by concerned companies and online viewing
by investors of actions taken on the complaint
and its current status.

7. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a.

Company Registration Details:

The Company is registered in Mumbai,
Maharashtra. The Corporate Identification Number
(CIN) allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) is L67190MH2005PLC158288.

Company’s Registered Office Address:

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited, Shemaroo
House, Plot no. 18, Marol Co-op. Indl. Estate, Off.
AndheriKurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai-400059.

Annual General Meeting:

Day & Date Friday, September 19, 2025

Time 04.00 PM

Venue AGM will be held through
video conferencing (VC) or
other audiovisual means
(OAVM)

Book Closure: Friday, September 12, 2025

Date to Friday, September 19, 2025

(bothdays inclusive)

Cut- off date Friday, September 12,2025

In terms of the Circular No. 14/2020 dated
April 08, 2020, Circular No0.17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated
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No. of
Shares

May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated
January 13, 2021, Circular no. 19/2021 dated
December 8, 2021, and Circular No. 21/2021
dated December 14, 2021, Circular No. 02/2022
dated May 5, 2022 and the latest being General
Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024,
20" AGM of the members shall be held through
Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and
participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. The
detailed procedure for participating in the meeting
through VC/OAVM is annexed to the AGM notice
and available at the website of the Company at

www.shemarooent.com.

Financial Calendar (Tentative):

The Company follows the period of 1t April to
31t March, as the Financial Year:

—First Quarter :July/August, 2025

—Half yearly :October/November, 2025
—Third Quarter :January/February, 2026
—Fourth Quarter and Annual : May/June, 2026

—Annual General Meeting  : August/September, 2026

Listing:

At present, the equity shares of the Company are
listed at:

- Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) -
Stock Code:538685

Address: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal
Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

- National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) - Stock Code: SHEMAROO

Address: Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G
Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400051.

The Annual listing fees for the financial year
2025-26 has been paid to the above Stock
Exchanges.

Payment of Depository Fees: Annual Custody /
Issuer fee for the year 2025-26 has been paid by
the Company to NSDL and CDSL.

ISIN Number: INE363M01019
Distribution of Shareholding:

The Shareholding distribution of the equity shares
as on March 31,2025 is given below:-

No. of
Shareholders*

No. of
Shares

% of Total
Shareholders

1-5000 15,953 37,92,897 98.59

5001-10000 104 740,802 0.64

10001 and 125  2,27,86,600 077
above

Total 16,182 2,73,20,299 100.00

*Total nos. of Folio of the Company as on March 31,
2025.
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Shareholding Pattern:

The Shareholding of different categories of the
shareholders as on March 31,2025 is given below:-

Category No. of Shares | % of Holdings
Promoters 1,60,84,080 58.87
Foreign Promoter 18,22,840 6.67
Foreign Portfolio Investor 8,453 0.031
LLP 3,50,430 1.28
Non - Resident Indians 481,637 176
Other Bodies Corporate 8,80,316 3.22
Clearing Member 63 0.00
Hindu Undivided Family 2,91,792 1.07
Public 73,99,827 27.09
Investor Education and 861 0.00
Protection Fund (IEPF)

TOTAL 2,73,20,299 100

j.  Share Transfer System:

All share transfer and other communications
regarding share certificates, change of address,
and dividends etc., should be addressed to
Registrar and Transfer Agents.

Asperdirectivesissued by SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations,
2015, SEBI (Listing Regulations 2015), effective
from April 01, 2019, transfer of shares of a listed
company can only be effected in dematerialized
form. Therefore, shareholders are requested to
dematerialize their shares in their own interest.

Accordingly, Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee is authorized to approve transfer of
shares in the physical segment. The Committee
has delegated authority for approving transfer
and transmission of shares and other related
matters to the officers of the Company. Such
transfers take place on weekly basis. A summary
of all the transfer/transmissions etc., if any, so
approved by officers of the Company is placed at
every Committee meeting. All share transfers are
completed within statutory time limit from the
date of receipt, provided the documents meet the
stipulated requirement of statutory provisions
in all respects. The Company obtains from a
Company Secretary in practice yearly certificate
of compliance with the share transfer formalities
as required under Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, and files a copy of the same
with the Stock Exchanges.

k. Dematerialization of shares:

AsonMarch 31,2025,100% of the Company’s paid-
up Equity Share Capital was held in dematerialized
form with NSDL and CDSL. The Company’s equity
shares are reqularly traded on NSE and BSE.
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Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any
Convertible Instruments:

As of date, Company has not issued GDRs / ADRs/
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk
and hedging activities:

As such the nature of the business of the Company
is not exposed to any commodity price risk/
hedging activities.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

The Company has appointed M/s. MUFG Intime
India Private Limited (Formerly known as Link
Intime India Private Limited) as its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent. As required under Regulation
7(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
has filed a Certificate issued by Registrar and the
Compliance Officer of the Company certifying
that all activities in relation to both physical and
electronic share transfer facility are maintained
by its RTA.

Plant Locations:

The Company is not in the business of
manufacturing, it operates from various offices
in India and abroad for the purpose of business
expansion with its registered and corporate office
at Mumbai.

Address for Correspondence:

All shareholders’ correspondence relating to share
transfer / dematerialisation of shares, payment of
dividend and any other queries of shares should
be forwarded to M/s. MUFG Intime India Private
Limited (Formerly known as Link Intime India
Private Limited), the Reqistrar and Transfer Agent
of the Company or to the Corporate Secretarial
Department at the Registered Office of the
Company at the addresses mentioned below.

MUFG Intime India Private
Limited (Formerly known as Ms. Pooja Sutradhar
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.)  Shemaroo House,

Unit: Shemaroo Entertainment Plot No. 18, Marol
Limited Co-op. Industrial Estate
C-107, 247 Park, Marol, Andheri (East),
Lal Bahadur Shastri Road, Mumbai - 400059.
Vikhroli West, Tel No.: 022-40319911
Mumbai-400083. E-mail Id: compliance.
Tel No.:- 022-49186000; officer@shemaroo.com
Fax: 022-49186060

E-mail Id: rnt.helpdesk@

in.mpms.mufg.com

Compliance Officer

The Company’s dedicated e-mail address for
Investors’” Complaints and other communications
is investors_services@shemaroo.com.

Financial Statements

Service of documents through Email:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act service
of documents to shareholders by a Company is
allowed through electronic mode. Further, as per
SEBI Listing Regulations, Listed Companies shall
supply physical copies of entire annual reports to
all those shareholders who specifically request for
the same. Accordingly, the Company proposes to
send documents like shareholders meeting notice/
other notices, Audited Financial Statements,
Board’s’ Report, Auditor’s Report or any other
document, to its shareholders in electronic form
at the email address provided by them and/or
made available to the Company by their
depositories. This will definitely help in prompt
receipt of communication, reduce paper
consumption and save trees as well as avoid loss of
documents in transit.

Shareholders who have not yet reqgistered their
email id (including those who wish to change their
already registered email id) may get the same
registered/ updated either with their depositories
or by writing to the Company/Registrar.

Nomination Facility:

As per the provisions of the Act, facility for making
nomination is available for shareholders in respect
of shares held by them. Shareholders holding
shares in physical form may obtain nomination
form, from the Company or download the same
from the Company’s website. Members holding
shares in dematerialized form should contact their
Depository Participants (DP) in this regard.

Listof all creditratings obtained by the Company:

Refer the Directors report for all credit ratings
obtained by the Company.

8. OTHER DISCLOSURES

Related Party Transactions

The Company has formulated a policy on
materiality of Related Party Transactions and
also on dealing with Related Party Transactions,
in accordance with relevant provisions of the Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations. The said policy is
also available on the website of the Company at

www.shemarooent.com.

During the financial year under review, all Related
Party Transactions are approved by the Audit
Committee prior to the transaction. The Audit
Committee has, after obtaining approval of the
Board of Directors, laid down the criteria for
granting omnibus approval for such transactions
which are of repetitive nature and are approved
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by the Audit Committee on omnibus basis for
one financial year at a time. The Company had no
materially significant Related Party Transactions,
which is considered to have potential conflict with
the interests of the Company at large. Transactions
with related parties are disclosed in Note no. 27 to
the Standalone Financial Statements.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has established a Vigil mechanism
/ Whistle blower policy under which the
employees are free to report about the unethical
behaviour, fraud, violations of applicable laws and
regulations and the Code of Conduct and also
provides for adequate safequards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism.
This mechanism has been appropriately
communicated within the Company across all
levels and has been displayed on the Company’s
website at www.shemarooent.com. The Audit
Committee periodically reviews the existence
and functioning of the mechanism. On a quarterly
basis, the reportable matters may be disclosed to
Vigilance and Ethics Officer which operates under
the supervision of the Audit Committee. During the
year under review, no employee was denied access
to the Audit Committee.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

M/s. Dilip Bharadiya & Associates, Practicing
Company  Secretaries, carried out the
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as mandated
by SEBI, and reports on the reconciliation of total
issued and listed capital with that of total share
capital admitted / held in dematerialized form
with NSDL and CDSL and those held in physical
form. This audit is carried out on quarterly basis
and the report thereof is submitted to the Stock
Exchanges, where the Company’s shares are listed
and is also placed before the Board for its noting.

Compliance with mandatory requirements:

The Company has complied with all applicable
mandatory requirements of the SEBI Listing
Requlations as on March 31, 2025. Quarterly
Compliance Report on Corporate Governance,
in the prescribed format, duly signed by the
Compliance Officer is submitted with the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company
are listed.

Details of non-compliance by the Company:

The Company has complied with all the
requirements of requlatory authorities. No
penalties and strictures were imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
other statutory authority on any matter related to
the capital market during the last three years.

Vi.

vii.

Annual Report 2024-25

Adoption of Discretionary Requirements:
a. Chairman

Mr. Raman Maroo is Executive Director and
also designated as Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company w.e.f. December 07,
2021.

During his tenure, except payments of
nominal sitting fees for attending meetings
of the Board, no reimbursement of expenses
was made by the Company on account of
performance of his duties.

b. Shareholders’ Rights

The Quarterly / Half-yearly / Annual Financial
Results of the Company are published in the
newspapers having circulation all over India
andin a Marathi newspaper having circulation
in Mumbai and also hosted on its website -
www.shemarooent.com

A Physical copy of Annual Report are sent to
those shareholders who has made specific
request for the same.

c. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The Company is in the regime of un-qualified
financial statements with unmodified audit
opinion.

d. Separate posts of Chairperson and the
Managing Director or the Chief Executive
Officer

Mr.Raman H. Maroo, Managing Director of the
Company was appointed as Chairman w.e.f.
December 07, 2021 and Mr. Hiren U. Gada is
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Currently, Chairperson and
Director are same person.

Managing

e. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor has the access of
reporting directly to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Auditors of the Company
make quarterly presentations to the Audit
Committee members on their Internal Audit
reports.

Disclosure on compliance with Corporate
Governance Requirements specified in SEBI
Listing Regulations

The Company has complied with the requirements
of Part C of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has complied with Corporate
Governance requirements specified in Regulation
17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2)
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of Requlation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and necessary disclosures thereof have been made
in this Corporate Governance Report.

Compliance with Regulation 39(4) of the SEBI
Listing Reqgulations

Pursuant to Reqgulation 39(4) of SEBI Listing
Requlations read with Schedule VI thereof, the
Company reports that there are no outstanding
unclaimed shares for the period April 01, 2024 to
March 31, 2025.

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider
Trading

The Code of Conduct prohibits the Designated
Persons of the Company dealing in the securities
of the Company on the basis of any Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information, available to them by
virtue of their position in the Company.

The Code of Conduct has been formulated to
regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of trading
by the Designated Persons towards achieving
compliance with the Regulations and to prevent
misuse of any Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information and prohibit any insider trading
activity, in order to protect the interest of the
shareholders at large.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of
the Company at www.shemarooent.com

Details of utilisation of funds raised through
Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions
Placement as Specified under Regulation 32(7A)

The Company has not raised any fund through
Preferential Allotment or Qualified Institutions
Placement as specified under requlation 32 (7A)
of the SEBI (LODR) Requlations, 2015, during the
financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Certificate for Non-Disqualification of Directors:

A certificate from M/s. Dilip Bharadiya &
Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, have
been obtained certifying that none of the directors
on the board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of the Company by Securities and
Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority. The
certificate is annexed as Annexure ‘B’.

Review of Prevention of Sexual Harassment:

The Company has complied with provisions
relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.
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Committee under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 [14 of 2013]. The details
of complaints received and redressed during the
financial year 2024-25 are as under:

a. number of complaints filed during the
financial year: NIL

b.  number of complaints disposed of during the
financial year: NIL

c. number of complaints pending as on end of
the financial year.: NIL

Loans and advances in the nature of loans by
the Company and its subsidiaries to firms/
companies in which directors are interested:

The Company has not provided any loans to other
firms/companies in which directors are interested.

Further, subsidiaries of the Company has not given
any loans and advances in the nature of loans to
firms/companies in which directors are interested.

Recommendation by the Committee of the
Board:

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board
has accepted all the recommendations of its
Committees.

Statutory Audit Fees:

Total fees paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
to the statutory auditors of the Company and all
other entities forming part of the same network,
aggregate of ¥18.50 Lakhs.

CEO/CFO Certification:

The ‘Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial
Officer (CEO &CFO)’ have certified to the Board
with regard to the compliance made by them
in terms of Requlation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations and the
said certificate forms part of this Report as
Annexure ‘A’.

Compliance Certificate of the Auditors

Certificate from the Auditors, M/s Dilip Bharadiya
& Associates, Company Secretaries, confirming
compliance with conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34 read
with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Requlations,
and the said certificate forms part of this Report.
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DECLARATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 26(3) READ WITH SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS

In accordance with Requlation 26(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations, We hereby declare that the Board of
Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable
to them for the financial year March 31, 2025.

Sd/- Sd/-

Raman Maroo Hiren Gada
Chairman & Managing Director WTD & CEO
DIN: 00169152 DIN: 01108194
Mumbai

May 13,2025
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Annexure A

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION
CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) THE SEBI (LODR), REGULATIONS, 2015

To,
The Board of Directors
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

We,theundersigned,inourrespective capacities as Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer of Shemaroo Entertainment
Limited (“the Company”), to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  these statements do not contain any materiality untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. Thereare,tothe best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to
the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee
i.  significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii.  significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

iii. Instancesofsignificant fraud of whichthey have become aware andtheinvolvementtherein,ifany,ofthe management
or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Hiren Gada Amit Haria
WTD & CEO CFO

DIN: 01108194

Mumbai
May 13,2025
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Annexure B

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended)]

To

The Members

SHEMAROO ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative Ind. Estate,
Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

This Certificate is being issued to the Members of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited, bearing Corporate Identity Number
(CIN) - L67190MH2005PLC158288, having its registered office address at Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-Operative
Ind. Estate, Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East, Mumbai-400059 (“the Company”) in terms of Requlation 34(3) read with
Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”).

We believe it is the responsibility of the Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (“Act”) and SEBI LODR Regulations.

We have examined the documents and disclosures provided by the following Directors (as on March 31, 2025) in electronic
mode, for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with the requirements under the Act and the Listing Regulations:

| Sr. No. | Name of the Director | DIN | Date of appointment (dd-mm-yyyy)
1. Raman Hirji Maroo 00169152 23-12-2005
2. Atul Hirji Maru 00169264 23-12-2005
3. Hiren Uday Gada 01108194 26-05-2008
4. Jai Buddhichand Maroo 00169399 26-05-2008
5. Sunil Kumar Bansal 00713868 18-01-2023
6. Rajen Hemchand Gada 01642360 24-05-2024
T Abbas Ismail Contractor 00637326 24-05-2024
8. Kashmira Nilesh Dedhia 00914691 24-03-2025

Mr. Gnanesh Gala (DIN: 00093008) and Mr. Vasanji Mamania (DIN: 00013071), who were originally appointed as an
Independent Directors on 29.08.2011 retired due to completion of tenure w.e.f. 25-05-2024.

Dr. CA Reeta Bharat Shah (DIN: 07141304) who was appointed as an Independent Director on 28-03-2015 retired due to
completion of tenure w.e.f. 27-03-2025.

Based on our examination of relevant documents made available to us by the Company and such other verifications [including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in] carried out by us as deemed necessary and
adequate, in our opinion and to the best of our information and knowledge and according to the explanations provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives, we hereby certify that as on date of this certificate, none of the directors
on the Board of the Company, as listed hereinabove, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Dilip Bharadiya & Associates

Sd/-

CS Dilip Bharadiya

Partner

Place: Mumbai FCS No. 7956 CP No. 6740
Date : May 13, 2025 UDIN: F007956G000329629
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

1.  Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“standalone Ind AS financial statements”) for the year 3.
ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally acceptedin India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, its loss, total comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the

Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 33.6 to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended 31t March
2025, which describes the details of search operation
carried out during the earlier year and demand raised
in connection with the same by the GST Department
on the Company during the year and the issues arising
therefrom.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

z:; Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1. Valuation & amortization estimate of inventory of Our procedures consisted of evaluating management’s

copyrights -

The copyrights are stated at cost/ carrying cost or
realizable value whichever is lower. The Company
evaluates the realizable value and revenue potential
of respective rights based on management estimate of
market condition & demand of those respective rights.
An accelerated impairment is considered if needed.

We have considered this as key audit matter due
to the amount of inventory balance and company’s
assessment of the fair value considering dynamic
market conditions. This assessment involves
judgements about future predictions of business and
cash flows.

methodology & key assumptions and included following
audit procedures -

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
review of inventory impairment testing performed by
management.

Designed & performed audit procedures with respect to
impairment testing workings including the assumptions
and estimates used in evaluation of carrying values of
assets where there is an indication of impairment.

Assessing the appropriateness of any changes to
assumptions since the prior period.
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Key Audit Matter
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Auditor’s Response

2.

Recognition of Revenue

The recognition of revenue from Advertisement,
Subscription and syndication of content has been
considered to be critical since the Company has
entered into multiple complex contracts with its
customers. Apart from the contractual agreements
as entered, the Company recognised revenue based
on the logs/ information as received from such
customers.

The complexity of these contractual terms also
requires the Company to make judgements in
assessing fulfillment of its obligations under the
contracts to recognise the revenue in line with the
accounting policy adopted and Indian accounting
standard 115.

Considered the revenue recognition policies of the
Company in respect of those contracts and assessed
the consistent application of these policies in light of
the requirements of relevant accounting standards.

Tested the transactions closer to the year end to check
the recognition of revenue in the correct period.

Performed substantive procedures with regard to
revenue from Advertisement, Subscription and
syndication of content by agreeing to third party
information, logs received from the customers and
other relevant information on sample basis.

Informationotherthanthe standaloneInd AS financial
statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
Ind AS financial statements and our Auditor’s Report
thereon. The Directors Report & Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of
our audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the
above reports, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance and
determine the actions under the applicable laws and
regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive loss, changes in

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as
amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irreqularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as
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a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a quarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards
on auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether

Financial Statements

the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
astatement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

Il.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the statement of changes in equity
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind
AS financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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f)

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be
includedinthe Auditor’'s Reportinaccordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be
includedinthe Auditor’s Reportinaccordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in Note 33.4 of its standalone
Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there are any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
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by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any gquarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have
been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not paid any dividend
during the year.

The Board of Directors of the Company has
neither proposed nor paid any dividend for
the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test

checks,

the Company has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account for
thefinancial year ended 315t March, 2025 which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Based on our procedures performed we did not
notice any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved
by the company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

For Mukund M.

Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner

Membership no - 14054
UDIN : 25014054BMOBXL9148

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 13,2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Shemaroo
Entertainment Limited

Referred to in paragraph [8(1)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date

According to the information and explanations sought by
us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)

a)

A) The Company has maintained proper records
showingfull particulars,including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, capital work-in-progress and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment, including
right-of-use assets, are physically verified by the
management according to a programme of phased
verification, which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant tothe programme, the
Property, Plant and Equipment are in the process
of being physically verified by management and
subject to reconciliation and updation.

Based on the examination of the registered sale
deed and name change documents of the Company
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land
and buildings which are freehold, disclosed in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
is pending against the Company during the year
for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

As explained to us, the nature of the inventories of
the Company are such that clause (ii) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis
of security of current assets. We have observed
differences / reconciliation items in the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions as compared to
the books of account maintained by the Company.
However, we have not carried out a specific audit of

such statements. The details of such differences /
reconciliation items are given in Note no 16(a)(i) to
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

The Company has made investmentsin but not provided
guarantees (letter of comfort) and not granted loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year, as follows :

a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, and on the basis of our verification
of records of the Company, the Company has not
provided loans during the year. Hence reporting
under clause (iii)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

b) In our opinion, the investments made are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

¢) According to the information and explanations
given to us, and on the basis of our verification
of records of the Company, the Company has not
provided loans during the year. Hence reporting
under clause (iii)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations
given to us, and on the basis of our verification
of records of the Company, the Company has not
provided loans during the year. Hence reporting
under clause (iii)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

e) Noloan granted by the Company which has fallen
dueduring the year, has been renewed or extended
or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of
existing loans given to the same parties. Hence
reporting under clause (iii)(e) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

f)  The Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any
investment or provided any guarantees or security to
the parties covered under Section 185. In our opinion,
and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has complied with the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans and investments made, and guarantees and
security provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public to which the directives issued by the Reserve
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Vi.

viii.

Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or vii. (a) According to the information and explanations

any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules given to us, the Company is reqgular in depositing
framed thereunder apply. Hence reporting under clause undisputed statutory dues including provident
3 (v) of the Order is not applicable. fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax

goods and services Tax, duty of customs, duty of
The Company is required to maintain cost records as excise, cess and any other statutory dues with the

prescribed by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly

appropriate authorities.

reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company There were no undisputed amounts payable in
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
for the maintenance of the cost records under section Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
that prima facie, the prescribed records have been 31t March, 2025, for a period of more than six
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed months from the date they became payable.

examination of the said records.

(b) Accordingtotherecords ofthe Company,the dues outstanding ofincome-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Period to which

Amount Involved | Amount Unpaid Forum where

Name of the statute | Nature of dues Z Lakh)  Lakh) the amount dispute is pending
relates
Income tax Income tax 9.27 9.27 FY 2017-18 AO
GST GST 20,386.23 19,186.23 July 2017 - March ~ GST -Superintendent
2024
RANGE-V
According to the information and explanations given its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate
to us, there were no transactions relating to previously companies.

unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed
asincome in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Xx. (a) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment further public offer (including debt instruments) or
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of term loans and hence reporting under paragraph
interest thereon to banks or financial institutions. 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the

The Company did not have any borrowings from Company.

the government during the year. (b) During the year, the Company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)
(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our
opinion, term loans availed by the Company were,
applied by the Company during the year for the
purposes for which the loans were obtained, other
than temporary deployment pending application.

xi. (@) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, there have been
no instances of fraud on the Company by its
customers. No fraud by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year, nor have
we been informed of any such case by the
Management. Hence reporting under clause 3(xi)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Onanoverall examination of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been

used during the year for long-term purposes by (b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143
the Company. of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year by the Statutory
Auditors and upto the date of this report.

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. (c) As represented to us by the Management, there

were no whistle blower complaints received by

the Company during the year and upto the date of
this report.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Statutory Reports

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given by
the management, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(@) In our opinion and based on our examination,
the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

We have takeninto consideration, the reports of the
Internal Auditors received by the company during
the year and provided to us while determining the
nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or person connected with
them. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause

3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not conducted any Non- Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities and hence
reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(b) is not applicable
to the Company.

The company is not a Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under
clause 3 (xvi)(c) is not applicable to the Company.

The Group does not have any Core Investment
Company (CIC) as part of the Group and hence
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

Financial Statements

The Company hasincurred cash losses amounting to Rs.
10,170.24 Lakhs during the financial year covered by our
audit and cash losses amounting to Rs. 2,487.37 Lakhs
in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
of the Company during the year. Hence, the provisions
of clause clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

On the basis of our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to
us by the management, the Company is not required
to set aside any amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale

Partner

Membership no - 14054

UDIN: 25014054BMOBXL9148

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13,2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Shemaroo Entertainment

Limited

Referred to in paragraph [8(l1)(f)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
basedontheinternalcontrolwithreferencetostandalone
Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India” (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone
Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls

with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to

standalone Ind AS financial statements

4.

A company’s internal financial control with reference
to standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone Ind AS financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that income and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding preventionortimelydetectionofunauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference

to standalone Ind AS financial statements

5.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone
Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject



Company Overview Statutory Reports

to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal

Financial Statements

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale

Partner

Membership no - 14054

UDIN : 25014054BMOBXL9148

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2025
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(X in Lakhs)
| I Particulars Notes et
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
ASSETS
| Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 3,719742 4,093.55
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3 (a) = -
(c) Investment property 3 (b) 13.01 13.53
(d) Other Intangible assets 3 (c) 8475 92.62
(e) Right of use Assets 4 209.56 22742
(f)  Financial assets
(i)  Non-Current Investments 5 (a) 1,464.58 1,400.04
(ii) Loans and Advances 5(b) 20.37 724
(iii) Other Financial assets 5 (c) 970.52 440.82
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 14 4,198.11 1,135.81
(h)  Other non-current assets 6 17.66 31.43
10,775.98 7442.46
I Currents assets
(a) Inventories 7 56,075.65 67,648.63
(b) Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables 8 (a) 10,175.11 14,184.41
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 (b) 9.73 6.13
(iii) Other Bank Balances 8 (c) 134.54 0.34
(iv) Loans and Advances 8 (d) 1,244.98 1,326.36
(v) Other Financial assets 8 (e) 2,931.15 1,146.12
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net of provisions) 1,437.41 4,256.71
(d)  Other current assets 9 3,191.01 5,941.01
Total Current Assets 75,199.58 94,509.71
Total Assets 85,975.56 101,952.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,7132.03 2,122.63
(b) Other Equity 11 44,266.15 52,741.12
Equity attributable to owners 46,998.18 55,463.75
Non-controlling Interest
Total Equity 46,998.18 55,463.75
Liabilities
| Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Non-Current borrowings 12 5155 5/9) 697.30
(i) Lease Liability 30 165.13 184.91
(b) Provisions 13 359.56 361.13
(c) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 14 = -
(d) Other Non Current Liabilities 15 141.13 46.74
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,221.81 1,290.08
1l Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i)  Current Borrowings 16 (a) 29,454.33 32,482.42
(ii)  Trade payables 16 (b)
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,493.84 3,10.17
Due to Others 4,742.47 7,034.44
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 16 (c) 261.14 76717
(iv) Lease Liability 30 65.65 55.01
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 17 1,554.20 1,593.40
(c) Provisions 18 183.94 155.73
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) - -
Total Current Liabilities 37,755.57 45,198.33
Total Liabilities 38,977.38 46,488.42
Total Equity and Liabilities 85,975.56 101,952.17

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Raman Maroo

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 00169152

Amit Haria
CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Hiren Gada

WTD and CEO

DIN 01108194

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 315t March 2025

(R in Lakhs)

Sl. Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
l. Income

Revenue from operations 19 65,048.93 67,697.30

Other income 20 93574 49175

Total Income 65,984.67 68,189.05
Il Expenses

Operational Cost 21 5575133 49719.40

Employee benefits expense 22 12,390.34 11,183.10

Finance costs 23 3,679.40 3,624.20

Depreciation and amortization expense 3&4 599.21 554.93

Other expenses 24 5,423.34 714290

Total Expenses 77,849.62 72,224.53
1. (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (11,864.95) (4,035.48)
IV. Exceptional Items 331 = -
V. (Loss) before Tax for the year (ll1-1V) (11,864.95) (4,035.48)
VI. Tax expense

Current tax 339 = -

Earlier years (62.13) 1,058.46

Deferred tax (Credit) 14 (3,053.21) (831.14)

Total Tax expense (3,115.34) 227.32
Vil. (Loss) for the year (A) (V-VI) (8,749.61) (4,262.80)
VIIl. Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (36.13) (104.41)

Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 9.09 26.28

Total Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (B) (27.04) (78.13)
IX. Total comprehensive loss for the year (A + B) (8,776.65) (4,340.93)
X. Earnings per equity share [face value of share ¥ 10] 25

(a) Basic®) (32.07) (15.66)

(b)  Diluted (%) (32.02) (15.65)

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the financial standalone statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited
For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 106655W

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Raman Maroo
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 00169152

M. M. Chitale Amit Haria
Partner CFO
Membership No. 14054

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025
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(in Lakhs)
Particulars hEanend =
31+t March 2025 31t March 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax (11,864.95) (4,035.48)
Adjustments for:
Other Comprehensive Income (36.13) (104.41)
Employee compensation expense 196.23 170.89
Depreciation & Amortisation 599.21 55493
Provision for GST paid under Protest - 1,200.00
Financial Cost 3,679.40 3,624.20
Liabilties no longer required written back (39.42) -
Interest Income (361.61) (273.51)
Dividend Income (0.35) -
Unrealised foreign exchange Gain (20.28) (51.79)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Assets (0.53) (0.74)
Share of loss/(Profit) from investment in LLP (128.37) 139.06
Impairment loss on Investment in Associates 240.00 -
Provision for old advances 30.00 -
Provision for Compensated leave absences 10.54 (12.23)
Provision for Gratuity 18.14 215.10
Bad Debts written off 112.37 373.10
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (7,565.75) 1,799.12
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade or Other Receivable 4,349.92 (4,182.54)
Decrease in Inventories 11,572.98 5,398.29
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade or Other Payable (3,873.96) 4214
Cash generated from operations 4,483.19 3,057.01
Direct Taxes paid (net) (2,881.43) 593.51
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,364.62 2,463.50
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment including Capital WIP and Intangible (228.29) (1,015.27)
assets under development
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.53 0.74
(Investment in)/Withdrawal from Subsidiaries 63.84 199.34
Loan repayment from/given to Subsidairies (69.90) (51.90)
Impairment loss on Investment in Associates (240.00) -
Dividend Income 0.35 -
Interest Income 361.61 273.51
Net cash (used in) investing activities (111.86) (593.58)
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(in Lakhs)
Particulars o JEanendes
0 31t March 2024
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability (82.07) (71.23)
(Decrease) in Non-Current Borrowings (598.83) (717.50)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Borrowings (3,028.10) 2,459.76
Issue of Equity Shares with Securities Premium 114.85 57.34
Financial Cost (3,655.01) (3,599.69)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (7,249.16) (1,871.32)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3.60 (1.40)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 6.13 753
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 9.73 6.13
Note :
Cash & Cash equivalents consists of cash and bank balances and other bank balances as under:
(Zin Lakhs)
| =16 Particulars et
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
i) Balances with banks
- Current accounts in Indian rupees 1.37 0.85
i) Cash on Hand 8.36 5.28
Total 9.73 6.13

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited
For Mukund M. Chitale & Co. Raman Maroo Hiren Gada

Chartered Accountants Chairman and Managing Director WTD and CEO

Firm Registration No. 106655W DIN 00169152 DIN 01108194

M. M. Chitale Amit Haria Pooja Sutradhar
Partner CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 14054 Membership No.: A40807
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 13" May, 2025 Date: 13" May, 2025
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A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at

Changes in equity

Balance as at

Changes in equity

(R in Lakhs)

Balance as at

Particulars Note 15t April 2023 s!\are capital 315 March 2024 s!\are capital 315t March 2025
during the year during the year
Equity Share Capital 10 2,718.22 4.41 2,722.63 9.39 2,7132.03
B. Other Equity (R in Lakhs)

Other

Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive

Income
Particulars Note . Employee Total

Securities . Remeasurement

. General Stock Retained "
premium . . of Defined
reserve Options Earnings .
account Benefit Plan
Reserve
Balance as at 31t March 2023 14,340.81 2,112.81 189.45 40,072.72 142.44 56,858.24
Add: additions during the year 82.49 141.33 223.82
Total Comprehensive Income for the " (4,262.80) (78.13) (4,340.93)
year
Balance as at 315t March 2024 14,423.30 2,112.81 330.78 35,809.92 64.31 52,741.12
Add: additions during the year 162.15 - 18.86 120.67 301.68
Total Comprehensive Income for the " (8,7149.61) (27.04) (8,/76.65)
year

Balance as at 31t March 2025 14,585.45 2,112.81 349.64 27,180.98 37.27 44,266.15

Note : There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors.

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Raman Maroo
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 00169152

Amit Haria
CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807
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2.1

2.2

2.3

Corporate information

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (‘Shemaroo’ or ‘the
Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and
incorporated on 23 December, 2005, in the state
of Maharashtra. The Company’s registered office is
at Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18, Marol Co-operative
Industrial Estate, Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East
Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, India. The Company’s
equity shares are listed on both BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Shemaroo is engaged in the distribution of content
for Broadcasting of Satellite Channels and Digital
Technologies like Mobile, Internet, Broadband, IPTV and
DTH among others.

These financial statements are approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 13" May 2025.

Material accounting policies
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the company have been
prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS'), notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial
statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (%), which is its functional currency.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise
stated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the
Schedule Il to the Act.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the reported income and expenses during
the year. The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due
to these estimates and the differences between the
actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known/materialise.

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
netofrecoverable taxes,tradediscountandrebates
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable
to bringing the assets to its working condition for
its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow the entity and the cost can be measured
reliably.

Cost incurred on Property, Plant and Equipment
not ready for their intended use is disclosed
as Capital Work-in-Progress. Advances paid
towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date are classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets. Unpaid amounts towards
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are
classified under other current financial liabilities if
due within one year from the date of these financial
statements and under other non-current financial
liabilities if due after a year from the date of these
financial statements.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if deemed appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a
property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition
net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebate less accumulated amortisation/ depletion
and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes
purchase price, development costs, borrowing
costs and any cost directly attributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended
use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts
and adjustments arising from exchange rate
variations attributable to the intangible assets.
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(c)

(d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carryingamount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the items will
flow to the Company and cost can be measured
reliably.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided using straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated
by the management, or those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment
purchased/sold during a period is proportionately
charged. Fixed Assets individually costing
¥ 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year
of acquisition. The Company has estimated the
useful lives for the fixed assets as follows :

Office Building 58 years
Plant & Machinery 9 - 15 years*
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Motor Vehicle 8 -10 years
Computers 3 -5years
Leasehold Improvments 3 -5years

* In case of office equipments, useful life is
estimated to approximate their expected wear &
tear, which is higher than the one prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il

Software acquired initially together with hardware
is capitalised along with the cost of hardware and
depreciated in the same manner as the hardware.

The Company has estimated the useful lives for the
intangible assets as follows :

Computer Software 5 vyears (or useful life of
computer software whichever is lower)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest expense
calculated using the effective interest method
under Ind AS 109 and exchange differences arising

(e)

(f)

(9)

from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets - property,
plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets

The Company assesses at each reporting dates
as to whether there is any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment,
if any.

If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the Statement of the Profit and Loss
to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Theimpairmentlossrecognisedin prioraccounting
period is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are carried at cost.
Inventories

The media content (copyrights) are stated at lower
of cost/unamortised cost or net realisable value.
The Company evaluates the net realisable value
and/or revenue potential of inventory based on
management estimate of market conditions and
future demand and appropriate impairment is
made in cases where accelerated impairment is
warranted.

The copyrights are valued at a percentage of
cost based on the nature of rights, as estimated
by the Management. The Company evaluates the
net realisable value and/or revenue potential
of inventory based on management estimate
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(h)

(i)

(3

(k)

of market conditions and future demand and
appropriate write down is made in cases where
accelerated write down is warranted.

Inventories of Raw material Stock are valued at
cost or estimated net realizable value whichever is
lower.

Projects in progress and movies under production
are stated at cost. Cost comprises the cost of
materials, the cost of services, labour and other
expenses, to the extent they are incurred for
creating an asset.

Inventories of physical media which consists
of DVDs, Blu-ray, Physical Equipments &
Merchandising are valued on FIFO basis.

The borrowing costs directly attributable to a
movie is capitalised as part of the cost.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before
payment of the consideration is due or payments
are already due but yet to be realized).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand
deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities are stated
using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss)
before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated in a manner which is
most appropriate to the business.

Financial Assets
A. Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets, which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value
on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of

financial assets are recognised using trade
date accounting.

Subsequent measurement :

a) Financial assets carried at amortised
cost

A financial asset is subsequently
measured at amortised cost if it is
held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if
it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

c¢) Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified
in the above categories are fair valued
through profit or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures :

The Company has accounted for its
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint venture at cost.

Impairment of Financial assets :

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company
uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model,
for evaluating impairment assessment of
financial assets other than those measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

The Company measures the expected credit
loss associated with its assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the
business environment in which the entity
operates or any other appropriate basis. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
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)

(m)

(n)

whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses
a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on
its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Every
year, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses various derivative financial
instruments such as interest rate swaps, currency
swaps, forwards & options and commodity
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest
rates, exchange rates and commodity prices. The
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value
on the date the contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
each reporting date.

The company has measured all derivative financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) unless they qualify for and are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Changes in the
fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities
A. Initial recognition and measurements:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and in case of loans net of directly
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in profit or loss as finance
cost.

B. Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. For
trade and other payables maturing within
one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the short maturity of these instruments.

Leases

The Company assesseswhetheracontractcontains
a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset;

(i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease; and

(iii) the Company has theright to direct the use of
the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short
termand low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options
to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that the option to extend will be exercised
and the option to terminate will not be exercised.

The right-of use assets are initially recognized at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated
for recoverability whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e.the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and
the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cashflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily
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(o)

(p)

determinable, using the incremental borrowing
rates in the country of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of
use asset if the Company changes its assessment
of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset
are separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments are classified as financing cash
flows.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised as
an expense during the period when the employees
render the services.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected
to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the
related service are recognised as a liability as at
the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

Post-employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans

A Defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which the Company pays
specified contributions towards Provident Fund
and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution
is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post
employment benefits is calculated using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the
period during which the benefit is expected to be
derived from employee's services.

Re-measurement of Defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment and other long term
benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive
Income.

Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of

(q)

Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in the comprehensive income
orin equity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for all taxable
temporory differences except to the extent they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill or
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination
& at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets
is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount
of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

Foreign currencies transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary item are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
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(r)

currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the transaction value.

1. Sale of Content, Content Production, Film
Distribution and Syndication - Revenue is
recognised, when the company satisfies the
performance obligation by transferrring the
control over the item in accordance with the
agreed terms.

Contract assets - Unbilled Revenue

A contract asset is the right to consideration
in exchange for services transferred to the
customer. If the Company transfers services
to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are recognised when there is excess
of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled
revenues (only act of invoicing is pending)
when there is unconditional right to receive
cash, and only passage of time is required, as
per contractual terms.

2. Broadcasting revenue - Advertisement
revenue (net of discount and volume rebates)
isrecognised when the related advertisement
or commercial appears before the public i.e.
on telecast. Subscription revenue (net of
share to broadcaster) is recognised on time
basis on the provision of television / digital
broadcasting service to subscribers.

3. Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods (ACDs/VCDs/
DVDs/ACS/BRDs) is recognised when all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of goods measured at
the transaction value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

(s)

(t)

(u)

4. Subscription Revenue

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
services to acustomer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If
a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made, or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company
satisfies its performance obligation under the
contract. Unearned and deferred revenue is
recognised when there are billings in excess
of revenues.

Other income
i) Interest Income

Interest Income from a financial asset is
recognised based on Effective Interest Rate
(EIR). Interest Income is included under the
head "other income" in the statement of
profit and loss.

ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the
Group’sright to receive the payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the company & the amount of dividend can
be measured reliably.

iii) RentIncomeisrecognised on accrual basis as
per the agreed terms on straight line basis.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit
or (loss) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions, contingent liabilities & contigent
assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has
apresent obligation as aresult of a past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.
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(v)

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a financial cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Investment property

Investment in buildings that is not intended to
be occupied substantially for use by, or in the
operations of the Company, are classified as
investment property. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent toinitial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,
if any. All repairs and maintenance costs incurred
for the investment properties are charged to
statement of profit and loss account whenincurred.

Investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.
Useful life of the same is estimated as 58 years
after considering estimated residual value as 5%.

(w)

Though the Company measures investment
property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the
notes (Refer Note 3(b)). Fair values are determined
based on ready reckoner rate as specified by
State Government. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of
depreciated historical carrying value.

Investment properties are derecognised either
when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA”) notifies
new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has
notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases, relating to
sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has
reviewed the new pronouncements and based on
its evaluation has determined that it does not have
any significant impact in its financial statements.
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3(a) Property, Plant & Equipment
(% in Lakhs)

Office Plant & Motor Furniture Capital

FEMIEUES Building Machinery Vehicle & Fixtures

Computers Total Work-in-
Progress

Gross Carrying Value

At 1t April 2024 2,910.37 3,355.38 399.56 596.85 2,273.85 9,536.01 -
Additions = 1278 22.05 - 169.64 204.47 -
Disposals = - (12.69) = (10.84) (23.53) -
At 31t March 2025 2,910.37 3,368.16 408.92 596.85 2,432.65 9,716.95 -
Accumulated Depreciation
At 15t April 2024 34752 2,539.83 230.71 513.66 1,810.74 5,442.46 -
Charge for the year 5573 134.98 34.43 18.90 256.56 500.60 -
Disposals = - (12.69) - (10.84) (23.53) =
At 31t March 2025 403.25 2,674.81 252.45 532.56 2,056.46 5,919.53 -
Net Carrying Value
At 1+t April 2024 2,562.85 815.55 168.85 83.19 463.11 4,093.55 -
At 31t March 2025 2,507.12 693.35 156.47 64.29 376.19 3,797.42 -
®in Lakhs)
. Office Plant & Motor | Furniture & Capi.tal
Particulars Building | Machinery Vehicle Fixtures Computers Total Work-in-
Progress
Gross Carrying Value
At 1t April 2023 2,339.78 3,242.85 320.86 589.81 2,01772 8,511.02 110.24
Additions 570.59 112.53 89.68 7.04 282.81 1,062.65 -
Disposals - - (10.98) - (26.68) (37.66) (110.24)
At 31t March 2024 2,910.37 3,355.38 399.56 596.85 2,273.85 9,536.01 -
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2023 298.45 2,379.16 21111 49574 1,628.90 5,013.36 -
Charge for the year 49.07 160.67 30.58 17.92 208.46 466.70 -
Disposals - - (10.98) - (26.62) (37.60) -
At 31t March 2024 34752 2,539.83 230.71 513.66 1,810.74 5,442.46 -
Net Carrying Value
At 1%t April 2023 2,041.33 863.69 109.75 94.07 388.82 3,497.66 110.24
At 31t March 2024 2,562.85 815.55 168.85 83.19 463.11 4,093.55 -
Note:

(iy  Office Building Include ¥ 0.98 lakh (Previous Year ¥ 0.98 lakh) in shares of Co-operative Housing Societies with right to hold and use
certain area of Buildings.

(i)  There is no immovable property where title deed of such immovable property is not held in name of the Company or jointly held with
others.

(iii)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during current financial year & previous financial year.
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3(b) Investment property (Refer Note 2.4(u))

Particulars | ) Particulars (L)
Amount Amount

Gross Carrying Value Gross Carrying Value

At 15t April 2024 3211 At 1t April 2023 32.1

Add: Transfer from Property, Plant & Equipment - Add: Transfer from Property, Plant & Equipment -

Disposals - Disposals

At 31t March 2025 32.11 At 31t March 2024 32.1

Accumulated depreciation Accumulated depreciation

At 15t April 2024 18.58 At 1t April 2023 18.06

Add: Transfer from Property, Plant & Equipment Add: Transfer from Property, Plant & Equipment -

Charge for the year 0.52 Charge for the year 0.52

Disposals - Disposals

At 31t March 2025 19.10 At 315t March 2024 18.58

Net Carrying Value Net Carrying Value

At 1+t April 2024 13.53 At 15t April 2023 14.05

At 31t March 2025 13.01 At 31t March 2024 13.53

Fair value Fair value

At 31t March 2025 803.12 At 31t March 2024 580.45

Note:

(i)  Company’s Investment Property consists of a commercial property whose fair value is as mentioned above. This valuation is based on
the ready reckoner rate as specified by State Government.

(i)  The Company has not revalued its Investment Property during current financial year & previous financial year.
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3(c) Other Intangible assets

Particulars | Software (510 Lafl!::;:)l Particulars | Software ¢l La-ll_:, E;Z)I
Gross Carrying Value Gross Carrying Value
At 1t April 2024 543.54 543.54 At 1t April 2023 482.05 482.05
Purchase 23.82 23.82 Purchase 61.49 61.49
Internal development - Internal development -
Disposals - - Disposals - -
At 31t March 2025 567.36 567.36 At 31t March 2024 543.54 543.54
Accumulated amortisation Accumulated amortisation
At 1t April 2024 450.92 450.92 At 1t April 2023 422.06 422.06
Charge for the year 31.69 31.69 Charge for the year 28.86 28.86
Disposals - - Disposals - -
At 31t March 2025 482.61 482.61 At 31t March 2024 450.92 450.92
Net Carrying Value Net Carrying Value
At 1t April 2024 92.62 92.62 At 1t April 2023 59.99 59.99
At 31t March 2025 84.75 84.75 At 31t March 2024 92.62 92.62
(i) The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during current financial year & previous financial year.
4  Right of use Assets
(in Lakhs)
Particulars Office Building Motor Vehicle Total
Gross Carrying Value
At 15t April 2024 64274 = 64274
Additions 34.98 13.50 48.48
Deductions = = =
At 31t March 2025 67772 13.50 691.22
Accumulated amortisation
At 15t April 2024 415.32 = 415.32
Charge for the year 65.98 0.36 66.34
Disposals = = =
At 31t March 2025 481.30 0.36 481.66
Net Carrying Value
At 15t April 2024 22742 - 22742
At 31+t March 2025 196.42 13.14 209.56
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Office Building Motor Vehicle | Total |
Gross Carrying Value
At 15t April 2023 379.78 - 37978
Additions 262.96 - 262.96
Deductions - - -
At 31t March 2024 64274 - 64274
Accumulated amortisation
At 1t April 2023 356.53 - 356.53
Charge for the year 58.79 - 58.79
Disposals - - -
At 31t March 2024 415.32 - 415.32
Net Carrying Value
At 1=t April 2023 23.25 - 23.25
At 31t March 2024 22742 - 22742

Note: The Company has not revalued its Right to Use Assets during current financial year & previous financial year.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
5 Financial Assets

As at

Particulars 31t March 2025

(@) Non- Current Investments

Financial Statements

(R in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Investments measured at Cost

In Subsidiaries, Unquoted

(i) 1,000,000 (31t March 2024:1,000,000) Equity shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up 100.00 100.00
of Canopy Entertainment Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary.
(i) 10,500 (31t March 2024:10,500 ) units of Shemaroo Media & Entertainment LLC, 42492 42492
USA, a wholly owned subsidiary.
(iii)  Capital Account in Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP
-in fixed capital account = 1.00
-in current capital account - 6.64
(iv)  Capital Account in Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP
- in fixed capital account 073 073
- in current capital account 924.04 611.86
In Equity shares, Unquoted, fully paid up
(v) 50,500 (31t March 2024: 50,500) Equity shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up of The 5.05 5.05
N.K.G.S.B. Co-op. Bank Limited.
(vi) 1,388 (31t March 2024:1,388) Equity shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up of 249.84 249.84
Dominiche Productions Private Limited.
Less: Provision for impairment (240.00) 0.00
Total 1,464.58 1,400.04
OTHER DISCLOSURES
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment 1,464.58 1,400.04
(a.i) Category-wise Non-Current Investments
Financial Assets measured at cost 1,464.58 1,400.04
Total 1,464.58 1,400.04
(a.ii) Share in Interest of Profit/(Loss) Ratio in Limited Liability Partnership
Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP - % of Share in Profit/(Loss) of LLP
<l Partner’s Name LEIEL LBEL
No. 31t March 2025* 315t March 2024
i Shemaroo Entertainment Limited - 99.99%
ii. Raman Hirji Maroo - 0.01%
Total share - 100.00%
*Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP got liquidated during the year w.e.f 22" Nov 2024
Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP - Balances of Investment in LLP
(X in Lakhs)
Sr. As at 31t March 2025 As at 31t March 2024
No. Partner's Name Fixed Capital Current Capital Fixed Capital Current Capital
i Shemaroo Entertainment Limited = = 1.00 6.64
ii. Raman Hirji Maroo = = 0.00 0.00
Total share - - 1.00 6.64
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Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP - % of Share in Profit/(Loss) of LLP
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T Partner’s Name AL SEL
No. 31st March 2025 31t March 2024
i Shemaroo Entertainment Limited 72.50% 72.50%
ii. Murtuza Fakhruddin Kagalwala 25.00% 25.00%
iii. Pulkit Sood 2.50% 2.50%
Total share 100.00% 100.00%
Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP - Balances of Investment in LLP
(X in Lakhs)
Sr. As at 31+t March 2025 As at 31t March 2024
N Partner’s Name
(€ Fixed Capital Current Capital Fixed Capital Current Capital
i Shemaroo Entertainment Limited 073 924.04 073 611.86
ii. Murtuza Fakhruddin Kagalwala 0.25 19.23 0.25 (21.68)
iii. Pulkit Sood 0.03 773 0.03 2.48
Total share 1.00 951.00 1.00 592.66
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars ALl AL
315t March 2025 315t March 2024
(b) Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 20.37 724
Total 20.37 7.24
(c) Other Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 524.66 350.57
(refer note below)
Trade Deposits 410.92 84.50
Lease Deposits 34.94 575
Total 970.52 440.82
Note:
Deposits includes balances with banks held as margin money deposits against 15.00 318.71
business guarantees.
6  Other Non- Current Assets
(R in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31t March 2025

31t March 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid Expenses 17.66

31.43

Total 17.66

31.43
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CURRENT ASSETS

7 Inventories

Particulars

As at
31t March 2025

(R in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Work-in-Progress

Media content under Production 398.78 237.82

Stock-in-Trade

Copyrights 55,675.89 67,343.43

Physical Media 0.98 67.38

Total 56,075.65 67,648.63
Notes :

i) The entire book value (carrying amount) of inventory is hypothecated as security for Cash Credit Facilities taken from banks.

i) Quarterly statements of current assets are filed by the company with State Bank of India, Bank of India and NKGSB Cooperative Bank

Limited from whom the company has borrowings on the basis of security of current assets.

There are differences in value of current assets between the books of account and the statements submitted to banks.
The reconciliation of the differences has been disclosed under Note. 16(a).

8 Financial Assets

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars RO
31t March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Trade receivables
Unsecured Trade receivables*
- considered good 9,844.11 13,7182.17
- credit impaired 672.03 966.00
Less: Expected Credit loss allowance (341.63) (563.76)
Total 10,175.11 14,184.41
* Includes receivables from related parties - Refer Note 27 102.58 169.48
Note: Movement in expected credit loss allowance
Opening Balance 56376 281.03
Add:  Provision for Expected Credit Loss (Refer Note 24 & 20) (222.13) 396.92
Less: Release of provision due to bad debts write off - (114.19)
Closing Balance 341.63 563.76
Ageing of trade receivables :-
As at 315t March 2025 (R in Lakhs)

Category

(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)

6 months

Less than 6 months -
1year

1-2years

More than

2 - 3 years

KRVETES

Undisputed Trade Receivables -considered good 9,844.71 = = = = 9,844.71
Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired = 173.59 348.32 39.90 38.40 600.21
Disputed Trade Receivables -considered good = = = = = =
Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired = = 17.48 27.06 27.28 71.82
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) 10,516.74
Less: Expected Credit loss allowance 341.63
Total Trade Receivables (net) 10,175.11
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As at 31t March 2024

(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)

(X in Lakhs)

Category Less than | 6 months 1- 2 years 2 - 3 | More than Total
6 months -1year years 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 13,7182.17 - - - - 13,782.17
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 423.81 38.50 723 19.46 489.00
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 9.21 0.12 362.90 39.90 64.88 477.00
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) 14,748.17
Less: Expected Credit loss allowance 563.76
Total Trade Receivables (net) 14,184.41
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars uslat
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
i) Balances with banks
- Current accounts in Indian rupees 1.37 0.85
i) Cash on Hand 8.36 5.28
Total 973 6.13
(c) Other Bank Balances
i) Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and remaining maturity less 134.31 -
than 12 months
ii) Earmarked balances with Banks for:
- Balances with bank for unpaid dividend 0.23 0.34
Total 134.54 0.34
Note: (i) The amount of ¥ 0.11 lakh of unpaid dividend is transferred to investor education
& protection fund during the year 31t March 2025
(ii) Margin money deposits are held for providing bank guarantees for the business
purpose.
(d) Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to subsidiaries (Refer Note 27 (a) & 33.3)* = 69.90
Loan to employees 45.99 14.82
Loan to others 1,198.99 1,241.64
Total 1,244.98 1,326.36
* Loans to subsidiaries include loan of NIL (previous year:¥ 69.90 Lakhs)
outstanding from Shemaroo Media & Entertainment LLC.
(e) Other Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Contract assets 2,924.06 1,028.26
Trade Deposits 7.08 8792
Lease Deposits 0.01 29.94
Total 2,931.15 1,146.12
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Changes in contract assets are as follows:

Particulars

Year Ended

31t March 2025

(X In Lakhs)

Year Ended
31st March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,028.26 1,399.95
Less : Invoices raised during the year (1,028.26) (1,399.95)
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 2,924.06 1,028.26
Balance at the end of the year (Refer Note 8(e)) 2,924.06 1,028.26
9  Other Current Assets
(X in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

31t March 2025

Unsecured, considered good

31t March 2024

Advance to vendors 1,372.67 4,333.85
Insurance Advance 98.65 112.75
Advance to Employees 0.57 12.12
Amount Receivable from LIC under Gratuity Assurance Scheme 4872 43.59
Other Taxes Receivable 255.64 209.48
Prepaid expense 1,402.93 1,208.36
Others 11.83 20.87
Total 3,191.01 5,941.01
10 Equity Share capital

(R in Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars

31t March 2025

Authorized shares capital

31t March 2024

6,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥10/- each (Previous Year 6,00,00,000) 6,000.00 6,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2,13,20,299 (Previous year 2,12,26,349) equity shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up 2,7132.03 2,7122.63
Total 2,732.03 2,722.63

OTHER DISCLOSURES

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each shareholder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

a) Reconciliation of no. of equity shares & share capital

31t March 2025

31t March 2024

Particulars
Numbers T Lakhs Numbers T Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 27,226,349 2,722.63 27,182,239 2,718.22
i Issued during the year 93,950 9.39 44,110 4.41
ii. Redeemed during the year - - - -
iii.  Forfeited During the year = = - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 27,320,299 2,732.03 27,226,349 2,7122.63
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b)

Name of Shareholder

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31t March 2025
No. of Shares

31t March 2024

% of Holding

No. of Shares

% of Holding

held held
Mr. Raman Hirji Maroo 4,017,271 14.70% 4,017,217 14.76%
Mr. Atul Hirji Maru 4,017,271 1470% 4,017,271 1476%
Mr. Buddhichand Hirji Maroo 2,783,071 10.19% 2,783,071 10.22%
Hiren Uday Gada 2,658,155 9.73% 2,658,155 9.76%
Technology and Media Group PTE Limited 1,822,840 6.67% 1,822,840 6.70%
Total 15,298,608 56.00% 15,298,608 56.19%
c) Details of promoters’ shareholding
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Name of Shareholder
No.of Shares o ¢ Holding Y No.ofShares | o ¢ piotding % change
held held
Atul Hirji Maru 4,017,271 1470% 0.00% 4,017,271 14.76% -0.16%
Raman Hirji Maroo 4,017,271 1470% 0.00% 4,017,271 14.76% -0.16%
11 Other Equity
(a) Reserves & Surplus
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at

| Securities premium account

As at
31t March 2025

31t March 2024

Opening balance 14,423.30 14,340.81
Add: premium on issue of equity shares under ESOP 162.15 82.49
Closing Balance (A) 14,585.45 14,423.30
Il General reserve
Opening balance 2,112.81 2,112.81
Add: amount transferred from surplus balance in the statement of profit and Loss - -
Closing Balance (B) 2,112.81 2,112.81
1 Employee Stock Options Reserve
Opening balance 330.78 189.45
Add: Employee share based expense 196.23 170.89
Less: adjustment during the year (177.37) (29.56)
Closing Balance (C) 349.64 330.78
1\ Retained Earnings
(@)  Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and Loss
Opening balance 35,809.92 40,072.72
(Loss) for the year (8,749.61) (4,262.80)
Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Proposed Dividend
Add: Adjustment for Stock Options 120.67
Closing Balance (D) 27,180.98 35,809.92
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Loss
- Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Opening Balance 64.31 142.44
Remeasurements during the year (36.13) (104.41)
Deferred tax on remeasurements during the year 9.09 26.28
Closing Balance (E) 3727 64.31
Total Retained Earnings (F) = (D) + (E) 27,218.25 35,874.23
Total A+ B+C+D+E) 44,266.15 52,741.12
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Notes:

i) General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

ii)  Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of Losses made by the Company over the years.

iii)  Employee stock options reserve represents the amount charged to profit & loss account for the outstanding stock options issued to

employees.

iv)  Securities Premium Account represent the amount received in excess of face value of the equity share

Non-Current Liabilties

Financial Liabilities

12 Non-Current Borrowings (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Interest Maturity | Terms of As at As at
Rate Date Repayment 31t March 2025 | 31t March 2024
Secured Bank Loan - at cost
(i)  Term Loan, secured by 8.65% 08-Oct-26  Repayment monthly in 36 equal 1573 24.61
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 88,900/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the Bank
(i)  Term Loan, secured by 8.25% 08-Dec-24 Repayment monthly in 36 equal - 1572
hypothecation of motor installments of INR1,80,820/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the Bank
(iii) Term Loan, secured by 8.26% 20-Dec-26 Repayment monthly in 36 equal 29.64 44.81
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 1,52,510/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the Bank
(iv) Term Loan, secured by 8.65% 20-Jul-27  Repayment monthly in 36 equal 15.99
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 63,280/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the Bank
(v)  Term Loan, secured 10.15% 27-Jul-29  Repayment monthly in 82 equal 768.40
by hypothecation of installments of INR 15,62,240/- as 653.81
Commercial Property per repayment schedule of the Bank
(vi) Secured Term Loan* 9.40% 07-Dec-24 Repayment monthly in 60 equal - 473.67
installments of INR 62,08,382/- as
per repayment schedule of the Bank
Total Non-Current Borrowings 715.17 1,327.22
Less: Current Maturities of Secured long-term debt (included in Note 16 (c)) 159.18 629.92
Non-Current Borrowings 555.99 697.30
* Secured against the personal property of the Director.
Notes: (i) Assets hypothecated as Security.
(X in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Note No. 31% March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Financial Assets
Office Building 3(a) 2,507.12 2,562.85
Plant and Machinery 3(a) 693.35 815.55
Computers 3(a) 376.19 463.11
Motor Vehicles 3(a) 116.40 136.73
Investment Property 3(b) 13.01 13.53
Inventories 7 56,075.65 67,648.63
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 8 (a) 10,175.11 14,184.41
Total 69,956.83 85,824.82

(i)  The Company is not declared as a willful defaulter by any of the banks.

(iii)  The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken during the year.
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Non-Current Liabilties

13 Provisions

Particulars

As at
31t March 2025

Provision for employee benefits:

(R in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

- Gratuity 286.06 295.96
(Refer Note 26)
- Compensated leave absences 73.50 65.18
Total 359.56 361.13
14 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31t March 2025

Balances comprises temporary differences attributable to:

315t March 2024

Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets 201.70 194.50
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment (686.61) (628.92)
Lease Liability & Other Financial Liability at amortised cost (158.48) (185.73)
Losses as per Income Tax (3,554.72) (515.66)
Net Deferred Tax Asset (4,198.11) (1,135.81)
Note: Movements in Deferred Tax Assets (in Lakhs)
Property, Plant Provision Lease Liability
o " " R Losses as
. and Equipment for Gratuity & Financial
Particulars R s per Income | Net Balance
& Intangible and Leave Liability at Tax
Assets Encashment amortised cost
Opening Balance as on 15t April 2024 194.50 (628.92) (185.73) (515.66) (1,135.81)
Charge or (Credit) to the Statement of Profit 720 (57.69) 27.25 (3,039.06) (3,062.30)
and Loss
Closing Balance as on 315t March 2025 20170 (686.61) (158.48) (3,554.72) (4,198.11)
Charge or (Credit) for the year ended on 31t March 2025
Recognised in Profit and Loss Account (3,053.21)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (9.09)
Total (3,062.30)
15 Other Non Current Liabilities
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars AL et
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Deferred Revenue (Refer Note 17a.) 14113 46.74
Total 14113 46.74
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Current Liabilities

16 Financial Liabilities

(a) Current Borrowings

As at

Particulars 31t March 2025

Loan Repayable on Demand

Financial Statements

(X in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Secured Loan from Bank 12,684.82

15,417.66

{Secured by hypothecation of stock, book debts and collaterally secured by mortgage of
property owned by the company and personal guarantee of some of the directors of the
company}

Unsecured Bank Short Term Loan (OD/WCDL Loan) 14,345.21

14,476.21

Loans & Advances (Unsecured)

- Directors 2,424.30

2,588.55

Total 29,454.33

32,482.42

Notes:

i) Quarterly statements of current assets are filed by the company with State Bank of India, Bank of India and NKGSB Cooperative Bank

Limited from whom the company has borrowings on the basis of security of current assets.

The changes in the estimates are accounted for at the end of the period which has resulted to differences in the value of current assets

& current liabilites between the books of account and the statements submitted to banks.

Reconciliation of Inventory:

(% in Lakhs)
As per
As per books Statement Difference
Quarter Ended (A) shared with bank | (A-B) Reasons
(B)
Jun-24 63,261.84 63,346.68 Value of Copyrights charged to
(84.84) Profit & Loss post submission
of report to bank due to change
in Copyright Valuation estimate
Sep-24 61,130.89 61,130.89 -
Dec-24 58,388.81 58,388.81
Mar-25 56,075.65 56,168.00 (92.35) Value of Copyrights charged to

Profit & Loss post submission
of report to bank due to change
in Copyright Valuation estimate

(i)  The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specified purpose for which it was taken during the

year.

(b) Trade payable

ss

Particulars As at
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

(a) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,493.84 3,10.17

(Refer Note 33.5)

(b) Due to Others 4742.47 7,034.44

Total 6,236.31 10,144.61

Due to others include payable to related parties - Refer Note 27 (b) 126.45 94.48
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Ageing of Trade Payable :-
As at 31t March 2025

(% in Lakhs)

(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)

Categor
gory Nodues Less than 1 1- 2 years 2- 3years More than 3
year years
Undisputed Trade Payables - MSME 1,484.46 375 5.63 - 1,493.84
Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 3759 4,394.75 5717 216.00 36.36 4742 .47

Disputed Trade Payables - MSME - - - - -
Disputed Trade Payables - Others = = = = =
Total Trade Payables 37.59 5,879.21 61.52 221.63 36.36 6,236.31

As at 31t March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)
Category
9 Not due oSG T 1-2 years 2-3 years LA Total
1year 3 years
Undisputed Trade Payables - MSME 666.22 2,440.67 3.28 - - 3,10.17
Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 2,931.88 3,697.70 275.93 40.50 70.44 7,016.45
Disputed Trade Payables - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Payables - Others - 0.47 0.98 0.56 15.98 17.99
Total Trade Payables 3,598.10 6,138.84 280.19 41.06 86.42 10,144.61
(c) Other Financial Liabilties
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars AEEL AEED
31t March 2025 315t March 2024
Current Maturities of Secured long-term debt (Refer Note 12) 159.18 629.92
Security Deposit Received 21.00 21.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 47.69 115.92
Derivative Financial instrument 33.04
Unclaimed Dividend Payable 0.23 0.33
Total 261.14 76717
17 Other Current Liabilities
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars OL R
31st March 2025 315t March 2024
Advances received from Customers 11.60 59.68
Contract liability (Refer Note 17a) 883.36 77722
Statutory Dues Payable 598.73 658.00
Others 60.51 98.50
Total 1,554.20 1,593.40
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a) Changes in contract liabilities are as follows:

(% In Lakhs)
Particulars Ve e
31st March 2025 31t March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 823.96 1,193.71
Less: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the (823.96) (1,193.71)
beginning of the year
Add: Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue 1,024.49 823.96
during the year
Balance at the end of the year (Refer Note 15 & 17) 1,024.49 823.96
Current Liabilties (Refer Note 17) 883.36 77722
Non-Current Liabilities (Refer Note 15) 141.13 46.74
18 Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
(X In Lakhs)
Particulars st
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
- Gratuity 13715 109.10
(Refer Note 26)
- Compensated leave absences 6.92 470
-ESIC 0.02 0.08
- Provident Fund and other funds 39.85 41.84
Total 183.94 155.73
19 Revenue from Operations
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Sale of Content, Content Production, Film Distribution and Syndication 19,060.75 21,449.54
Advertisement and Subscription Revenue 45,856.20 46,228.49
Sale of Products 131.98 19.27
Total 65,048.93 67,697.30
Sale of content includes sales to Related party (Refer Note 27) 221.56 268.48
20 Other Income
(X In Lakhs)
Particulars VLT CIC )
31t March 2025 315t March 2024
Interest 361.61 273.51
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.53 -
Credit Balances Written Back 39.42 -
Expected Credit Loss Allowance Written Back (Refer Note 8(a)) 22213 -
Foreign Exchange Gain 11.74 122.55
Share of profit from investment in LLP 128.37
Other Income 71.94 95.69
Total 935.74 491.75
*Includes Other Income to Related party (Refer Note 27) 9.00 5.58
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21 Operational Cost

Particulars

Year ended
31t March 2025

(X In Lakhs)

Year ended
31t March 2024

Inventories at the beginning of the year 67,648.63 73,046.92
Purchases* 28,950.49 27,7108.26
Works Cost 15,233.86 16,612.85
Less:Inventories at the end of the year (56,075.65) (67,648.63)
Total 55,757.33 49,719.40
*Includes Purchase from Related party (Refer Note 27) 37732 378.23
22 Employee Benefit Expense
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars VEED CIEE:
31st March 2025 31t March 2024
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 10,975.31 9,841.10
Director’s Remuneration 490.00 490.00
Employee share based expense (Refer Note 32) 196.23 170.89
Contribution to Provident & Other funds 474.81 399.57
Staff Welfare Expenses 253.99 281.54
Total 12,390.34 11,183.10
*Includes salaries, bonus and allowances to Related party (Refer Note 27) 22273 190.50
23 Finance costs
(X In Lakhs)
Particulars VEED GIIEEE]
31t March 2025 315t March 2024
Interest on Borrowings 3,393.89 3,463.34
Bank & Other Finance Charges 19372 124.61
Interest on Statutory Dues 34.30 174
MTM Loss 33.04
Finance Cost on Lease Assets (Refer Note 30) 24.45 24.51
Total 3,679.40 3,624.20
*Includes Interest on borrowing given to Related party (Refer Note 27) 306.52 279.38
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24 Other expenses

Particulars

Year ended
31t March 2025

(X In Lakhs)

Year ended
31t March 2024

Sundry Balance written off 49.04 258.91
Bad Debts written off 63.33 114.19
Provision for Advances Paid 30.00
Withholding Tax -Expense 531.54
Impairment Loss on Investment 240.00
Business Development expenses 55.56 104.84
Communication expenses 11.26 12.08
Donations 10.50 5.65
Electricity Expenses 163.43 145.01
Housekeeping Expenses 9274 65.24
General Expenses 153.52 442.05
Expected Credit Loss (Refer Note 8(a)) - 396.92
Insurance Expenses 59.57 49.10
Legal, Professional and Consultancy expenses 1,157.30 1,099.10
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note (a) below) 19.36 19.35
Repairs and Maintenance
- Building 19.73 196.61
- Machinery 58.94 39.24
- Others 72.20 125.16
Rents, Rates and Taxes 53.08 60.85
Security Charges 45.41 35.43
Printing & Stationery 23.35 21.96
Computer Expense/Accessories 29.98 21.36
Computer Software Expense 402.05 294.68
Internet Expense 90.74 577
Membership & Subscriptions 88.99 50.41
Hotel Lodging & Boarding Expense 16.24 16.20
Selling and Marketing Expenses 1,648.39 1,912.37
Travelling and Conveyance 212.63 226.81
Penalty on Government Dues 24.46 -
Provision for GST paid under Protest = 1,200.00
(Refer Note 33.6)
Share of loss from investment in LLP - 139.06
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility Activities (Refer Note 31) = 14.55
Total 5,423.34 714290
Note (a): Details of payments made to auditor (excluding taxes):
As auditor:
Statutory Audit fee (excluding taxes) 17.00 17.00
Tax audit fee =
In other capacity:
Other Services 2.00 2.00
Reimbursement of expenses 0.36 0.35
Total 19.36 19.35
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25 Earnings per share (EPS)

(X In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

Following reflects the net profit/(loss) after tax and no. of shares data used in the Basic and Diluted EPS computations:

Total Operations for the year

(Loss) after tax (8,7149.61) (4,262.80)
(Loss) for calculation of basic EPS (8,749.61) (4,262.80)
(Loss) as above (8,749.61) (4,262.80)
(Loss) for diluted EPS (8,749.61) (4,262.80)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 27,286,088 27,224,174
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 27,324,389 27,229,325
(@) BasicR) (32.07) (15.66)
(b)  Diluted ) (32.02) (15.65)

26 Employee Benefits
The Disclosures as defined in the Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee benefits”, are given below :
a) Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to provident and other funds is recognised as an expense in Note 22 “Employee benefit expense” of the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

b) Defined Benefit Plan
The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately

to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

1) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Gratuity (Funded)
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 762.05 593.01
Current Service Cost 141.81 137.28
Interest Cost 51.63 38.45
Past Service Cost -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 33.62 137.21
Benefits paid (71.67) (143.90)
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 917.45 762.05
I1(A) Bifurcation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year
(in Lakhs)
2023-24
Particulars
Gratuity (Funded)
Current Liabilities 13715 109.10
Non - Current Liabilities 780.30 652.95
Total 917.45 762.05
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(I1) Changes in Fair value of Assets & Reconciliation with Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars | 2024-25 | 2023-24
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning 356.99 403.05
Interest Income 28.10 24.27
Employer Contributions 180.71 19.00
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets (71.67) (143.90)
Re measurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) on 54.57
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end 494.25 356.99
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 917.45 762.05
Net (Asset)/Liability at the end of year 423.20 405.06
Current Liability 137.15 109.10
Non-Current Liability 286.06 295.96
11l) Reconciliation of Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2025:
®in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Net (Asset)/Liability at the beginning of year 405.06 189.96
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 165.34 151.46
Expenses Recognized in OCI 33.51 82.64
Benefit paid (180.71) (19.00)
Net (Asset)/Liability at the end of year 423.20 405.06
1V) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet
(in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Present value of defined benefit obligation 423.20 405.06
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 423.20 405.06
V) Expenses recognised during the year
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Current Service Cost 141.81 137.28
Net Interest Cost 23.53 14.18
Net Cost 165.34 151.46
VI) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Year 33.62 137.21
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.11) (54.57)
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 33.51 82.64
VII) Actuarial assumptions
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars | 2024-25 | 2023-24

Mortality Table

IAL (2012-14)

IAL (2012-14)

Discount rate (per annum) 6.82% 1%
Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 3.00% 3.00%
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VIIl) The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk:
Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

1X) Sensitivity Analysis

The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to discount rate and future salary escalation
rate. The following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points:

(R in Lakhs)
Sensitivity Analysis m 2023-24
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 917.45 762.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 1,001.28 830.01
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 842.15 701.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 929.64 776.00
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 903.15 745.91
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting 835.35 693.75
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 1,014.01 842.45

Notes:

The current service cost recognised as an expense is included in Note 22 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period,while holding all other assumptions constant.

c) Other long term benefits :

The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method and accordingly the long term
paid absences have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 22 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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27 Related party disclosures

| Related Party relationship

Name of Related Parties

i) Subsidiaries Canopy Entertainment Private Limited
Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP
Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP (upto 22" Nov 2024)
Shemaroo Media & Entertainment LLC, USA

ii) Key Management Personnel Mr. Raman Maroo, Managing Director

Mr. Atul Maru, Joint Managing Director

Mr. Jai Maroo, Executive Director

Mr. Hiren Gada, CEO

Mr. Amit Haria, CFO (w.e.f. May 10, 2022)

Ms. Pooja Sutradhar, Company Secretary (w.e.f. December 19, 2023)

Ms. Hetal Vichhi, Company Secretary (upto 18 December, 2023)

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal, Independent Director (w.e.f. 18" January, 2023)

Mr. Gnanesh D Gala, Independent Director (upto 25 May, 2024)

Mr. Vasanji Mamania, Independent Director (upto 25 May, 2024)

Mr. Rajen Gada, Independent Director (w.e.f. 241" May, 2024)

Mr. Abaas Contractor, Independent Director (w.e.f. 24" May, 2024)

Ms. Dr CA Reeta Bharat Shah, Independent Director (upto 27" March,
2025)

Ms. Kashmira Dedhia, Independent Director (w.e.f. 24" March, 2025)

iii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Buddhichand Maroo (father of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Leelaben Maroo (mother of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Smita Maroo (wife of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Kastur Maroo (wife of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Mrs. Radhika Maroo (daughter of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Ms. Mansi Maroo (daughter of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Mrs. Sangeeta Maru (wife of Mr. Atul Maru)

Ms. Nirvi Maru (daughter of Mr. Atul Maru)

Ms. Urvi Maru (daughter of Mr. Atul Maru)

Mrs. Madhuri Gada (wife of Mr. Hiren Gada)

Mrs. Kranti Gada (sister of Mr. Hiren Gada)

iv)

Entities having Common Control

Atul H. Maru (HUF)

Buddhichand H. Maroo (HUF)

Raman H. Maroo (HUF)

Jai Maroo (HUF)

Hiren Gada (HUF)

Shemaroo Corporation

Shemaroo Trading Private Limited (Formerly Shemaroo Holdings Private
Limited)

Canonical Trading LLP

Think Walnut Digital Private Limited

Technology and Media Group PTE. Ltd.

Braj Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Dominiche Productions Private Limited

Aikyam Entertainment Private Limited

Mash Broadcasting Service Private Limited
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28.2 Foreign exchange exposure

The Company does not use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to
firm commitments and forecasted transactions.

The Company’s foreign currency exposure not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise as at the end of reporting year is as follows :

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars Currenc As at As at
y 31% March 2025 31% March 2024

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables usb 1.50 23.03
EUR 0.01 0.01
AED 0.06 1.20
CAD 0.29 0.38
GBP = 0.02
KWD 0.24 0.09
NGN - 0.89
IDR = 20.70
MVR - 0.97
OMR - 0.05
SAR 0.01 0.09
QAR 0.77
SGD = 0.02
THB = 0.61

Loans to subsidiaries usb - 0.84

Other Current Assets

Advances paid for Supply of Goods and Rendering of Services usb = 0.41
AUD = -

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable usb 3.66 1.40
AED 0.17 -
AUD 0.05
IDR 130.00
SGD 0.09 0.02
MYR 0.06 0.06
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29 Financial Instruments

()

Particulars

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of
changes in fair value of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

(% in Lakhs)

Interest impact (pre tax)

Year ended 31t March 2025 Year ended 315t March 2024

Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Impact on profit or loss for the year 16.97 (16.97) 17.32 (17.32)

Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting Year 16.97 (16.97) 17.32 (17.32)

c)

d)

Foreign Currency risk

The Company enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk.

The Company analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Company.

The management has taken a position not to hedge this currency risk. The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are not hedged considering the
insignificant impact and period involved on such exposure.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company’s receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments
and balances at bank.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates. Expected credit loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the
historical data.
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Ageing of trade receivables

Particulars

Trade receivables (Unsecured)

(% in Lakhs)

As at
315t March 2024

As at
31t March 2025

over six months 672.03 956.89
less than six months 9,844.11 13,791.28
Total 10,516.74 14,748.17

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The company’s principal source of liquidity are
cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The company consistently generated strong cash flows
from operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and current investment provided adequate liquidity in

short terms as well in the long term.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments.

31t March 2025
Particulars

Due in1year

Duein 2 - 3 years

Financial Liabilities

(R in Lakhs)

31t March 2024

Dueinlyear | Duein2 - 3years

Trade Payable and other financial liabilities 6,177.94 319.51 10,504.11 407.67
Borrowings* 29,454.33 555.99 32,482.42 697.30
Lease Liability 65.65 165.13 55.01 184.91
Total 35,697.92 1,040.64 43,041.54 1,289.88

*Current maturities of borrowings forms part of other financial liabilities. Hence, same is not considered seperately in borrowings.

(ii) Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company
manages its capital structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the

stakeholders.
Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows :

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars et

31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Debt
Long Term Borrowings (Including Current Maturity of Long Term Debts) 7517 1,327.22
Short Term Borrowings 29,454.33 32,482.42
Cash & Bank Balances (144.27) (6.47)
Total debt (A) 30,025.23 33,803.17
Equity
Equity Share Capital 2,7132.03 2,7122.63
Other Equity 44,266.15 52,741.12
Total equity (B) 46,998.18 55,463.75
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (A/B) 63.89% 60.95%
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The summary of information showing the effect of “Leases” on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows are

30 Leases
a)
given below:
Particulars

31t March 2025

(X in Lakhs)
31t March 2024

Right of use asset: (Refer Note 4)

a) Balance as at begining of the year 22742 23.25
b)  Additions made during the year
- Office Buildings 34.98 262.96
- Motor Vehicle 13.50
c)  Depreciation charged to Statement of profit and loss
- Office Buildings (65.98) (58.79)
- Motor Vehicle (0.36)
d) Disposal of Assets = -
e) Balance as at end of the year
- Office Buildings 196.42 22742
- Motor Vehicle 13.14 -
209.56 22742
Lease Liability:
a) Balance as at begining of the year 239.92 25.03
b)  Additions made during the year 48.48 262.96
c) Deletions during the year = -
d) Interest expenses charged to Statement of profit and loss 24.45 24.51
(Refer Note 23)
e) Reduction after reinstatement of Liability - (1.35)
f) Cash outflow for leases (82.07) (71.23)
g) Balance as at end of the year 230.78 239.92
Note:
1) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to existing lease liability is 10.90%. While the weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied for renewed property lease is 12% and for Motor Vehicle lease is 11.75%.
2)  The company has not applied single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets.
b) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars OB
31st March 2025 31t March 2024
Current lease liability 65.65 55.01
Non-current lease liability 165.13 184.91
Total 230.78 239.92
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c) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars SEL
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Less than one year 65.65 55.01
One to five years 165.13 184.91
More than five years -
Total 230.78 239.92

d) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liability as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liability as and when they fall due.

e) Rental expense charged to the Statement of profit and loss account applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116, on account of low-value asset is
X Nil and short-term leases is X Nil.

31 Details of Corporate social responsibility expenses:

(i) Thegrossamountrequired to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) related activities during
the year is NIL (previous year ¥ 0.76 lakhs).

(ii)  Amount approved by the board to be spent towards CSR activities during the year NIL (previous year ¥ 14.55 lakhs).

(iii) The details of amount recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss under Note 24 above on CSR related
activities is given below:

| Particulars (X in Lakhs)

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025:

i) Improving & Promoting Quality Education

ii)  Health care, Hygiene & Medical Facilities

iii)  Rural Transformation & Protection of natural heritage,art & culture, drought relief

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024:

i) Improving & Promoting Quality Education 2.25
i) Health care, Hygiene & Medical Facilities 1.30
iii)  Rural Transformation & Protection of natural heritage,art & culture, drought relief 11.00

14.55

(iv) Details of Excess CSR expenditure during the current and previous financial year:

(% in Lakhs)
| Particulars FY 2023-24 |
Opening Balance 21.00 7.21
Amount required to be spent during the year - 076
Amount spent during the year = 14.55
Shortfall at the end of the year = -
Total of previous years shortfall - -
Closing Balance ( To be carried forward for next year) as at the year end 21.00 21.00

106



Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

for the year ended 31t March 2025

32 Share Based Payments
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021

The Company implemented the Employee Stock Option Scheme to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees of Company and

its subsidiaries. Shemaroo Entertainment Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021 (“Scheme”) has been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on December 7, 2021 and by the shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution
passed on January 16, 2022 for grant aggregating 15,00,000 options of the Company. The Scheme covers grant of options to the designated
employees of the Company and its Group companies, any Director, whether a whole-time director or not, including a Non-Executive Director,
but excluding the Independent Directors, Promoters or members of Promoter Group, and a director holding, directly or indirectly, more than
ten percent of the outstanding equity shares of the Company.

The vesting period of the options granted under the Scheme shall commence from the grant date, subject to minimum of 1 (One) year from
the grant date and a maximum of 5 (Five) years from the grant date. The settlement of options exercised under the Scheme is by way of
alloting equity shares of the Company.

In accordance with the Scheme, during the year the Company granted 319,146 options on July 30, 2024 and 1500 options on October 17,
2024.

The following table provides the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year
ended:

e 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Number WAEP (in3) Number WAEP (in <)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 743,790 125.04 452,050 136.63
Granted during the year 320,646 148.09 449,350 113.47
Forfeited during the year 171,090 138.89 113,500 123.48
Exercised during the year 93,950 122.29 44110 130.00
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 799,396 131.64 743,790 125.04
Exercisable at the end of the year 274,325 12275 152,920 14274

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31,2025 is 1.01 years (March 31,2024:1.39
years)

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was ¥ 110 to % 167 (March 31,2024:% 110 to X 167)
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ¥ 66 (March 31,2024:3 49)

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the Scheme for the year ended (model used: Black Scholes valuation model):

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Underlying share price (%) 121.90 - 187.62 121.90 - 185.10
Exercise price (%) 110.00 - 167.00 110.00 - 167.00
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.08% - 0.22%
Expected volatility (%) 55.01% - 58.76% 54.19% - 81.62%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.53% - 6.75% 4.96% - 7.09%
Expected life of share options 1.50 - 3.50 years 1.50 - 3.51 years

Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate during the period. The volatility is
used in the Black Scholes option pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rate of the return of
the stock over a period of time. The period considered for expected volatility is based on historical volatility for a period that approximates
the expected life of the options being valued.

Total expense arising from equity-settled share based payment transaction for the year is¥196.23 lakhs (March 31,2024:%170.89 lakhs)
has been charged to standalone statement of profit and loss.
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33 Additional information to financial statements

33.1 Approval of financial statements

Financial statements are approved for issue by Board of Directors on 13" May, 2025.

33.2 Disclosure under IND-AS -108

The Company has identified “Entertainment” as the only primary reportable business segment and hence business segment disclosure as
per IND AS - 108 is not applicable. The Company has no reportable geographical segment other than India. Three customers represents more
than 10% of the Company’s total revenue during the year (Previous year: Three customers)

33.3 Details of Loans given, investment made and Guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Loan given by company to body corporate as at 315t March 2025. (Refer Note 8(d))

(b) Investment made by the company as at 31t March 2025. (Refer Note 5(a))

(c) No Guarantee has been given by the company as at 31t March 2025.

33.4 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 31-Mar-24
Disputed Direct Tax Demands 9.27 3373
Disputed Indirect Tax Demands** 19,186.23 168.51
19,195.50 202.24

* Refer Note 33.6

** Excluding amount paid under protest

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s management
does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on

the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

33.5 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
(i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on 1,493.84 3,107
(i) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on 766 10.28

(iii)  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the =
MSME suppliers beyond the appointed day

(iv)  The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest =
under MSME Development Act)

(v)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on =

(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 =

Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

33.6 The GST Department had demanded and order recovery of inadmissible Input Tax Credit (ITC) allegedly amounting to¥7025.62 lakhs,
along with the alleged interest at the applicable rate and penalty equal to aforementioned tax amount under Section 74 (1) of CGST Act,
2017. Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 6334.99 lakhs under Section 122(1)(ii) & (x) & Section 122 (2) (b) of CGST Act, 2017 read with
Section 20 of the IGST Act, 2017 was also imposed. The company has disputed the order and filed appeal against the said order with
the Joint Commissioner and has also filed writ with the Bombay High Court, wherein the hearing is pending. The Company had paid
%1,200.00 lakhs under protest to GST department in previous year and has made provision against the same in previous year.

Department had also imposed Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 133.61 crores each on Joint Managing Director, Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company under Section 122(1A) of the CGST Act, 2017 and MGST Act, 2017. The above three
individuals has filed writ against the order, with the Bombay High Court and got interim order granting the stay on the proceedings.



Company Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

for the year ended 31t March 2025

33.7 Disclosure of ratios

Please find below ratios to be disclosed as per the Schedule Il of the Companies Act :-

. 31t March EEIEEN] . Rea'son for Items included in Numerator &
Ratio Variance | Variance of More .
2025 2024 Denominator
than 25%
Current ratio 1.99 2.09 -5.00% Numerator :- Current Assets
Denominator :- Current Liability
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.64 0.61 5.00% Numerator :- Total Debts
Denominator :- Shareholders Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio -1.22 -0.02 6000.00% Due to Net Losses Numerator :- Earning for debt services
in Current Year Denominator :- Fixed Interest Charges
Return on Equity Ratio -0.19 -0.08 138.00% Due to Net Losses Numerator :- Net Profit After Taxes
in Current Year Denominator :- Shareholders’ Equity
Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.05 0.96 9.00% Numerator :- Sales
Denominator :- Average Inventory
Trade Receivables Turnover 5.34 5.1 5.00% Numerator :- Total Sales
Ratio Denominator :- Average Account
Receivables
Trade Payables Turnover 3.53 2.92 21.00% Numerator :- Net Credit Purchases
Ratio Denominator :- Average Accounts
Payable
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.57 1.27 24.00% Numerator :- Net Sales
Denominator :- Net Assets
Net Profit Ratio -0.13 -0.06 117.00% Due to increase Numerator :- Net Profit
in Net Losses in Denominator :- Net Sales
Current Year
Return On Capital Employed -0.17 -0.01 1600.00% Due to decrease Numerator :- Earning Before Interest
in earning before & Tax
interest & tax in Denominator :- Capital Employed
current year
Return On Investment -0.08 0.1 -180.00% DuetoImpairment Numerator :- Return or Margin

recognised in
Investments in
Current Year

Denominator :- Investments

33.8 The company has not entered any transactions with companies which has been struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the curreny and previous financial year.

33.9 Income Tax expenses reconciliation with accounting profit/(loss):

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars FY 2023-24
(loss) before tax (11,864.95) (4,035.48)
Reconciling items :
Depreciation as per Income Tax Rules (599.16) (624.32)
Deductions = -
Other Expenses Allowed (475.49) -
Other comprehensive income 36.13 (104.41)
Expenses disallowed 828.39 2,7116.08
(12,075.09) (2,048.13)
Less: Loss of previous year b/f - -
Less : Items considered separately = 0.74
(12,075.09) (2,048.87)
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Current tax expenditure for the year = -
Tax Deduction at Source 645.21 (119.70)
645.21 (119.70)
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The Government of India has reduced the corporate tax rates from 30% to 22% through the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 which is

effective from 15t April 2019. As per the same if assessee opts new corporate tax rate, Minimum Alternative Tax provisions (MAT) provisions

are not applicable. Shemaroo Entertainment Limited has opted for new corporate tax rate from the financial year 2019-20 and the tax

liability above has been calculated accordingly.

33.10 Additional disclosures as to the amendment of Schedule Il :

i) During the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

ii)  Thereis no Benami Property held by the Company and there is no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

iii)  There are no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv)  The Company has not recorded any transaction in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

v)  Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
A)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall -

(i)  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall -

(i)  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vi)  The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year or previous financial year.
vi) There are no subsidiaries in more than one layer.

33.11 Previous year’s figures are regrouped, rearranged, or recast wherever necessary to conform to this year’s presentation.

Signatures to notes “1” to “33” forming part of the standalone financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co. Raman Maroo Hiren Gada

Chartered Accountants Chairman and Managing Director WTD and CEO

Firm Registration No. 106655W DIN 00169152 DIN 01108194

M. M. Chitale Amit Haria Pooja Sutradhar
Partner CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 14054 Membership No.: A40807
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 13t May, 2025 Date: 13t May, 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of Shemaroo Entertainment
Limited (the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries,
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as ‘consolidated Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 4.
as amended ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, its
consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive
loss, consolidated cash flows and its consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date

2. Basis for Opinion

Weconductedourauditinaccordancewiththe Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of

Financial Statements

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements section of our report. We are
independent ofthe Groupinaccordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 34.7 to the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended 315t March
2025, which describes the details of search operation
carried out during the earlier year and demand raised
in connection with the same by the GST Department
on the Company during the year and the issues arising
therefrom.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

z:; Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
1. Valuation & amortization estimate of inventory of Our procedures consisted of evaluating management’s

copyrights -

The copyrights are stated at cost/ carrying cost or
realizable value whichever is lower. The Company
evaluates the realizable value and revenue potential
of respective rights based on management estimate of
market condition & demand of those respective rights.
An accelerated impairment is considered if needed.

We have considered this as key audit matter due
to the amount of inventory balance and company’s
assessment of the fair value considering dynamic
market conditions. This assessment involves
judgements about future predictions of business and
cash flows.

methodology & key assumptions and included following
audit procedures -

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to
review of inventory impairment testing performed by
management.

Designed & performed audit procedures with respect to
impairment testing workings including the assumptions
and estimates used in evaluation of carrying values of
assets where there is an indication of impairment.

Assessing the appropriateness of any changes to
assumptions since the prior period.
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Auditor’s Response

2.

Recognition of Revenue

The recognition of revenue from Advertisement,
Subscription and syndication of content has been
considered to be critical since the Company has
entered into multiple complex contracts with its
customers. Apart from the contractual agreements
as entered, the Company recognised revenue based
on the logs/ information as received from such
customers.

The complexity of these contractual terms also
requires the Company to make judgements in
assessing fulfillment of its obligations under the
contracts to recognise the revenue in line with the
accounting policy adopted and Indian accounting
standard 115.

Considered the revenue recognition policies of the
Company in respect of those contracts and assessed
the consistent application of these policies in light of
the requirements of relevant accounting standards.

Tested the transactions closer to the year end to check
the recognition of revenue in the correct period.

Performed substantive procedures with regard to
revenue from Advertisement, Subscription and
syndication of content by agreeing to third party
information, logs received from the customers and
other relevant information on sample basis.

Information other than the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our
Auditor’s Report thereon. The Annual reportis expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the
above reports, if we conclude that there is material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance and
determine the actions under the applicable laws and
regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to
the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance, total comprehensive
loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irreqularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Holding company’s Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
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whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards
on auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policiesused and the reasonableness ofaccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures,and whether
the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Financial Statements

represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors report unless law or requlation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report,
to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of
consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Group
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Consolidated Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind
AS financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies
as on 31t March 2025 taken on record by
the respective Board of Directors of the

13
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f)

Companies incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Company and Group
companies are disqualified as on 31t March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal
Financial ~Controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the
Holding company and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India.

With respect to the other matters to be
includedinthe Auditor’s Reportinaccordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be
includedinthe Auditor’s Reportinaccordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Group has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in Note 34.4 of its consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

ii The Group did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there are no material
foreseeable losses.

iii  There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company during
the year.

iv. (@) The Management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall,whether,directly

Vi
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or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented,
that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures
that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11( e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not paid any
dividend during the year.

(b) The Board of Directors of the
Company has neither proposed nor
paid any dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included
test checks, the Group has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account
for the financial year ended 31 March,
2025 which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Based
on our procedures performed we did not
notice any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with. The audit trail has
been preserved by the company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs
3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,
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to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to
the information and explanations given to us, and
based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors
of the subsidiaries incorporated in India included
in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
of the Company, to which reporting under
CARO is applicable, provided to us by the
Management of the Company and based on
the identification of matters of qualifications or
adverse remarks in their CARO reports by the
respective component auditors and provided to
us, we report that the auditors of such companies
have not reported any qualifications or adverse
remarks in their CARO report.

9. Other matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other
financial information of two subsidiaries included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Financial statements in respect of those two
subsidiaries reflect total revenue of ¥ 73145
lakhs, Profit after tax (Net) of ¥ 233.94 lakhs, total
comprehensive income (Net) of Rs. 238.17 lakhs
for the year ended March 31, 2025, total assets of
% 260.49 lakhs as on March 31,2025 and total cash
inflows (Net) of ¥ 48.70 lakhs for the year ended

Financial Statements

March 31, 2025, as considered in consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

This financial information is unaudited and have
been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries, is based solely on such
unaudited financial information. According to the
information and explanations given to us by the
Board of Directors, this financial information are
not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements is not modified in respect of the
above matter.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reqistration No. 106655W)

M. M. Chitale

Partner

Membership no - 14054
UDIN : 25014054BMOBXM5338

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13,2025
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AnnexureAtothelndependent Auditor’s Report of even date onthe Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Shemaroo
Entertainment Limited

Referred to in paragraph [8(1)(f)] under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
2. The respective Boards of Directors of the Parent

and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to Consolidated Ind
AS financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India” (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Group's internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to Consolidated Ind AS

financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

4.

A Group's internal financial control with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial
statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that income and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

5.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to
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Consolidated Ind AS financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on
the internal control with reference to Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Financial Statements

Other Matters

T

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(l) of the
Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar
as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based on the
managements certification.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 106655W)

M. M. Chitale

Partner

Membership no - 14054

UDIN: 25014054BMOBXM5338

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2025
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31t March 2025

(X in Lakhs)
I Particulars Notes L et
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
ASSETS
| Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 3,829.22 4,096.23
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 3(a) - -
(c) Investment property 3 (b) 13.01 13.53
(d) Intangible assets 3(c) 8475 92.62
(e) Right of use Assets 4 209.56 22742
(f) Financial assets
(i) Non-Current Investments 5 (a) 14.89 254.89
(ii)  Trade Receivables = -
(iii) Loans and Advances 5 (b) 20.37 724
(iv) Other Financial assets 5 (c) 970.52 440.82
(q) Deferred tax assets (net) 14 4,198.11 1,135.81
(h)  Other non-current assets 6 17.66 31.43
Total Non-Current Assets 9,358.09 6,299.99
1l Current assets
(a) Inventories 7 56,834.94 68,231.38
(b) Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables 8 (a) 10,597.14 14,525.22
(i)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 (b) 117.53 23.45
(iii) Other Bank Balances 8 (c) 134.53 0.34
(iv) Loans and Advances 8 (d) 1,244.98 1,256.46
(v) Other Financial assets 8 (e) 2,956.38 1,159.33
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 1,470.17 4,267.94
(d)  Other current assets 9 3,895.22 6,439.61
Total Current Assets 77,250.89 95,903.73
Total Assets 86,608.98 1,02,203.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 10 2,7132.03 2,122.63
(b) Other Equity
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Reserves & surplus 1 44,443.23 52,599.711
Equity attributable to owners 47175.26 55,322.34
Non-controlling Interest (324.74) (374.12)
Total Equity 46,850.52 54,948.22
Liabilities
| Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Non-Current borrowings 12 570.33 697.30
(i) Lease Liability 30 165.13 184.91
(b) Provisions 13 359.56 361.13
(c) Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) 14 - -
(d) Contract Liabilities 15 141.13 46.74
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,236.15 1,290.09
11 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Current Borrowings 16 (a) 29,454.33 32,482.42
(ii) Trade payables 16 (b)
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,536.90 3,160.46
Due to Others 5,310.86 7,518.28
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 16 (c) 274.54 824.07
(iv) Lease Liability 30 65.65 55.01
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 17 1,64778 1,719.86
(c) Provisions 18 232.25 205.32
(d)  Current Tax Liabilities (net) - -
Total Current Liabilities 38,522.31 45,965.42
Total Liabilities 39,758.46 47,255.50
Total Equity and Liabilities 86,608.98 1,02,203.72

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 34 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Raman Maroo
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 00169152

Amit Haria Pooja Sutradhar
CFO Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 315 March 2025

(X in Lakhs)

SI. Particulars Notes MCLCIELL
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
1. Income

Revenue from operations 19 68,510.19 70,719.63

Other income 20 843.65 488.62

Total Income 69,353.84 71,208.25
1. Expenses

Operational Cost 21 57,915.43 51,951.47

Employee benefits expense 22 12,124.85 11,521.95

Finance costs 23 3,698.09 3,634.28

Depreciation and amortization expense 4a 604.81 55716

Other expenses 24 5,845.25 7,271.95

Total Expenses 80,788.43 74,936.81
1. (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (11,434.59) (3,728.56)
IV. Exceptional Items - -
V. (Loss) before Tax for the year (ll1-1V) (11,434.59) (3,728.56)
VI. Tax expense

Current tax 34.10 123.20 35.95

Earlier years (58.05) 1,058.46

Deferred tax Credit 14 (3,053.21) (831.14)

Total Tax expense (2,988.06) 263.27
VIl.  (Loss) for the year (A) (V-VI) (8,446.53) (3,991.83)
VIIl.  Minority shareholders interest- Profit/(Loss) 49.38 74.88
1X. Share in associates = -

(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (A) (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
X. (Loss) for the year (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
XI. Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (36.13) (104.41)

Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 14 9.09 26.28

Items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss

Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of a foreign 423 (29.42)

operation

Total Other Comprehensive Loss for the year (B) (22.81) (107.55)
Xll.  Total comprehensive loss (A + B) (8,518.72) (4,174.26)
Xlll.  Earnings per equity share [face value of share ¥ 10] 25

(a) Basic R) (31.14) (14.94)

(b)  Diluted®) (31.09) (14.94)

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 34 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Raman Maroo

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 00169152

Amit Haria
CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807
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R in Lakhs)
Particulars MECIEE
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) before tax (11,434.59) (3,728.56)
Adjustments for:
Other Comprehensive (loss) (36.13) (104.41)
Employee compensation expense 196.23 170.89
Depreciation & Amortisation 604.81 55716
Provision for GST paid under Protest - 1,200.00
Financial Cost 3,698.09 3,634.28
Liabilties no longer required written back (80.76)
Interest Income (354.26) (269.54)
Dividend Income (0.35)
Unrealised foreign exchange (Gain)/Loss (20.28) (51.79)
Profit on sale of Assets (0.53) (0.74)
Exchange translation differences 6771 4713
Impairment loss on Investment in Associates 240.00
Provision for old advances 30.00
Provision for Compensated leave absences 10.54 (12.23)
Provision for Gratuity 18.14 215.10
Bad Debts written off 226.42 373.10
Operating profit /(loss) before working capital changes (6,834.96) 2,030.39
Adjustments for:
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade or Other Receivable 4,037.35 (4,100.05)
Decrease in Inventories 11,396.44 5,226.04
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade or Other Payable (3,816.21) 43.11
Cash generated from operations 4,782.62 3,199.49
Direct Taxes paid (net) (2,732.61) 640.69
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,515.23 2,558.80
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment including Sale, Capital WIP and (263.01) (1,016.85)
Intangible assets under development
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.53 0.74
Impairment loss on Investment in Associates (240.00) -
Dividend Income 0.35 -
Interest Income 354.26 269.54
Net cash (used in) investing activities (147.87) (746.57)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 315 March 2025

Financial Statements

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars VEE GIEE
31st March 2025 315t March 2024
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liability (82.05) (71.23)
(Decrease) in Non-Current Borrowings (601.26) (7117.49)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Borrowings (3,028.09) 2,45975
Issue of Equity Shares 114.85 5734
Withdrawal of Capital by Partner (3.09)
Financial Cost (3,673.64) (3,609.77)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (7,273.28) (1,881.40)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 94.08 (69.16)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 23.45 92.61
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 117.53 23.45
Note :
Cash & Cash equivalents consists of cash and bank balances and other bank balances as under:
| <15 Particulars 200
No. 31t March 2025 31t March 2024
i) Balances with banks
- Current accounts in Indian rupees 103.40 1373
i) Cash on Hand 14.13 972
Total 117.53 23.45

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 34 are an integral part of the Consolidated financial
statements

As per our report of even date

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Raman Maroo
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN 00169152

Amit Haria
CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31t March 2025
A. Equity Share Capital

Balance as at

Changes in equity

Balance as at

(R in Lakhs)

Changes in equity

Balance as at

Particulars Note 15t April 2023 s!\are capital 315 March 2024 s!\are capital 315t March 2025
during the year during the year
Equity Share Capital 10 2,7118.22 4.41 2,122.63 9.40 2,132.03
B. Other Equity (% in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
e Employee .Exchange

Particulars Note | Securities General Stock | Retained differences | Remeasurement Total

premium . . on translating of Defined

reserve Options | Earnings . "
account Reserve foreign Benefit Plan
operations

Balance as at 15t April 2023 14,340.81 2,112.81 189.45 39,69777 (9.50) 142.44 56,473.77
Add: additions during the year 82.49 141.33 223.82
Less: Adjustments during the - - - (14.02) (14.02)
year
Total Comprehensive loss for - - - (4,066.11) 60.97 (78.13) (4,083.86)
the year
Balance as at 315t March 14,423.30 2,112.81 330.78 35,617.04 51.47 64.31 52,599.71
2024
Add: additions during the year 162.15 - 196.23 - - - 358.38
Less: Adjustments during the - - (177.37) 117.59 (59.79)
year
Total Comprehensive Income " - - - (8,495.91) 67.87 (27.04) (8,455.08)
for the year
Balance as at 315t March 14,585.45 2,112.81 349.64 27,238.72 119.34 37.27 44,443.23

2025

Note : There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors.

The accompanying statement of material accounting policies and notes 1to 34 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106655W

M. M. Chitale
Partner
Membership No. 14054

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025
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For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

Raman Maroo

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 00169152

Amit Haria
CFO

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13" May, 2025

Hiren Gada
WTD and CEO
DIN 01108194

Pooja Sutradhar
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A40807
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31t March 2025

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (‘Shemaroo’ or ‘the Company’) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated
on 23 December, 2005, in the state of Maharashtra. The Company’s registered office is at Shemaroo House, Plot No. 18,
Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate, Off. Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri East Mumbai - 400059, Maharashtra, India. The
Company’s equity shares are listed on both BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Shemaroo is engaged in the distribution of content for Broadcasting of Satellite Channels, Physical Formats and Digital
Technologies like Mobile, Internet, Broadband, IPTV and DTH among others.

These financial statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 13, 2025.

i) The Company has the following subsidiary Companies:

Date of

Subsidiary concern .
Incorporation

Place of
Incorporation

Proportion of effective ownership as on
31t March 2024

Shemaroo Media & Entertainment LLC 23 April, 2018 United States of 100.00% 100.00%
Wholly owned Subsidiary America

Canopy Entertainment Private Limited 31t October, 2012 India 100.00% 100.00%
Wholly owned Subsidiary

Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP 25" August, 2015 India 72.50% 72.50%
Subsidiary LLP

Shemaroo Think Tank Entertainment LLP 12" October, 2015  India = 99.99%

(upto 22" November 2024)

Subsidiary LLP

Shemaroo Entertainment Limited (‘the Company’)
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as ‘the
Group’.

Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The financial statements of the Group have been
prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’), notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value amount.

Group’s consolidated financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is its functional
currency.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as
per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise
stated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the
Schedule Il to the Act.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial statements have been
prepared using uniform accounting policies for like

transactions and other events in similar circumstances
and are presented to the extent possible in the same
manner as the Group’s separate financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared on the following basis:

i) In respect of subsidiary companies, the financial
statements have been consolidated on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values
of like item of assets, liabilities, incomes and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group
balances and unrealised profits/losses on intra-
group transactions.

i) In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are
consolidated at the average rate prevailing during
the year. All assets and liabilities are converted
at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any
exchange difference arising on consolidation is
recognised in foreign currency translation reserve.

iii) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the
parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

iv)  Non Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified
and adjusted against the income of the group in
order to arrive at the net income attributable to
shareholders of the Group.
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2.3

2.4

V)

vi)

Vii)

Associates are entities over which the Company
has significant influence but not control. The
financial statements have been consolidated as
per Ind AS 28 - “Accounting for Investments in
Associates & Joint venture” following the Equity
Method for Consolidation of Associates. The
investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the acquisition date. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

The results of operations of a subsidiary are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
from the date on which the parent-subsidiary
relationship comes into existence. The results of
operation of a subsidiary with which the parent-
subsidiary relationship ceases to exist are included
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
until the date of cessation of the relationship. The
difference between the proceeds from the disposal
of investment in a subsidiary and the carrying
amount of its assets less liabilities as on the date
of disposal are recognised as profit or loss on
disposal of investment in the subsidiary.

The Notes and material accounting policies to the
consolidated financial statements are intended to
serve as a guide for better understanding of the
group’s position. In this respect, the group has
disclosed such notes and policies, which represent
the requisite disclosure.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the reported income and expenses during
the year. The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due
to these estimates and the differences between the
actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known/materialise.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

(a)

Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
netofrecoverabletaxes,tradediscountandrebates
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable
to bringing the assets to its working condition for
its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange
rate variations attributable to the assets.

(b)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the entity and the cost can be measured
reliably.

Cost incurred on Property, Plant and Equipment
not ready for their intended use is disclosed
as Capital Work-in-Progress. Advances paid
towards the acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date are classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets. Unpaid amounts towards
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are
classified under other current financial liabilities if
due within one year from the date of these financial
statements and under other non-current financial
liabilities if due after a year from the date of these
financial statements.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a
property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition
net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and
rebate less accumulated amortisation/ depletion
and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes
purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to
its working condition for the intended use and
net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations
attributable to the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and cost can be measured
reliably.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.
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(c)

(d)

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided using straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated
by the management, or those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act,2013,
whichever is lower.

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment
purchased/sold during a period is proportionately
charged. Fixed Assets individually costing
% 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year
of acquisition. The Group has estimated the useful
lives for the fixed assets as follows :

Office Building 58 years
Plant & Machinery 9 -15 years*
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Motor Vehicle 8 -10 years
Computers 3-5years

*In case of office equipments, useful life is
estimated to approximate their expected wear &
tear, which is higher than the one prescribed under
Part C of Schedule Il.

Software acquired initially together with hardware
is capitalised along with the cost of hardware and
depreciated in the same manner as the hardware.

The Group has estimated the useful lives for the
intangible assets as follows :

Computer Software 5 years (or useful life of
computer software whichever is lower)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Cost includes interest expense
calculated using the effective interest method
under Ind AS 109 and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective
asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they areincurred.

(e)

(f)

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets - property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses at each reporting dates as to
whether there is any indication that any property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets may
be impaired. If any such indication exists the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
determine the extent of impairment, if any.

If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the Statement of the Profit and Loss
to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Theimpairmentlossrecognisedin prioraccounting
period is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimate of recoverable amount.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and
intended to be held for not more than one year
from the date on which such investments are
made, are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as non-current
investments.

On the initial recognition, all investments are
measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase
price and directly attributable acquisition charges
such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment
is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of
shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is
the fair value of securities issued. If an investment
is acquired in exchange for another asset, the
acquisition is determined by reference to the fair
value of the asset given up or by reference to the
fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is
more clearly evident.

Current investments are carried in the financial
statements at cost. Non-Current investments are
carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made to recognise a decline other than
temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Inventories

The media content (copyrights) are stated at
lower of cost/unamortised cost or realisable
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(h)

(1)

0);

value. The Group evaluates the realisable value
and/or revenue potential of inventory based on
management estimate of market conditions and
future demand and appropriate impairment is
made in cases where accelerated impairment is
warranted.

The copyrights are valued at a percentage of cost
based on the nature of rights, as estimated by the
Management. The Group evaluates the realisable
value and/or revenue potential of inventory based
on management estimate of market conditions
and future demand and appropriate write down
is made in cases where accelerated write down is
warranted.

Inventories of Raw material Stock are valued at
cost or estimated net realizable value whichever is
lower.

Projects in progress and movies under production
are stated at cost. Cost comprises the cost of
materials, the cost of services, labour and other
expenses, to the extent they are incurred for
creating an asset.

Inventories of physical media which consists
of DVDs, Blu-ray, Physical Equipments &
Merchandising are valued on FIFO basis.

The borrowing costs directly attributable to a
movie/game is capitalised as part of the cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand
deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from operating activities are stated
using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss)
before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the
Group are segregated in a manner which is most
appropriate to the business.

Financial Assets
A. Initial recognition and measurement :

All financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets, which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value
on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognised using trade
date accounting.

Subsequent measurement :

a) Financial assets carried at amortised
cost

A financial asset is subsequently
measured at amortised cost if it is
held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

b) Financial assets carried at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if
it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified
in the above categories are fair valued
through profit or loss.

Equity Investments :

All equity invetsments are measured at
fair value, with value changes recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for
those equity investments for which the Group
has elected to present the value changes in
‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

Investmentin associates and joint ventures:

The Group has accounted for its investments
in associates and joint venture at cost.
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E.

(1

Impairment of Financial assets :

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group
uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) model,
for evaluating impairment assessment of
financial assets other than those measured at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

The Group measures the expected credit loss
associated with its assets based on historical
trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates or
any other appropriate basis. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on
its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Every
year, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company uses various derivative
financial instruments such as interest rate
swaps, currency swaps, forwards & options
and commodity contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in interest rates, exchange
rates and commodity prices. The derivatives
are initially recognized at fair value on the
date the contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at each reporting date.

The company has measured all derivative
financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL) unless they qualify
for and are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives not designated as hedges are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurements :

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and in case of loans net of directly
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature
are directly recognised in profit or loss as
finance cost.

B. Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. For
trade and other payables maturing within
one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts are the approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

(m) Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset;

(i) the Group has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease; and

(iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of
the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Group recognizes a right-of-use asset(*ROU”)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short
term and low value leases, the Group recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options
to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that the option to extend will be exercised
and the option to terminate will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized
at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of
the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight line basis
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(n)

over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cashflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

Theleaseliabilityisinitially measured atthe present
value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities
are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related right of use asset if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
an extension or atermination option. Lease liability
and ROU asset are separately presented in the
Balance Sheet and lease payments are classified
as financing cash flows.

Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised as
an expense during the period when the employees
render the services.

Long Term Employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected
to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the
related service are recognised as a liability as at
the Balance Sheet date on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

Defined Contribution Plans

A Defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which the Group pays specified
contributions towards Provident Fund, Employee
State Insurance and Pension Scheme. The Group’s
contribution is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

(o)

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post
employment benefits is calculated using the
Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the
period during which the benefit is expected to be
derived from employee’s services.

Re-measurement of Defined benefit plans in
respect of post-employment and other long term
benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive
Income.

Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in the comprehensive income
orin equity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets
is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount
of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.
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(p)

(q)

Foreign currencies transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Exchange differences arising on
settlement of transactions are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

Assets and liabilities of entities with functional
currency other than the functional currency
of the Company have been translated using
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Statement of profit and loss of such entities
has been translated using weighted average
exchange rates. Translation adjustments have
been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
in the statement of Profit and Loss and reported
as foreign currency translation reserve in the
statement of changes in equity.

Revenue recognition
Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable
that economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the transaction value.

1. Sale of Content, Content Production, Film
Distribution and Syndication - Revenue is
recognised, when the company satisfies the
performance obligation by transferrring the
control over the item in accordance with the
agreed terms.

Contract balances
Contract assets - Unbilled Revenue

A contract asset is the right to consideration
in exchange for services transferred to the
customer. If the Company transfers services
to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are recognised when there is excess
of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled
revenues (only act of invoicing is pending)
when there is unconditional right to receive
cash, and only passage of time is required, as
per contractual terms.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s
right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration
is due or payments are already due but yet to
be realized).

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
services to acustomer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made, or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company
satisfies its performance obligation under the
contract. Unearned and deferred revenue is
recognised when there are billings in excess
of revenues.

Broadcasting revenue - Advertisement
revenue (net of discount and volume rebates)
isrecognised when the related advertisement
or commercial appears before the public i.e.
on telecast. Subscription revenue (net of
share to broadcaster) is recognised on time
basis on the provision of television / digital
broadcasting service to subscribers.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods (ACDs/VCDs/
DVDs/ACS/BRDs) is recognised when all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have been passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of goods measured at
the transaction value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

Income from Services

Revenues from services are recognised when
contractual commitments are delivered net
of returns, trade discounts and rebates. The
Group collects Indirect taxes, if and where
applicable, on behalf of the government
and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit
flowing to the Group. Hence, it is excluded
from revenue.
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(r)

(s)

)

(u)

Other income
i) Interest Income

Interest Income from a financial asset is
recognised based on Effective Interest Rate
(EIR). Interest Income is included under the
head “other income” in the statement of
profit and loss.

ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the
Group’sright to receive the payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the company & the amount of dividend can
be measured reliably.

iii) RentIncomeisrecognised on accrual basis as
per the agreed terms on straight line basis.

Income in relation to rights purchased

In respect of satellite rights: As per the terms and
conditions of the agreement with producer/seller,
with respect to the date of agreement of purchase
and the existence of Censor Certificate.

Inrespect of otherrights like Video and otherrights:
On the date of the agreement of purchase with
producer/seller, provided the Censor Certificate is
in existence.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. For calculating diluted
earnings per share, the profit or (loss) for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Provisions, contingent liabilities & contigent
assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

(v)

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a financial cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

Investment property

Investment in buildings that is not intended
to be occupied substantially for use by, or in
the operations of the Group, are classified as
investment property. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent toinitial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,
if any. All repairs and maintenance costs incurred
for the investment properties are charged to
statement of profitand lossaccount whenincurred.

Investment properties are depreciated using the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.
Useful life of the same is estimated as 58 years
after considering estimated residual value as 5%.

Though the Group measures investment property
using cost based measurement, the fair value
of investment property is disclosed in the notes
(Refer note 3b). Fair values are determined
based on ready reckoner rate as specified by
State Government. If at the balance sheet date
there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of
depreciated historical carrying value.

Investment properties are derecognised either
when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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3(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

(% in Lakhs)
Office Plant & Motor Furniture & Capital

Particulars Building Machinery Vehicle Fixtures

Computers Work-in-
Progress

Gross Carrying Value

At 1t April 2024 2,910.37 3,355.38 399.56 596.85 2,285.89 9,548.05 =
Additions 1278 55.83 170.58 239.19 =
Disposals - - (12.69) - (10.84) (23.53)
At 31t March 2025 2,910.37 3,368.16 44270 596.85 2,445.63 9,763.71 -
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1t April 2024 34752 2,539.84 23070 513.66 1,820.09 5,451.81 =
Charge for the year 5573 134.98 38.34 18.90 258.26 506.21 -
Disposals = = (12.69) = (10.84) (23.53) =
At 31t March 2025 403.25 2,674.82 256.35 532.56 2,067.51 5,934.49 -
Net Carrying Value
At 15t April 2024 2,562.85 815.55 168.85 83.19 465.80 4,096.23 -
At 31t March 2025 2,507.12 693.34 186.35 64.29 378.12 3,829.22 -
in Lakhs)
. Office Plant & Motor | Furniture & Capi.tal
Particulars Building | Machinery Vehicle Fixtures Computers Total Work-in-
Progress
Gross Carrying Value
At 1t April 2023 2,339.78 3,242.85 320.86 589.81 2,028.18 8,521.48 110.24
Additions 570.59 112.53 89.68 7.04 284.39 1,064.23 -
Disposals - (10.98) - (26.68) (37.66) (110.24)
At 31t March 2024 2,910.37 3,355.38 399.56 596.85 2,285.89 9,548.04 -
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1t April 2023 298.45 2,379.16 21111 49574 1,636.03 5,020.49
Charge for the year 49.07 160.67 30.58 17.92 210.69 468.93 -
Disposals - - (10.98) - (26.62) (37.60) -
At 31t March 2024 347.52 2,539.84 230.70 513.66 1,820.09 5,451.81 -
Net Carrying Value
At 15t April 2023 2,041.33 863.69 109.75 94.07 392.15 3,500.99 110.24
At 31t March 2024 2,562.85 815.55 168.85 83.19 465.80 4,096.23 -
Note:

(i)  Office Building Inculde Rs.0.98 lakh (Previous Year Rs. 0.98 lakh) in shares of Co-operative Housing Societies with right to hold and use
certain area of Buildings.

(i)  Thereis noimmovable property where title deed of such immovable property is not held in name of the Company or jointly held with
others.

(iii)  The Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during current financial year & previous financial year.
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3(b) Investment property

Particulars | & 'T;’::;: Particulars ¢ "kl;:g:::
Gross Carrying Value Gross Carrying Value

At 15t April 2024 32.11 At 1t April 2023 321
Add: Addition - Add: Addition

Disposals - Disposals

At 31t March 2025 32.11 At 31t March 2024 32.1
Accumulated amortisation Accumulated amortisation

At 1t April 2024 18.58 At 1t April 2023 18.06
Charge for the year 0.52 Charge for the year 0.52
Disposals - Disposals

At 31t March 2025 19.10 At 31t March 2024 18.58
Net Carrying Value Net Carrying Value

At 15t April 2024 13.53 At 1t April 2023 14.05
At 31t March 2025 13.01 At 31t March 2024 13.53
Fair value Fair value

At 31t March 2025 803.12 At 31t March 2024 580.45

Note:

Company’s Investment Property consists of a commercial property whose fair value is as mentioned above. This valuation is based on the
ready reckoner rate as specified by State Government.



Company Overview Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31t March 2025

3(c) Other Intangible assets

Particulars Software | Trade Mark (el el E0s) Particulars | Software | Trade Mark (fellnLLias)
Total Total
Gross Carrying Value Gross Carrying Value
At 15t April 2024 543.54 25.00 568.54 At 1t April 2023 482.05 25.00 507.05
Purchase 23.82 - 23.82 Purchase 61.49 - 61.49
Disposals - - - Disposals - - -
At 31t March 2025 567.36 25.00 592.36 At 315t March 2024 543.54 25.00 568.54
Accumulated Accumulated
amortisation amortisation
At 1t April 2024 450.92 25.00 47592 At 1t April 2023 422.06 25.00 447.06
Charge for the year 31.69 - 31.69 Charge for the year 28.86 - 28.86
Disposals - - - Disposals - - -
At 31t March 2025 482.61 25.00 507.61 At 31t March 2024 450.92 25.00 475.92
Net Carrying Value Net Carrying Value
At 1t April 2024 92.62 - 92.62 At 1t April 2023 59.99 - 59.99
At 31t March 2025 84.75 - 8475 At 31t March 2024 92.62 - 92.62
Note: (i) The Group has not revalued its intangible assets during current financial year & previous financial year.
4  Right of use Assets
(R in Lakhs)
ETR AT Office Building Motor Vehicle Total
Gross Carrying Value
At 15t April 2024 64274 = 64274
Additions 34.98 13.50 48.48
Deductions = = =
At 31t March 2025 67772 13.50 691.22
Accumulated amortisation
At 15t April 2024 415.32 - 415.32
Charge for the year 65.98 0.36 66.34
Disposals = = =
At 31t March 2025 481.30 0.36 481.66
Net Carrying Value
At 1t April 2024 22742 - 22742
At 31t March 2025 196.42 13.14 209.56
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Office Building |  Motor Vehicle | Total |
Gross Carrying Value
At 1t April 2023 379.78 - 379.78
Additions 262.96 - 262.96
Deductions - - -
At 31t March 2024 64274 - 64274
Accumulated amortisation
At 15t April 2023 356.53 - 356.53
Charge for the year 5879 - 58.79
Disposals - - -
At 31t March 2024 415.32 - 415.32
Net Carrying Value
At 1t April 2023 23.25 - 23.25
At 31t March 2024 22742 - 22742

Note: The Group has not revalued its Right to Use Assets during current financial year & previous financial year.
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Note 4a: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Property, plant & equipment 506.21 468.93
Investment property 0.52 0.52
Other intangible assets 31.69 28.86
Right of use assets 66.34 5879
604.81 55716
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
5 Financial Assets
(R in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

(@) Non - Current Investments

31t March 2025

31t March 2024

In Equity shares, Unquoted, fully paid up

(i) 1,388 (31t March 2024:1,388) Equity shares of 10/ - each fully paid up of 249.84 249.84
Dominiche Production House Private Limited
Less: Provision for impairment (240.00) -
9.84 249.84
(i) 50,500 (31t March 2024: 50,500) Equity shares of ¥10/ - each fully paid up of The 5.05 5.05
N.K.G.S.B. Co-op. Bank Limited
Total 14.89 254.89
OTHER DISCLOSURES
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment 14.89 254.89
Category-wise Non-Current Investments
Financial Assets measured at Cost 14.89 254.89
Total 14.89 254.89
(b) Loans & Advances
Unsecured,considered good
Loans to employees 20.37 724
Total 20.37 7.24
(c) Other Financial Assets
Unsecured,considered good
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 524.66 350.57
(refer note below)
Trade Deposits 410.92 84.50
Lease Deposits 34.94 575
Total 970.52 440.82
Note: Deposits includes balances with banks held as margin money deposits 15.00 318.71
against business guarantees.
6 Other Non - Current Assets
Unsecured,considered good
Prepaid Expenses 17.66 31.43
Total 17.66 31.43
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7  Inventories

As at

Particulars 31t March 2025

Work-in-Progress

(X in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Media content under Production 42746 263.05
Stock-in-Trade

Copyrights 56,376.84 67,871.22
Physical Media 30.64 9710
Total 56,834.94 68,231.38

Notes: i) The entire book value (carrying amount) of inventories of the parent company is hypothecated as security for Cash Credit

Facilities taken from banks except for inventories amounting¥759.29 Lakhs (FY 2023-24 X 646.71 Lakhs).

ii) Quarterly statements of current assets are filed by the company with State Bank of India, Bank of India and NKGSB Cooperative

Bank Limited from whom the company has borrowings on the basis of security of current assets.

There are differences in value of current assets between the books of account and the statements submitted to banks.

The reconciliation of the differences has been disclosed under Note. 16(a).

8 Financial Assets

. As at
Particulars 31t March 2025

(@) Trade receivables

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Unsecured Trade receivables

- considered good 10,266.74 14,122.98

- credit impaired 672.03 966.00

Less: Expected Credit loss allowance (341.63) (563.76)

Total 10,597.14 14,525.22

Note: Movement in expected credit loss allowance

Opening Balance 563.76 281.03
Add: Provision for Expected Credit Loss (Refer Note 24 & 20) (222.13) 396.92
Less: Release of provision due to bad debts write off - (114.19)
Closing Balance 341.63 563.76
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Ageing of trade receivables :-

As at 31t March 2025 (R in Lakhs)
Category Less than 6 More than
1-2years 2-3years 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables -considered good 10,266.74 - - - - 10,266.74
Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have significant = = = = = =
increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired = 173.59 348.32 39.90 38.40 600.21
Disputed Trade Receivables -considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant = = = = = =
increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired = = 1748 27.06 2728 71.82
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) 10.938.77
Less: Expected Credit loss allowance 341.63
Total Trade Receivables (net) 10.597.14
As at 31t March 2024 (% in Lakhs)
(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)
Category Less than | 6 months |, years 2 - 3 | More than Total
6 months -1year years 3 years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 14,101.80 21.18 - - - 14122.98
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 423.81 38.50 723 19.46 489.00
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 9.21 0.12 362.90 39.90 64.88 477.00
Total Trade Receivables (Gross) 15,088.98
Less: Expected Credit loss allowance 563.76
Total Trade Receivables (net) 14,525.22
(Zin Lakhs)
Particulars CEED
31st March 2025 31+t March 2024
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
i) Balances with banks
- Current accounts in Indian rupees 103.40 1373
i) Cash on Hand 14.13 972
Total 117.53 23.45
(c) Other Bank Balances
i) Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months 134.30 -
ii) Earmarked balances with Banks for:
- Balances with bank for unpaid dividend 0.23 0.34
Total 134.53 0.34

Note: (i) The amount of Rs. 0.11 lakh (Previous year - Nil)of unpaid dividend is transferred
to investor education & protection fund during the year 31t March 2025.

(ii) Margin money deposits are held for providing bank guarantees for the business

purpose.
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(R in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
315t March 2025 315t March 2024

(d) Loans & Advances

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees 4599 14.82
Loan to others 1,198.99 1,241.64
Total 1,244.98 1,256.46

(e) Other Financial Assets

Unsecured, considered good

Contract assets (Refer note below) 2,949.29 1,041.46

Trade Deposits 7.08 8792

Lease Deposits 0.01 29.94

Total 2,956.38 1,159.33
Changes in contract assets are as follows: (X In Lakhs)
Particulars JEarended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,041.46 1,399.95

Less : Invoices raised during the year (1,041.46) (1,399.95)

Add: Revenue recognised during the year 2,949.29 1,041.46
Balance at the end of the year (Refer Note 8(e)) 2,949.29 1,041.46

9  Other Current Assets

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars LCLL BT
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to vendors 1,737.28 4,433.91
Insurance Advance 98.65 11275
Advances to employees 0.57 12.12
Amount Receivable from LIC under Gratuity Assurance Scheme 4872 43.59
Other Taxes Receivable 58790 54279
Prepaid Expense 1,404.80 1,215.70
Others 16.96 78.75
Total 3,895.22 6,439.61
10 Equity Share capital
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
315t March 2025 31t March 2024

Authorized shares capital

6,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥10/ - each (Previous Year 6,00,00,000) 6,000.00 6,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2,13,20,299 (Previous year 2,12,26,349) equity shares of 10/ - each fully paid up 2,7132.03 2,722.63
Total 2,732.03 2,722.63

OTHER DISCLOSURES
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each shareholder of equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
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a) Reconciliation of no. of equity shares outstanding

31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Particulars
Numbers % Lakhs Numbers 3 Lakhs
At the beginning of the year 21,226,349 2,722.63 27,182,239 2,718.22
i. Issued during the year 93,950 9.40 44110 4.41
ii. Redeemed during the year = -
iii.  Forfeited During the year = -
Outstanding at the end of the year 217,320,299 2,732.03 27,226,349 2,722.63

b)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares o . No. of Shares .
held % of Holding held % of Holding
Mr. Raman Hirji Maroo 4,017,271 1470% 4,017,217 14.76%
Mr. Atul Hirji Maru 4,017,271 1470% 4,017,271 1476%
Mr. Buddhichand Hirji Maroo 2,783,071 10.19% 2,783,071 10.22%
Hiren Uday Gada 2,658,155 9.73% 2,658,155 9.76%
Technology and Media Group PTE Limited 1,822,840 6.67% 1,822,840 6.70%
Total 15,298,608 56.00% 15,298,608 56.19%
c) Details of promoters’ shareholding
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Name of Shareholder
L CECHSLL % of Holding % change G, G IS % of Holding % change
held held
Atul Hirji Maru 4,017,271 14.70% 0.00% 4,017,217 14.76% -0.16%
Raman Hirji Maroo 4,017,271 1470% 0.00% 4,017,271 1476% -0.16%
11 Other Equity
(a) Reserves & Surplus
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

| Securities premium account

Opening balance 14,423.30 14,340.81

Add: premium on issue of equity shares 162.15 82.49

Closing Balance (A) 14,585.45 14,423.30
Il General reserve

Opening balance 2,112.81 2,112.81

Closing Balance (B) 2,112.81 2,112.81
1 Employee Stock Options Reserve

Opening balance 330.78 189.45

Add: Employee share based expense 196.23 170.89

Less: adjustment during the year (177.37) (29.56)

Closing Balance (C) 349.64 330.78
v Retained Earnings

Opening balance 35,617.04 39,697.77

(Loss) for the year (8,495.91) (4,066.71)

Adjustments for ESOP 120.67

Partner's withdrawal (3.09) (14.02)

Closing Balance (D) 27,238.72 35,617.04
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(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 0 S q L5
315t March 2025 31t March 2024

(b) Other Comprehensive Income

Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or Loss

-Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

Opening Balance 51.47 (9.50)
Add : Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of a foreign 67.87 60.97
operation
Closing Balance 119.34 51.47
- Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Opening Balance 64.31 142.44
Remeasurements during the year (36.13) (104.41)
Deferred tax on remeasurements during the year 9.09 26.28
Closing Balance 3727 64.31
Total Other Comprehensive Income (E) 156.61 115.79
Total A+ B+C+D+E) 44,443.23 52,599.71
Notes :
i) General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.
ii)  Retained earnings represent the accumulated earnings net of Losses if any made by the Group over the years.
iii)  Employee stock options reserve represents the amount charged to profit for the outstanding stock options issued to employees.
iv)  Securities Premium Account represent the amount received in excess of face value of the equity share.
Non-Current Liabilties
Financial Liabilities
12 Non-Current Borrowings
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Interest Maturity | Terms of As at As at
Rate Date Repayment IR VET WPl 315t March 2024
Secured Bank Loan
(i) Term Loan, secured by 8.65% 8-0ct-26 Repayment monthly in 36 equal 1573 24.61
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 88,900/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the
Bank
(ii) ~ Term Loan, secured by 8.25% 8-Dec-24 Repayment monthly in 36 equal = 1572
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 1,80,820/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the
Bank
(iii)  Term Loan, secured by 8.26% 20-Dec-26 Repayment monthly in 36 equal 29.64 44.81
hypothecation of motor installments of INR1,52,510/- as
vehicles per repayment schedule of the
Bank
(iv)  Term Loan, secured 8.65% 20-Jul-27 Repayment monthly in 36 equal 15.99 -
by hypothecation of installments of INR 63,280/- as per
Commercial Property repayment schedule of the Bank
(v)  Term Loan, secured 10.15% 27-Jul-29  Repayment monthly in 82 equal 653.81 768.40
by hypothecation of installments of INR 15,62,240/- as
Commercial Property per repayment schedule of the
Bank
(vi)  Secured Term Loan* 9.40% 7-Dec-24 Repayment monthly in 60 equal - 473.67

installments of INR 62,08,382/- as
per repayment schedule of the
Bank
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Particulars Interest Maturity | Terms of As at As at
Rate Date Repayment IR VET S WLl 315t March 2024
(vi)  Term Loan, secured by 4.91% 1-Jul-27 Repayment monthly in 36 equal 24.01 -
hypothecation of motor installments of INR 95,610/- as per
vehicles repayment schedule of the Bank
Total Non-Current Borrowings 739.18 1,327.22
Less: Current Maturities of Secured long-term debt (included in Note 16 (c)) 168.85 629.92
Non-Current Borrowings 570.33 697.30

* Secured against the personal property of the Director.

Notes: (i) Assets hypothecated as Security.

Particulars

As at
31t March 2025

Non Financial Assets

(R in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

Office Building 2,507.12 2,562.85
Plant and Machinery 693.35 815.55
Computers 376.19 463.1
Motor Vehicles 146.29 136.73
Investment Property 13.01 13.53
Inventories 56,075.65 67,648.63
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 10,175.11 14,184.41
Total 69,986.72 85,824.82

(i)  The Group is not declared as a willful defaulter by any of the banks.

(iii)  The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken during the year.

(iv) These assets value pertains only to assets of holding company.

Non-Current Liabilties

13 Provisions

Particulars

As at
31t March 2025

Provisions for employee benefits:

(R in Lakhs)

As at
31t March 2024

- Gratuity 286.06 295.96
(Refer Note 26)
- Compensated leave absences 73.50 65.18
Total 359.56 361.13
14 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31t March 2025

Balances comprises temporary differences attributable to:

315t March 2024

Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets 20170 194.50
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment (686.61) (628.92)
Lease Liability & Other Financial Liability at amortised cost (158.48) (185.73)
Losses as per Income Tax (3,554.72) (515.66)
Net Deferred Tax Assets (4,198.11) (1,135.81)
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Note: Movements in Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)

(X in Lakhs)
Property, Plant Provision Lease Liability
A . " . Losses as
. and Equipment for Gratuity & Financial
Particulars . S per Income | Net Balance
& Intangible and Leave Liability at Tax
Assets Encashment amortised cost
Opening Balance as on 1t April 2024 194.50 (628.92) (185.73) (515.66) (1,135.81)
Charge or (Credit) to the Statement of Profit 720 (57.69) 27.25 (3,039.06) (3,062.30)
and Loss
Closing Balance as on 31t March 2025 20170 (686.61) (158.48) (3,554.72) (4,198.11)
Charge or (Credit) for the year ended on 31t March 2025
Recognised in Profit and Loss Account (3,053.21)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (9.09)
Total (3,062.30)
15 Contract Liabilities
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars gt ot
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Deferred Revenue (Note 17a) 14113 46.74
Total 141.13 46.74
Current Liabilities
16 Financial Liabilities
(@) Current Borrowings
(% in Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars

31t March 2025

Loan Repayable on Demand

31t March 2024

Secured Loan from Bank

12,684.82

15,417.67

(Secured by hypothecation of stock, book debts and collaterally secured by mortgage of
property owned by the company and personal guarantee of some of the directors of the

company)

Unsecured Bank Short Term Loan

14,345.21

14,476.20

Loans & Advances (Unsecured)

-Directors

2,424.30

2,588.55

Total

29,454.33

32,482.42

Notes:

i) Quarterly statements of current assets are filed by the company with State Bank of India, Bank of India and NKGSB Cooperative Bank
Limited from whom the company has borrowings on the basis of security of current assets.
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Reconciliation of Inventory as per stock statement and as per books :

(% in Lakhs)
As per
As per books Statement Difference
Quarter Ended (A) shared with bank | (A-B) Reasons
(B)

Jun-24 63,261.84 63,346.68 (84.84) Value of Copyrights charged to
Profit & Loss post submission
of report to bank due to change
in Copyright Valuation estimate

Sep-24 61,130.89 61,130.89 -

Dec-24 58,388.81 58,388.81 -

Mar-25 56,075.65 56,168.00 (92.35) Value of Copyrights charged to

Profit & Loss post submission
of report to bank due to change
in Copyright Valuation estimate

(i)  The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specified purpose for which it was taken during
the year.

(b) Trade payable

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars AaCL: AL
31t March 2025 315t March 2024
(a) Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 1,536.90 3,160.46
(Refer Note 34.6)
(b) Due to Others 5,310.86 7,518.28
Total 6,84776 10,678.74
Due to others include payable to related parties - refer note 27(a) 61.35 26.66
Ageing of Trade Payable :-
FY 2024-25
(X in Lakhs)
(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)
Category Less than 1 More than 3
No dues 1-2years
year VCELS
Undisputed Trade Payables - MSME 1,5,27.52 375 5.63 = 1,536.90
Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 37.59 4,943.89 77.01 216.00 36.36 5,310.86

Disputed Trade Payables - MSME - - - - -
Disputed Trade Payables - Others = = = = =

Total Trade Payables 37.59 6,471.14 80.76 221.63 36.36 6,84776
FY 2023-24
(X in Lakhs)
(outstanding for following period from the due date of invoice)

Category

9 Not due oSS 1-2 years 2-3 years LA Total

1year 3 years

Undisputed Trade Payables - MSME 666.22 2,490.96 3.28 - - 3,160.46
Undisputed Trade Payables - Others 2,931.88 4163.91 293.55 40.50 70.45 7,500.29
Disputed Trade Payables - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Payables - Others - 0.47 0.98 0.56 15.98 17.99
Total Trade Payables 3,598.10 6,655.34 297.81 41.06 86.43 10.678.74
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(c) Other Financial Liabilities

R in Lakhs)
Particulars As at L
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Current Maturities of Secured long-term debt 168.85 629.92
(Refer Note 12)
Security Deposit Received 21.00 21.00
Others 373 56.91
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 47.69 115.92
Derivative Financial instrument 33.04 -
Unclaimed Dividend Payable 0.23 0.33
Total 274.54 824.07
17  Other Current Liabilities
(in Lakhs)
Particulars As at
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Advances received from Customers 11.60 100.32
Contract liability (Refer Note 17a) 890.54 795.94
Statutory Dues Payable 656.38 722.35
Others 89.26 101.26
Total 1,647.78 1,719.86
a) Changes in contract liabilities are as follows:
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 842.68 1,193.71
Less: Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the (842.68) (1,193.71)
beginning of the year
Add: Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue 1,031.67 842.68
during the year
Balance at the end of the year (Refer Note 15 & 17) 1,031.67 842.68
18 Provisions
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits
 In Lakhs)
Particulars et
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
- Gratuity 137.14 109.10
(Refer Note 26)
- Compensated leave absences 6.92 470
-ESIC 0.01 0.08
- Provident Fund & other funds 39.85 41.84
Total 183.93 155.73
(b) Other Provisions
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars Ll L
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Provision for purchases 48.32 49.59
48.32 49.59
Total Provisions 232.25 205.32
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19 Revenue from Operations

® In Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

Sale of Content, Content Production, Film Distribution and Syndication 22,547.49 24,471.87
Advertisement and Subscription Revenue 45,827.22 46,228.49
Sale of Products 131.98 19.27
Total 68,510.19 70,719.63

(i) Three customers represents more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue during the year (Previous year: Three
customers)

20 Other Income

(% In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Interest 354.26 269.54
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.53
Credit Balances Written Back 80.76
Expected Credit Loss Allowance Written Back (Refer Note 8(a)) 22213
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain 115.67 122.87
Other 70.30 96.21
Total 843.65 488.62
21 Operational Cost
(X In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31t March 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year 68,231.12 73,457.25
Purchases 31,210.62 30,093.96
Works Cost 15,308.64 16,631.39
Less:Inventories at the end of the year (56,834.94) (68,231.12)
Total 57,915.43 51,951.47
22 Employee Benefit Expense
(X In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31t March 2024
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances 11,667.27 10,557.86
Remuneration to Partners 116.14 92.93
Employee share based expense (Refer Note 33) 196.23 170.89
Contribution to Provident & Other funds 491.22 417.59
Staff Welfare Expenses 253.99 282.67
Total 12,724.85 11,521.95
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23 Finance costs

 In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Interest on Borrowings 3,401.72 3,472.33
Bank & Other Finance Charges 204.56 124.61
Interest on Statutory Dues 34.30 12.82
MTM Loss 33.04
Finance Cost on Lease Assets (Refer Note 30) 24.45 24.51
Total 3,698.09 3,634.28
24 Other expenses
(% In Lakhs)
Particulars ML
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Sundry Balance written off 163.09 258.91
Bad Debts written off 63.33 114.19
Provision for Advances Paid 30.00 -
Withholding Tax - Expense 531.54 -
Impairment Loss on Investment 240.00 -
Business Development expenses 55.56 104.84
Communication expenses 14.03 15.30
Donations 10.50 5.65
Electricity Expenses 163.54 145.01
Housekeeping Expenses 9274 65.24
General Expenses 174.60 474.87
Expected Credit Loss (Note 8a) = 396.92
Insurance Expenses 59.64 49.26
Legal, Professional and Consultancy expenses 1,247.21 1,157.90
Payment to Auditors (refer note (a) below) 20.93 20.95
Repairs and Maintenance
- Building 19.73 131.37
- Machinery 58.94 39.24
- Others 72.20 190.66
Rents, Rates and Taxes 58.89 78.87
Security Charges 45.41 3543
Printing & Stationery 23.49 21.99
Computer Expense/Accessories 30.04 21.36
Computer Software Expense 402.95 29479
Internet Expense 91.37 75.82
Membership & Subscriptions 97.06 57.65
Hotel Lodging & Boarding Expense 69.17 16.20
Selling and Marketing Expenses 1,7/38.69 1,984.72
Travelling and Conveyance 246.14 300.26
Penalty on Government Dues 24.46 -
Provision for GST paid under Protest - 1,200.00
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility Activities (Refer Note 34.5) - 14.55
Total 5,845.25 7,271.95
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Particulars

Note (a): Details of payments made to auditor (excluding taxes):

Year ended
31t March 2025

Annual Report 2024-25

Year ended
31t March 2024

As auditor:
Statutory Audit fee (excluding taxes) 18.57 18.60
Tax audit fee = -
In other capacity:
Other Services (Certification) 2.00 2.00
Reimbursement of expenses 0.36 0.35
Total 20.93 20.95
25 Earnings per share (EPS)
(% In Lakhs)
Year ended

Particulars

Year ended
31t March 2025

Following reflects the net profit/(loss) after tax and no. of shares data used in the Basic and Diluted EPS computations:

31t March 2024

(Loss) after tax (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
(Loss) for calculation of basic EPS (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
(Loss) as above (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
(Loss) for diluted EPS (8,495.91) (4,066.71)
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 27,286,088 27,224,174
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS 27,324,389 27,229,325
(@) Basic () (31.14) (14.94)
(b) Diluted (}) (31.09) (14.94)

26 Employee Benefits
The Disclosures as defined in the Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee benefits”, are given below :

a) Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to provident and other funds is recognised as an expense in note 22 “Employee benefit expense” of the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The present value of gratuity obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately
to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

1) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

(in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Gratuity (Funded)
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 762.05 593.01
Current Service Cost 141.81 137.28
Interest Cost 51.63 38.45
Past Service Cost - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 33.62 137.21
Benefits paid (71.67) (143.90)
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 917.45 762.05
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I1A) Bifurcation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year

(X in Lakhs)
2023-24
Particulars
Gratuity (Funded)
Current Liabilities 137.15 109.10
Non - Current Liabilities 780.30 652.95
Total 917.45 762.05
1) Changes in Fair value of Assets & Reconciliation with Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
(R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning 356.99 403.05
Interest Income 28.10 24.27
Employer Contributions 180.71 19.00
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets (71.67) (143.90)
Re measurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) on 54.57
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end 494.25 356.99
Defined Benefit obligation at year end 917.45 762.05
Net (Asset)/Liability at the end of year 423.20 405.06
Current Liability 137.14 109.10
Non-Current Liability 286.06 295.96
11l) Reconciliation of Net (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2025:
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Net Liability at the beginning of year 405.06 189.96
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 165.34 151.46
Expenses Recognized in OCI 33.51 82.64
Benefit paid (180.71) (19.00)
Net (Asset)/Liability at the end of year 423.20 405.06
1V) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Present value of defined benefit obligation 423.20 405.06
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 423.20 405.06
V) Expenses recognised during the year
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Current Service Cost 141.81 137.28
Net Interest Cost 23.53 14.18
Net Cost 165.34 151.46
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VI) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars m 2023-24
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Year 33.62 137.21
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.11) (54.57)
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 33.51 82.64

VII) Actuarial assumptions

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars | 2024-25 | 2023-24
Mortality Table IAL (2012-14) IAL (2012-14)
Discount rate (per annum) 6.82% 7.38%
Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 3.00% 3.00%

VIIl) The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk:
Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of plan
participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an
increase in the salary of plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

1X) Sensitivity Analysis
The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to discount rate and future salary escalation

rate. The following table summarizes the impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 100 basis points:

R in Lakhs)
Sensitivity Analysis m 2023-24
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 917.45 762.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 1,001.28 830.01
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 842.15 701.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 929.64 776.00
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 903.15 74591
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting 835.35 69375
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 1,014.01 842.45

Notes:

The current service cost recognised as an expense is included in Note 22 ‘Employee benefits expense’ as gratuity. The remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuary.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality.
The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the reporting period,while holding all other assumptions constant.

c) Otherlong term benefits:

The obligation for leave benefits (non funded) is also recognised using the Projected Unit Credit Method and accordingly the long term
paid absences have been valued. The leave encashment expense is included in Note 22 ‘Employee benefits expense’.
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27 Related party disclosures

Related Party relationship

Name of Related Parties

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Raman Maroo, Managing Director

Mr. Atul Maru, Joint Managing Director

Mr. Jai Maroo, Executive Director

Mr. Hiren Gada, CEO

Mr. Gnanchand Jethalal Maru, Director, Canopy Entertainment Private
Limited

Mr. Murtuza Kagalwala, Partner, Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP

Mr. Pulkit Sood, Partner, Shemaroo Contentino Media LLP

Mr. Amit Haria, CFO (w.e.f. May 10, 2022)

Ms. Pooja Sutradhar, Company Secretary (w.e.f. December 19, 2023)

Ms. Hetal Vichhi, Company Secretary (upto 18 December, 2023)

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal, Independent Director (w.e.f. 18" January, 2023)

Mr. Gnanesh D Gala, Independent Director (upto 25 May, 2024)

Mr. Vasanji Mamania, Independent Director (upto 25 May, 2024)

Mr. Rajen Gada, Independent Director (w.e.f. 24" May, 2024)

Mr. Abaas Contractor, Independent Director (w.e.f. 24" May, 2024)

Ms. Dr CA Reeta Bharat Shah, Independent Director (upto 27" March, 2025)

Ms. Kashmira Dedhia, Independent Director (w.e.f. 24 March, 2025)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Buddhichand Maroo (father of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Leelaben Maroo (mother of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Smita Maroo (wife of Mr. Jai Maroo)

Mrs. Kastur Maroo (wife of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Mrs. Radhika Maroo (daughter of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Ms. Mansi Maroo (daughter of Mr. Raman Maroo)

Mrs. Sangeeta Maru (wife of Mr. Atul Maru)

Ms. Nirvi Maru (daughter of Mr. Atul Maru)

Ms. Urvi Maru (daughter of Mr. Atul Maru)

Mrs. Madhuri Gada (wife of Mr. Hiren Gada)

Mrs. Kranti Gada (sister of Mr. Hiren Gada)

Mrs. Tasleem Murtuza Kagalwala (wife of Mr. Murtuza Kagalwala)

Other Related Parties (Entities Controlled by KMPs)

Atul H. Maru (HUF)

Buddhichand H. Maroo (HUF)

Raman H. Maroo (HUF)

Jai Maroo (HUF)

Hiren Gada (HUF)

Shemaroo Corporation

Shemaroo Trading Private Limited (Formerly Shemaroo Holdings Private
Limited)

Canonical Trading LLP

Think Walnut Digital Private Limited

Technology and Media Group PTE. Ltd.

Braj Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Dominiche Productions Private Limited

Aikyam Entertainment Private Limited

Mash Broadcasting Service Private Limited
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28.2 Foreign exchange exposure
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The Company does not use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to

firm commitments and forecasted transactions.

The Company’s foreign currency exposure not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise as at the end of reporting period is as follows :

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Currency SEL
31t March 2025 31t March 2024

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables usb 714 28.68
EUR 0.01 0.01
AED 0.06 1.20
CAD 0.30 0.38
GBP - 0.02
KWD 0.24 0.09
NGN = 0.89
IDR - 20.70
MVR = 0.97
OMR - 0.05
SAR 0.01 0.09
QAR 077 -
SGD = 0.02
THB = 0.61

Other Current Assets

Advances paid for Supply of Goods and Rendering of Services usb = 0.41

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable usb 5.65 377
AED 0.17 -
AUD 0.05 -
IDR 130.00 -
SGD 0.09 0.02
MYR 0.06 0.06

Other Current Liabilities

Advances received from Customers usb = 0.49

29 Financial Instruments

(i) Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and

liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk such as equity price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, other financial instruments.

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of
changes in fair value of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will vary because of fluctuations in interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations.
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Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period.
For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.
(R in Lakhs)
Interest impact (pre tax)
. Year ended 31t March 2025 Year ended 31t March 2024

Particulars —_—
Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Impact on profit or loss for the year 17.01 (17.01) 17.32 (17.32)
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting Year 17.01 (17.01) 17.32 (17.32)

c) Foreign Currency risk

The Group enters into transactions in currency other than its functional currency and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk.
The Group analyses currency risk as to which balances outstanding in currency other than the functional currency of that Group.
The management has taken a position not to hedge this currency risk. The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign
currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are not hedged considering the
insignificant impact and period involved on such exposure.

d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers, deposits and loans given, investments and balances at
bank.

The Group measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates. Expected credit loss is based on actual credit loss experienced and past trends based on the
historical data.

Ageing of trade receivables

R in Lakhs)
Particulars FSEL
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Trade receivables (Unsecured)
over six months 672.01 97797
less than six months 10,266.76 14,111.01
Total 10,938.77 15,088.98

e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The Group’s principal source of liquidity are cash
and cash equivalents and the cash flow i.e. generated from operations. The Group consistently generated strong cash flows from
operations which together with the available cash and cash equivalents and current investment provided adequate liquidity in short
terms as well in the long term.
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments.

31t March 2025

Due in 1 year Due in 2 - 3 years

Particulars

Financial Liabilities

(X in Lakhs)

31t March 2024

Due in1year

Duein 2 - 3 years

Trade Payable 6,509.00 33876 10,253.44 425.30
Other Financial Liabilities 274.54 = 824.07 -
Borrowings* 29,454.33 570.33 32,482.41 697.30
Lease Liability 65.65 165.13 55.01 184.91
Total 36,303.52 1,074.22 43,614.93 1,307.51

*Current maturities of borrowings forms part of other financial liabilities. Hence, same is not considered seperately in borrowings.

(ii) Capital Management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The Group manages
its capital structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the stakeholders.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows :

R in Lakhs)

Particulars As at

31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Debt
Long Term Borrowings (Including Current Maturity of Long Term Debts) 739.18 1,327.22
Short Term Borrowings 29,454.33 32,482.42
Cash & Bank Balances (117.53) (23.45)
Total debt (A) 30,075.98 33,786.19
Equity
Equity Share Capital 2,7132.03 2,722.63
Other Equity 44,443.23 52,599.71
Total equity (B) 47,175.26 55,322.34
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (A/B) 63.75% 61.07%
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30 Leases

a) The summary of information showing the effect of “Leases” on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows are

given below:

Particulars

Right of use asset: (Refer Note 4)

(X in Lakhs)
31t March 2024

a) Balance as at beginning of the year 22742 23.25
b)  Additions made during the year
- Office Buildings 34.98 262.96
- Motor Vehicle 13.50 -
c) Depreciation charged to Statement of profit and loss
- Office Buildings (65.98) (58.79)
- Motor Vehicle (0.36)
d) Disposal of Assets - -
e) Balance as at end of the year
- Office Buildings 196.42 22742
- Motor Vehicle 13.14
Total 209.56 22742
Lease Liability:
a) Balance as at beginning of the year 239.92 25.03
b)  Additions made during the year 48.48 262.96
c) Deletions during the year = -
d) Interest expenses charged to Statement of profit and loss (Refer Note 23) 24.45 24.51
e)  Reduction after reinstatement of Liability = (1.35)
f) Cash outflow for leases (82.07) (711.23)
g) Balance as at end of the year 230.78 239.92

Note:

1) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to existing lease liability is 10.90%. While the weighted average incremental

borrowing rate applied for renewed property lease is 12% and for Motor Vehicle lease is 11.75%.
2) The company has applied single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets.

b) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars S it
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Current lease liability 65.65 55.01
Non-current lease liability 165.13 184.91
Total 230.78 239.92
c) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars AHEL AR
31t March 2025 31t March 2024
Less than one year 65.65 55.01
One to five years 165.13 184.91
More than five years = -
Total 230.78 239.92

d) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liability as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

obligations related to lease liability as and when they fall due.

e) Rental expense charged to the Statement of profit and loss account applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116, on account of low-value asset

is ¥ Nil and short-term leases is T Nil.
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33 Share Based Payments
Shemaroo Entertainment Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021

The Company implemented the Employee Stock Option Scheme to grant equity based incentives to eligible employees of Company and

its subsidiaries. Shemaroo Entertainment Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2021 (“Scheme”) has been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on December 7, 2021 and by the shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution
passed on January 16, 2022 for grant aggregating 15,00,000 options of the Company. The Scheme covers grant of options to the designated
employees of the Company and its Group companies, any Director, whether a whole-time director or not, including a Non-Executive Director,
but excluding the Independent Directors, Promoters or members of Promoter Group, and a director holding, directly or indirectly, more than
ten percent of the outstanding equity shares of the Company.

The vesting period of the options granted under the Scheme shall commence from the grant date, subject to minimum of 1 (One) year from
the grant date and a maximum of 5 (Five) years from the grant date. The settlement of options exercised under the Scheme is by way of
alloting equity shares of the Company.

In accordance with the Scheme, the company granted 319,146 options on July 30, 2024 and 1500 options on October 17, 2024.

The following table provides the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the year
ended:

EAN 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Number WAEP (in <) Number WAEP (in3)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 743,790 125.04 452,050 136.63
Granted during the year 320,646 148.09 449,350 113.47
Forfeited during the year 171,090 138.89 113,500 123.48
Exercised during the year 93,950 122.29 44,110 130.00
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 799,396 131.64 743,790 125.04
Exercisable at the end of the year 274,325 12275 152,920 14274

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31,2025 is 1.01 years (March 31, 2024:
1.39years)

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was ¥ 110 to ¥ 167 (March 31,2024:3 110 to X 167)
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was ¥ 66 (March 31,2024:% 49)

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the Scheme for the year ended (model used: Black Scholes valuation model):

Particulars m 31-Mar-24

Underlying share price (%) 121.90 - 187.62 121.90 - 185.10
Exercise price (%) 110.00 - 167.00 110.00 - 167.00
Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.08% - 0.22%
Expected volatility (%) 55.01% - 58.76% 54.19% - 81.62%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.53% - 6.75% 4.96% -17.09%
Expected life of share options 1.50 - 3.50 years 1.50 - 3.51 years

Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate during the period. The volatility is
used in the Black Scholes option pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rate of the return of
the stock over a period of time. The period considered for expected volatility is based on historical volatility for a period that approximates
the expected life of the options being valued.

Total expense arising from equity-settled share based payment transaction for the year is¥196.23 lakhs (March 31, 2024:3170.89 lakhs)
has been charged to standalone statement of profit and loss.
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34 Additional information to financial statements

34.1 Approval of financial statements

Financial statements are approved for issue by Board of Directors on 13" May, 2025.
34.2 Segment Reporting

The Group has identified “Entertainment” as the only primary reportable business segment and hence business segment disclosure as per
IND AS - 108 is not applicable. The Group operates in India and rest of the world.

Three customers represents more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue during the year (Previous year: Three customers)

34.3 Details of Loans given, investment made and Guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.
(a) Investment made by the company as at 31t March 2025. (Refer note 5(a))

(b)  No Guarantee has been given by the company as at 315t March 2025.

34.4 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 31-Mar-24
Disputed Direct Tax Demands 9.27 3373
Disputed Indirect Tax Demands** 19,186.23 168.51
19,195.50 202.24

* Refer Note 347

** Excluding amount paid under protest

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Group’s management
does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on
the Group’s results of operations or financial condition.

34.5 Details of Corporate social responsibility expenses:

(i)  The gross amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) related activities during the year is
T NIL (previous year ¥ 0.76 lakhs).

(i) Amount approved by the board to be spent towards CSR activities during the year ¥ NIL (previous year¥14.55 lakhs).

(iii) The details of amount recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss under Note 24 above on CSR related activities is given
below:

Particulars (R in Lakhs)
Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2025:

i) Improving & Promoting Quality Education

i)  Health care, Hygiene & Medical Facilities

iii)  Rural Transformation & Protection of natural heritage, art & culture, drought relief

Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2024:

i) Improving & Promoting Quality Education 2.25
ii)  Health care, Hygiene & Medical Facilities 1.3
iii)  Rural Transformation & Protection of natural heritage, art & culture, drought relief 11.00

14.55
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(iv) Details of Excess CSR expenditure as at March 31, 2025:

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Opening Balance 21.00 7.21
Amount required to be spent during the year = 0.76
Amount spent during the year = 14.55
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
Total of previous years shortfall = -
Closing Balance ( To be carried forward for next year) 21.00 21.00

34.6 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars m 31-Mar-24
(i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers as on 1,536.90 3,160.46
(i) Interest due on unpaid principal amount to MSME suppliers as on 766 10.28

(iii)  The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the = -
MSME suppliers beyond the appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year (without adding the interest = -
under MSME Development Act)

(v)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as on - -

(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 = -

Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

34.7 The GST Department had demanded and order recovery of inadmissible Input Tax Credit (ITC) allegedly amounting to¥7025.62 lakhs,
along with the alleged interest at the applicable rate and penalty equal to aforementioned tax amount under Section 74 (1) of CGST Act,
2017. Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 6334.99 lakhs under Section 122(1)(ii) & (x) & Section 122 (2) (b) of CGST Act, 2017 read with
Section 20 of the IGST Act, 2017 was also imposed. The holding company has disputed the order and filed appeal against the said order
with the Joint Commissioner and has also filed writ with the Bombay High Court, wherein the hearing is pending. The Company had
paid¥1,200.00 lakhs under protest to GST department in previous year and has made provision against the same in previous year.

Department had also imposed Penalty allegedly amounting to ¥ 133.61 crores each on Joint Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer of the Holding Company under Section 122(1A) of the CGST Act, 2017 and MGST Act, 2017. The above three
individuals has filed writ against the order, with the Bombay High Court and got interim order granting the stay on the proceedings.
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34.8 Disclosure of ratios

Please find below ratios to be disclosed as per the Schedule Il of the Companies Act :-

. 315t March EEIREN)] . Rea'son for Items included in Numerator &
Ratio Variance | Variance of More .
2025 2024 Denominator
than 25%
Current ratio 2.01 2.09 -4% Numerator :- Current Assets
Denominator :- Current Liability
Debt-Equity Ratio 0.64 0.62 5% Numerator :- Total Debts
Denominator :- Shareholders Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio -112 0.05 -2140% Due to Net Losses  Numerator :- Earning for debt services
in Current Year Denominator :- Fixed Interest Charges
Return on Equity Ratio -0.18 -0.07 148% Due to Net Losses  Numerator :- Net Profit After Taxes
in Current Year Denominator :- Shareholders' Equity
Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.10 1.00 10% Numerator :- Sales
Denominator :- Average Inventory
Trade Receivables Turnover 5.45 5.20 5% Numerator :- Total Sales
Ratio Denominator :- Average Account
Receivables
Trade Payables Turnover 3.56 3.00 19% Numerator :- Net Credit Purchases
Ratio Denominator :- Average Accounts
Payable
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.61 1.31 23% Numerator :- Net Sales
Denominator :- Net Assets
Net Profit Ratio -0.12 -0.06 118% Due to Net Losses  Numerator :- Net Profit
in Current Year Denominator :- Net Sales
Return On Capital Employed -0.16 0.00 9497% Due to decrease Numerator :- Earning Before Interest
in earning before & Tax
interest & tax in Denominator :- Capital Employed

current year

34.9 The companies has not done any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

34.10 Income Tax expenses reconciliation with accounting profit/(loss):

R in Lakhs)
Particulars FY 2023-24
(Loss) before tax (11,434.59) (3,728.56)
Reconciling items :
Depreciation as per Income Tax Rules (605.80) (624.32)
Other Expenses Allowed (591.63) -
Other comprehensive income 36.13 (104.41)
Expenses disallowed 998.51 2,716.08
(11,597.39) (1,741.20)
Less: Items considered separately = 0.74
(11,597.39) (1,741.20)
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax expenditure of subsidiary 123.20 35.95
Current tax expenditure for the year 123.20 35.95
Tax Deduction at Source (663.31) (119.70)
(540.11) (83.75)

The Government of India has reduced the corporate tax rates from 30% to 22% through the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 which is
effective from 15t April 2019. As per the same if assessee opts new corporate tax rate, Minimum Alternative Tax provisions (MAT) provisions
are not applicable. The Parent Company “Shemaroo Entertainment Limited” has opted for new corporate tax rate from the financial year
2019-20 and the tax liability above has been calculated accordingly.
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34.11 Additional disclosures as to the amendment of Schedule Il :

i) During the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

i) Thereis no Benami Property held by the Company and there is no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

iii)  There are no charges or satisfaction in relation to any debt / borrowings yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv)  The company has not recorded any transaction in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

v) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
A)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall -

(i)  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

B)  The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall -

(i)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vi)  The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year or previous financial year.
34.12 Prior Year Comparatives
Previous year’s figures are regrouped, rearranged, or recast wherever necessary to conform to this year’s presentation.

Signatures to notes “1” to “34” forming part of the consolidated financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Shemaroo Entertainment Limited

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co. Raman Maroo Hiren Gada

Chartered Accountants Chairman and Managing Director WTD and CEO

Firm Registration No. 106655W DIN 00169152 DIN 01108194

M. M. Chitale Amit Haria Pooja Sutradhar
Partner CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 14054 Membership No.: A40807
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 13" May, 2025 Date: 13" May, 2025
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